
Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) 
Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, July 23, 2025, 9:00 AM 
This meeting will be held in person at the Shields-Carter Room of the 

Scott M. Bennett Administrative Center, 102 East Main Street, Urbana, IL 61801 
Members of the public may attend in person or watch the meeting live through this link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557 Meeting ID: 815 5912 4557  
I. Call to order

II. Roll call
III. Approval of Agenda*
IV. CCDDB Meeting Schedule (posted here) and CCMHB Meeting Schedule (posted here)

and Allocation Process Timeline (as “CCDDB Important Dates” among public
documents here) are for information only.

V. CCDDB Acronyms and Glossary are posted here for information only.
VI. Citizen Input/Public Participation See below for details.**

VII. Chairperson’s Comments – Ms. Vicki Niswander
VIII. Executive Director’s Comments – Lynn Canfield

IX. Approval of CCDDB Board Meeting Minutes (pages 3-9)*
Action is requested to approve the minutes of the CCDDB’s May 21, 2025 meeting.

X. Vendor Invoice Lists (pages 10-14)*
Action is requested to accept the “Vendor Invoice Lists” and place them on file.

XI. Staff Reports (pages 15-29) Staff reports are included in the packet.
XII. New Business

a) Officer Elections (pages 30-33)*
The Board by-laws are included for information. The Board holds officer elections
during their required July meeting, selecting a President and a Secretary. After
nominations are heard and closed, an action may be taken such as “… to elect
Jane Doe as President and John Doe as Secretary of the CCDDB effective
immediately and ending no later than August 1, 2026.” Action is requested.*

b) Setting the Stage (pages 34-41)
For information only are a briefing memorandum detailing current strategic plan
objectives and funding allocation priorities and a list of PY26 awards.

c) United Way 211 MOU (pages 42-48)*
A decision memorandum requests approval of an updated memorandum of
understanding, which is attached, along with the new agreement for local 211
services. Action is requested.*

d) DRAFT Fiscal Year 2026 Budgets (pages 49-64)*

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/pdfs/ddbmeetsched.pdf
https://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/pdfs/mhbmeetsched.pdf
https://ccmhddbrds.org/
https://ccmhddbrds.org/
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/DDB%20Glossary%202024.pdf


A decision memorandum requests approval of CCDDB and I/DD Special Initiatives 
(IDDS) Fund 2026 budgets. Attached are draft budgets, background information, 
and intergovernmental agreement to define cost-sharing. Action is requested.*  

XIII. Old Business
a) Agency Special Request (pages 65-73)*

With PY24 reports submitted and independent financial review pending, the CU
Autism Network requests waiver of repayment. A decision memo presents a
summary of the completed reports and possible next steps. Action is requested*

b) Input from People with I/DD
People with I/DD may choose to offer input to the Board and public at this time.

c) Response to Emerging Threats
The Board may discuss formal responses to threats to the safety and stability of
people with I/DD and other vulnerable residents.

d) Engage Illinois (page 74-100)
For information are Engage Illinois’ fact sheet for parents, webinar
announcement, and North Star Plan. An oral update will be provided on the
statewide system redesign effort.

e) Evaluation Capacity Building Project Update
An oral update will be provided. See resources developed by the team
at https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos.

f) disAbility Resource Expo Update (pages 101-104)
For information are save the date and sponsorship materials. An oral update will
be provided. More information is at https://disabilityresourceexpo.org

XIV. Successes and Other Agency Information
The Chair reserves the authority to limit individual agency representative participation
to 5 minutes and/or total time to 20 minutes. See below for details.**

XV. County Board Input
XVI. Champaign County Mental Health Board Input

XVII. Board Announcements and Input
XVIII. Adjournment

* Board action is requested.
* Board action is requested.

**Public input may be given virtually or in person. 
If the time of the meeting is not convenient, you may communicate with the Board by 
emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or kim@ccmhb.org any comments for us to read aloud during the meeting.  
The Chair reserves the right to limit individual time to five minutes and total time to twenty minutes. 
All feedback is welcome. 
The Board does not respond directly but may use input to inform future actions.  
Agency representatives and others providing input which might impact Board actions should be aware of the 
Illinois Lobbyist Registration Act, 25 ILCS 170/1, and take appropriate steps to be in compliance with the Act. 

For accessible documents or assistance with any portion of this packet, please contact us (kim@ccmhb.org). 

2

https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos
https://disabilityresourceexpo.org/
javascript:void(0);
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/Commission/jcar/admincode/JCARTitlePart.asp?Title=002&Part=0560
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org


1 | P a g e  
 

 _____________________________________________________________________________ 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY BOARD FOR CARE AND TREATMENT 
OF PERSONS WITH A DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY 

(CCDDB) MEETING 
 

Minutes May 21, 2025 

This meeting was held at the Brookens Administrative Center 
1776 E. Washington St., Urbana, IL  61802 

 and with remote access via Zoom. 
 

9:00 a.m. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Kim Fisher, Vicki Niswander, Anne Robin, Neil Sharma 
 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: Susan Fowler 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Kim Bowdry, Lynn Canfield, Stephanie Howard-Gallo, Shandra 

Summerville, Chris Wilson 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Kelli Martin, Jodi Harmon, Sarah Perry, Danielle Matthews, Jami 

Olsen, DSC; Becca Obuchowski, Hannah Sheets, Community 
Choices; Angela Yost, Jessie Heckenmueller, CCRPC; Paula 
Vanier, Mel Liong, PACE; Jenny Lokshin, County Board; Annie 
Bruno, The Arc of IL; Jacinda Dariotis, Family Resiliency Center 
UIUC 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Ms. Niswander called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
An agenda was approved. 
 
CCDDB and CCMHB SCHEDULES/TIMELINES: 
 

3



2 | P a g e  
 

Updated copies of CCDDB and CCMHB meeting schedules and CCDDB allocation timeline 
were posted.  
 
ACRONYMS and GLOSSARY: 
 
A list of commonly used acronyms was posted. 
 
CITIZEN INPUT/PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
None. 
 
PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS: 
 
None. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS: 
 
None. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Minutes from the 4/16/25 meeting were included in the packet.  
 

MOTION:  Dr. Fisher moved to approve the 4/16/25 board meeting 
minutes. Dr. Robin seconded the motion.  A voice vote was taken and 
the motion passed. 

 
VENDOR INVOICE LIST: 
 
The Vendor Invoice List was included in the Board packet.  
 

MOTION: Dr. Fisher moved to approve the Vendor Invoice List as 
presented. Dr. Robin seconded the motion.  A voice vote was taken 
and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Agency Response to Staff Review of PY2026 Funding Requests: 
Responses from agency applicants regarding the draft staff reviews were included in the packet. 
 
Allocation of PY2026 Funding for I/DD Programs: 

4



3 | P a g e  
 

A Decision Memorandum was included in the packet. For consideration by the CCDDB, this 
memorandum presented staff suggestions related to funding for the Program Year (PY) 2026 (July 
1, 2025 through June 30, 2026.) Decision authority rests with the CCDDB and their sole discretion 
concerning appropriate use of available dollars based on assessment of community needs, best 
value, alignment with decision support criteria, pricing, affordability, and distribution across 
service intensity. 
 

MOTION:  Dr. Robin moved to approve CCDDB funding of $425,042 for 
CCRPC-Community Services – Decision Support PCP, subject to the caveats 
as presented in the memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive 
Director and Board Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr Fisher seconded.  A 
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.  
 
MOTION:  Dr. Fisher  moved to approve CCDDB funding of $500,000 for 
DSC-Service Coordination, subject to the caveats as presented in the 
memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive Director and Board 
Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Robin seconded.  A roll call vote was 
taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Dr. Robin moved to deny CCDDB funding of $87,186 for The 
Autism Program at UIUC – The Autism Program UIUC, subject to the caveats 
as presented in the memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive 
Director and Board Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Sharma seconded.  
A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
If later in 2025, the CCDDB determines that additional funds are available to allocate for PY26 
contracts, the agency will be encouraged to modify the submitted proposal for completeness and 
clarity of eligibility, which the Board might then consider. 
  

MOTION:  Ms. Niswander moved to approve CCDDB funding of $233,000 for 
Community Choices, Inc. –Inclusive Community Support, subject to the 
caveats as presented in the memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB 
Executive Director and Board Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Robin 
seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Dr. Sharma moved to approve CCDDB funding of $628,000 for 
DSC – Community Living, subject to the caveats as presented in the 
memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive Director and Board 
Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Fisher seconded.  A roll call vote was 
taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Dr. Fisher moved to approve CCDDB funding of $243,000 for 
Community Choices, Inc. –Transportation Support, subject to the caveats as 
presented in the memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive 
Director and Board Officer to execute the agreement.  Ms. Niswander 
seconded.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

5



4 | P a g e  
 

 
MOTION: Dr. Robin moved to approve CCDDB funding of $263,000 for DSC 
– Clinical Services, subject to the caveats as presented in the memorandum, 
and to authorize the CCDDB Executive Director and Board Officer to execute 
the agreement.  Ms. Niswander seconded.  A roll call vote was taken and the 
motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Ms. Niswander moved to approve CCDDB funding of $320,000 for 
DSC- Individual and Family Support, subject to the caveats as presented in 
the memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive Director and Board 
Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Fisher seconded. A roll call vote was 
taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Dr. Sharma moved to approve CCDDB funding of $45,972 for 
Persons Assuming Control of Their Environment (PACE) – Consumer 
Control in Personal Support, subject to the caveats as presented in the 
memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive Director and Board 
Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Fisher seconded.  A roll call vote was 
taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Ms. Niswander moved to deny CCDDB funding of $70,959 for 
Parkland College District 505 – Parkland College OT at Head Start West, 
subject to the caveats as presented in the memorandum, and to authorize the 
CCDDB Executive Director and Board Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. 
Fisher seconded.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
If later in 2025, the CCDDB determines that additional funds are available to allocate for PY26 
contracts, the agency will be encouraged to modify the submitted proposal for completeness and 
clarity of eligibility, which the Board might then consider. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Fisher moved to approve CCDDB funding of $256,000 for 
Community Choices, Inc. –Customized Employment, subject to the caveats as 
presented in the memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive 
Director and Board Officer to execute the agreement.  Ms. Niswander 
seconded.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION: Dr. Fisher moved to approve CCDDB funding of $523,000 for DSC 
– Community Employment, subject to the caveats as presented in the 
memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive Director and Board 
Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Sharma seconded.  A roll call vote was 
taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION: Dr. Sharma moved to approve CCDDB funding of $102,500 for 
DSC/Community Choices –Employment First, subject to the caveats as 
presented in the memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive 

6



5 | P a g e  
 

Director and Board Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Fisher seconded.  A 
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Dr. Robin moved to approve CCDDB funding of $228,000 for 
Community Choices, Inc.–Self-Determination Support, subject to the caveats 
as presented in the memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive 
Director and Board Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Fisher seconded.  A 
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Dr. Fisher moved to approve CCDDB funding of $990,000 for DSC 
– Community First, subject to the caveats as presented in the memorandum, 
and to authorize the CCDDB Executive Director and Board Officer to execute 
the agreement.  Dr. Robin seconded.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion 
passed. 

  
MOTION:   Dr. Sharma moved to approve CCDDB funding of $122,000 for 
DSC – Connections, subject to the caveats as presented in this memorandum, 
and to authorize the CCDDB Executive Director and Board Officer to execute 
the agreement.  Dr. Fisher seconded.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion 
passed. 

 
MOTION:   Dr. Robin moved to approve CCDDB funding of $48,000 for 
Community Choices – Staff  Recruitment and Retention, subject to the caveats 
as presented in this memorandum, and to authorize the CCDDB Executive 
Director and Board Officer to execute the agreement.  Dr. Sharma seconded. 
A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Dr. Fisher moved to advise the Champaign County Mental Health 
Board to use $702,000 of I/DD set-aside funds per year for a two-year term for 
DSC – Family Development. Dr. Sharma seconded.  A roll call vote was taken 
and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION: Ms. Niswander moved to authorize the Executive Director to 
conduct contract negotiations as specified in the memorandum.  Dr. Robin 
seconded.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

  
MOTION:  Ms. Niswander moved to authorize the Executive Director to 
implement contract maximum reductions as described in the memorandum.  
Dr. Fisher seconded.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Ms. Niswander moved to include in all PY2026 contracts the 
provision for specific exceptions to Funding Requirements and Guidelines, as 
described in the memorandum.  Dr. Robin seconded.  A roll call vote was 
taken and the motion passed. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: 

7



6 | P a g e  
 

 
Input from People with I/DD: 
None. 
 
Response to Emerging Threats: 
Dr. Sharma brought up pay disparities for people with I/DD.  Dr. Fisher reported advocacy is 
needed for Medicare, Medicaid, and SNAP benefits. 
 
Engage Illinois: 
Ms. Niswander provided a verbal update on their activities.   
 
Evaluation Capacity Building Project Update: 
The two-year report from the Family Resiliency Center was included in the packet.  
Representatives presented the report. 
 
disAbility Resource Expo Update: 
Ms. Bowdry provided a brief update.  The Expo will be held October 18, 2025. 
 
Third Quarter Program Activity Reports: 
Reports were included in the packet. 
 
Third Quarter Service Claims Data: 
Reports were included in the packet. 
 
SUCCESSES AND AGENCY INFORMATION: 
 
Becca Obuchowski from Community Choices; Paula Vanier from PACE provided updates.  Jessie 
Heckenmueller from RPC introduced herself. 
 
COUNTY BOARD INPUT: 
 
Jenny Lokshin thanked staff for participating in the budget allocation process. 
 
CCMHB INPUT: 
 
The CCMHB will meet this evening. 
 
BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS AND INPUT: 
 
The CCDDB meeting scheduled for June will be cancelled. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:16 a.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted by: Stephanie Howard-Gallo,  

8



7 | P a g e  
 

CCMHB/CCDDB Operations and Compliance Specialist 
 
*Minutes are in draft form and subject to CCDDB approval. 

9



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
7
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
0
6

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
 
O
F

A
p
r
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
0
2
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
2
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
,
1
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
,
1
6
6
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
2
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
F
i
r

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
,
1
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
.
 
W
i
l
s
o
n
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
7
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
1
1

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
,
9
1
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
,
9
1
2
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
8
 
D
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
S
u
p
p

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
,
9
0
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
,
9
0
3
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
8
 
D
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
S
u
p
p

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
,
8
1
5
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
4
6
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I
N
C

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
7
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
6
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
R
e
c
r
u
i
t

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
7
9
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
7
9
9
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
5
 
S
e
l
f
-
D
e
t
e
r
m
i
n

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
7
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
0
 
I
n
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
 
C
o
m

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
9
6
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
9
6
2
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
5
 
C
u
s
t
o
m
i
z
e
d
 
E
m

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
6
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
R
e
c
r
u
i
t

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
7
9
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
7
9
1
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
5
 
S
e
l
f
-
D
e
t
e
r
m
i
n

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
7
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
0
 
I
n
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
 
C
o
m

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
9
5
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
9
5
8
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
5
 
C
u
s
t
o
m
i
z
e
d
 
E
m

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
5
,
1
8
0
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
 
O
F

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
6
7
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
6
7
4
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
0
 
I
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
a
n

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
L
i
v

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
3
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
C
o
o
r
d

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
7
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
1
1

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
6
7
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
6
7
4
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
4
 
C
l
i
n
i
c
a
l
 
S
e
r
v

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
2
1
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
2
1
2
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
5
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
F
i

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
3
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
3
3
7
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
6
 
W
o
r
k
f
o
r
c
e
 
D
e
v

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
6
7
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
6
7
4
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
E
m
p

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
5
8
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
5
8
7
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
2
 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
0
 
I
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
a
n

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
L
i
v

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
3
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
C
o
o
r
d

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
4
 
C
l
i
n
i
c
a
l
 
S
e
r
v

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
2
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
2
0
8
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
5
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
F
i

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
3
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
3
3
3
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
8
6
 
W
o
r
k
f
o
r
c
e
 
D
e
v

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
E
m
p

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
5
8
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
5
8
3
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
9
2
 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
3
,
5
3
0
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
8
3
2
3
 
D
I
M
O
N
D
 
B
R
O
S
.
 
I
N
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 
L
L
C

1
4
4
1
9
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
1
3
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
8
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
8
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
8
3
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
P
o
l
i
c
y
 
#
E
M
N
0
5
7
7
8
3
9
 
5
/
1

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
4
2
4
 
P
E
R
S
O
N
S
 
A
S
S
U
M
I
N
G
 
C
O
N
T
R
O
L
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
I
R
 
E
N
V
I
R
O
N
M
E
N
T
 
I
N
C
.

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
3
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
3
1
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
9
 
C
o
n
s
u
m
e
r
 
C
o
n
t

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
3
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
3
1
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
5
-
0
7
9
 
C
o
n
s
u
m
e
r
 
C
o
n
t

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
7
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
1
1

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
6
6
2
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
9
,
5
7
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
.
 
W
i
l
s
o
n
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
V

E
N

D
O

R
 IN

V
O

IC
E

 L
IS

T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
7
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
1
3
:
1
1

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R

J
u
n
'
2
5
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
5
-
0
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
3
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
3
3
7
.
0
0
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
5
-
0
8
9
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
a
y
'
2
5
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
5
-
0
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
2
0
2
5
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
3
3
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
3
3
6
.
0
0
 
0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
5
 
I
N
V
 
 
P
D
 
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
5
-
0
8
9
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
6
7
3
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
6
7
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
.
 
W
i
l
s
o
n
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



Kim Bowdry, 
Associate Director for Intellectual & Developmental Disabilities 
Staff Report – June and July 2025 
 
CCDDB/CCMHB/IDDSI: PY2026 Special Provisions were drafted in May for each PY2026 
contract. I also reviewed and worked with other staff to update the ‘Pre-Contract 
Checklist’ for PY2026.  
 
After the completion of May Board meetings, emails were sent to each agency that 
applied for PY2026 funding. These emails informed agencies of the Boards’ decisions 
and any revisions and/or pre-contract requirements that needed to be completed 
before issuing contracts. PY2026 application forms which required revisions were 
opened in the Online Reporting System. Draft PY2026 contracts were developed and 
attached to the agency award emails with the Pre-Contract Checklist. Application 
revisions were reviewed upon completion to confirm that requirements were met.  
 
I then spent late May and June sending contracts for signature, via Adobe Sign. 
Completed contracts were printed and saved for contract files. Pre-Contracts checklists, 
Letters of Engagement, for agency audits, and Certificates of Liability Insurance were 
also printed and saved. All CCDDB contracts were completed by June 23, 2025. 
 
I also created electronic contract files for each CCDDB and CCMHB agency. Many of the 
items listed above were also uploaded into the Compliance Section of the Online 
Reporting System. I updated the Compliance Dashboard requirements for PY2026 prior 
to uploading agency documents. 
 
PY2025 4th Quarter programs were cloned in preparation for PY2026. The cloning of 
PY2025 4th Quarter Programs creates the PY2026 1st Quarter programs for data entry 
into the Online Claims system. This requires creating each program for PY2026 and then 
setting up the claims options and associating them for each program.  
 
I participated in monthly meetings with CCDDB/CCMHB staff and staff from the Family 
Resiliency Center, related to the Evaluation Capacity project. 
 
June and July were also spent preparing my office ahead of our move to the Scott M. 
Bennett Administrative Center in early August. 
 
The PY26 Funded Programs Chart was updated and posted to the Online Reporting 
System. This document contains each funded program’s agency affiliation, priority area, 
award amount, and a summary of the program.  

15



 
Contract Amendments: On June 16, 2025, the DSC CFO requested to change the 
payout methodology for the PY25-26 Workforce Development and Retention 
contract from quarterly to twice per year based on feedback from staff. I developed 
the contract amendment and sent it for signature.  
 
Learning Opportunities: I am working with other  Board staff to develop a 
‘Quarterly Reports’ training course to offer to agency staff in the coming months. 
 
DISABILITY Resource Expo: The 2025 Disability Resource Expo is scheduled for 
October 18, 2025 at Market Place Mall. Expo Subcommittees have been formed and 
have begun meeting and planning is well underway.  
 
The Expo Steering Committee is tabling at several local festivals and events to 
spread the word about the upcoming event. 
 
I spent time at the Expo Storage facility to gather information for Kelli Martin, the 
Chair of the Expo Welcoming Committee. Ms. Martin inquired about items for the 
upcoming Expo. I will also return to the Expo Storage facility sometime before 
August to pull out the hand sanitizers to be distributed at the Unit 4 School Supply 
Giveaway at Market Place Mall.  
 
MHDDAC: I participated in the May meeting of the MHDDAC. Josh Gavel, Uniting 
Pride presented on the services provided by Uniting Pride. Darya Shahgheibi, GCAP 
presented on the services provided by GCAP. During the June MHDDAC meeting, 
agency representatives provided agency updates and discussed plans for the 
coming year. The MHDDAC takes the month of July off, meetings will resume in 
August.  
 
ACMHAI: I chaired the May and July I/DD Committee meetings. Discussion during 
the May meeting was centered around Robert Kennedy Jr. US Secretary of Health 
and Human Services threats to the autism community and for-profit agencies taking 
over group homes. The committee also discussed Governor Pritzker’s first-in-the-
nation executive order to block the federal government from collecting personal 
health data related to autism, a direct rebuke to the Trump administration. 
Community updates were also provided. 
 
During the July I/DD Committee meeting, the committee discussed the harm that 
will be done to millions of Americans who will lose Medicaid and SNAP benefits due 
to the recent passing of the reconciliation bill. The committee also discussed the 

16



State of Illinois’ summer 2025 PUNS selection. This selection will include every 
adult eligible for selection on PUNS that has been waiting more than 42 months. The 
committee discussed the DSP wage increase and the partial reduction and delay of 
DSP service hours in CILAs. Community updates were also provided. The next I/DD 
Committee meeting is scheduled for September 9, 2025. 
 
I attended the May, June, and July Executive Committee meetings.  
 
NACBHDD: I participated in the July I/DD Committee meeting. During the July 
meeting, discussion centered around the harm that will be done to millions of 
Americans who will lose Medicaid and SNAP benefits due to the recent passing of 
the reconciliation bill. 
 
Human Services Council: The Human Services Council takes the summer off. 
Meetings will resume in August. 
 
Champaign County Transition Planning Committee (TPC): The TPC takes the 
summer off, meetings will resume in September. 
 
Other: I participated in several webinars. 

17



Leon Bryson, Associate Director for Mental Health & Substance Use Disorders 

Staff Report- July 2025 

Summary of Activity 

In June, the CCMHB Executive Director and I developed and distributed PY26-27 contracts for 
twelve of our agencies. Agencies with PY25-26 terms were urged to update their PY26 
application forms, and submit letters of engagement with CPA firms by June 17th. There are a 
few agencies with outstanding Certificate of Insurance forms and Letter of Engagement 
documents. Reminder emails are being sent to those agencies. 

I have revised the PY2026 Funded MHB Programs Summaries document to include priorities, 
award amounts, and updated summaries. 

Contract Amendment/Action: On June 2nd, a contract amendment was approved by the board 
issued for the Rosecrance Criminal Justice PSC program. The Executive Agency Director sent a 
notification requesting termination of this contract as of June 30, 2025, with a stated intent of 
continuing services through other funding resources. 

On June 16th, a contract amendment was approved by the board and issued for the Champaign 
County Health Care Consumers PY26-27 CHW Outreach program, reflecting the correct name, 
which was processed through Adobe Sign. 

On June 22nd, a contract amendment was approved by the board and issued for the Rosecrance 
CCRT program, effective July 1, 2025. The amendment changes the Program Name from “Crisis 
Co-Response Team and Diversion Center” to “Crisis Co-Response Team;” updates the scope of 
services as necessary; and decreases the original contract maximum.  

ACMHAI Committee: On June 25th, I attended the ACMHAI Webinar: How Mental Health 
Boards and ROE/Schools Partner. Members heard presentations from Deborah Humphrey, 
Executive Director, Madison County Mental Health Board, Paula K. Bradford-Mueller, Director 
Special Education ROE #41, DRS – Youth Services Coordinator, and Kayla Arnolts, Regional 
Homeless Services & Program Support Specialist for ROE #17 serving DeWitt, Livingston, 
Logan, and McLean Counties 
 
CCMHDDAC Meeting:   June 23rd, members shared agency updates. There were no agency 
presentations.  
CIT Steering Committee: The CITSC meeting scheduled for June 4th has been cancelled 
because the committee facilitator and the Crisis Co-Response Team will be participating in a 
conference in Chicago at that time. The next meeting is scheduled for August 6th at 10am 
Brookens or Bennett Building. 

Continuum of Service Providers to the Homeless (CSPH): During the June 3rd meeting Katie 
Harmon, RPC shared Point-in-Time Count (PIT) number from January count. In 2025 there were 
169 ES sheltered, 130 TH sheltered, zero SH sheltered, and 56 unhoused for a total of 355 
homeless for Champaign, Urbana, Rantoul, Champaign County COC. Danielle Chynoweth, 
Cunningham Township Supervisor, noted that both Champaign and Urbana have experienced a 

18



rise in absent landlords, resulting in deteriorating housing conditions and a lack of available units 
for displaced tenants. She detailed the number of families and individuals in need of housing and 
outlined the funding sources and exit strategies for families collaborating with CTSO. Flyers and 
resource information were distributed to properties in both cities. Analyzed the demographics of 
families in detail. Danielle is set to distribute a report. 

Evaluation Capacity Committee Team: I am actively involved in monthly meetings with 
CDDB/CCMHB staff and Dr. Dariotis from the Family Resiliency Center, focusing on the 
Evaluation Capacity project. We discussed the evaluation team potentially collaborating with 
several agencies for PY26 and some revisions for the Performance Annual Outcomes form, 
micro-learning videos, and agency involvement in the work groups. 

Rantoul Service Provider’s Meeting: On June 16th, members provided updates. Attendance 
was low due to individuals going on vacation. The next meeting is on July 21st at 9am via zoom.  

Reentry Executive Committee & Council Meetings: The meetings of the Executive 
Committee and Council for May, June, and July have been cancelled. Rosecrance sent an email 
detailing that the meetings are currently being reorganized, and they will contact everyone once 
the plan is finalized. 

SOFTT/LAN Meeting: On June 27th, I participated in the Fatherhood forum organized by the 
SOFTT/LAN committee. The forum took place at the Champaign Public Library and included 
guest panelist Sam Hall, Mayor of Rantoul, Deshawn Williams, Mayor of Urbana, Jarrel Young 
from the Center for Youth and Family Solutions, Jeremy Smith from The Baby Fold, with 
Arnold Black of DCFS serving as the moderator. The forum centered on the theme of rewarding 
father resiliency. 

Youth Assessment Center Advisory Committee Meeting: On July 8th, I participated in the 
YAC committee meeting. The schedule for the YAC Advisory Committee meetings has been 
updated from quarterly to monthly to enhance ongoing communication and collaboration. 
Meetings will take place on the second Tuesday of every month at 10:00am, beginning on July 
8th. 

Other Activities:   

• On June 11th, Executive Director Canfield, Mr. Chris Wilson and I met with Immigrant 
Services C-U for the contract overview and process. 

• On June 12th, Executive Director Canfield, Mr. Chris Wilson and I met with GCAP for 
the contract overview and process. 

• On June 16th, Executive Director Canfield, Mr. Chris Wilson and I met with CAC for 
contract overview and pre-contract revisions.  

• On June 18th, I attended the NACBHDD and The Council on Quality and Leadership 
webinar: Promoting Informed Choice Through “The Three E’s” -- Education, Experience, 
and Exposure and improved quality of life outcomes. 

19



Stephanie Howard-Gallo 

 Operations and Compliance Coordinator Staff Report –                          

 July 2025 Board Meeting 
  
  
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY: 
 
4th Quarter Reporting: 
4th quarter financial and program reporting will be due at the end of 
August, giving the agencies an extra month to report.  
 
Other Compliance: 
I continue to contact agencies regarding submission of their approved 
Board minutes to us. 
 
Contracts:   
Agencies were required to submit a Certificate of Liability Insurance and 
an Audit Engagement Letter at the beginning of the contract year (July 
1). 
 
Audits: 
The Promise Healthcare audit was received on June 30, 2025.   
 
Annual Report: 
The CCMHB approved the 2024 Annual Report in May.  I sent the 
approved report to the Illinois General Assembly who represent 
Champaign County, and the public, through posting on the County’s site.  
It was also sent to the Department of Human Services—Mental Health 
Division. 
 
Community Awareness/Anti-Stigma Efforts/Alliance for Inclusion 
and Respect (AIR):   
I am contacting artists to see if they are interested in participating in the 
2025 Expo in October. 
 
Other: 

• Prepared meeting materials for CCMHB/CCDDB regular 
meetings, special meetings, and study sessions/presentations. 

 

20



• Attended meetings for the CCMHB/CCDDB. 
 

• Composed minutes for the CCMHB/CCDDB meetings. 
 

• Purging paper files that have been approved by the Illinois State 
Archives for disposal as we prepare for our move to the Bennett 
Building in Urbana in August. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



 

June/July 2025 
 Staff Report- Shandra Summerville  
Cultural and Linguistic Competence Coordinator  

CCMHB/DDB Cultural Competence Requirements for Annual 
CLC Plans connected to National CLAS (Culturally and 
Linguistically Appropriate Services) Standards  
 Annually for submitting CLC Plan with actions supporting the National CLAS Standards. Cultural 
Competence is a journey, and each organization is responsible for meeting the following requirements:  

1. Annual Cultural Competence Training- All training related to building skills around the values of 
CLC and ways to engage marginalized communities and populations that have experienced 
historical trauma, systematic barriers to receiving quality care. Each organization is responsible 
for completing and reporting on the training during PY24/PY25 

2. Recruitment of Diverse backgrounds and skills for Board of Director and Workforce- Report 
activities and strategies used to recruit diverse backgrounds for the board of directors and 
workforce to address the needs of target population that is explained in the program 
application.  

3. Cultural Competence Organizational or Individual Assessment/Evaluation- A self-assessment 
organizational should be conducted to assess the views and attitudes towards the culture of the 
people that are being served. This also can be an assessment that will identify bias and other 
implicit attitudes that prevent a person from receiving quality care. This can also include client 
satisfaction surveys to ensure the services are culturally responsive.   

4. Implementation of Cultural Competence Values/Trauma Informed Practices- The actions in the 
CLC Plan will identify actions that show how policies and procedures are responsive to a person 
culture and the well-being of employees/staff and clients being served. . This can also show how 
culturally responsive, and trauma informed practices are creating a sense of safety and positive 
outcomes for clients that are being served by the program.  

5. Outreach and Engagement of Underrepresented and Marginalized Communities defined in the 
criteria in the program application.  

6. Inter-Agency Collaboration- This action is included in the program application about how 
organizations collaborate with other organizations formally (Written agreements) and informally 
through activities and programs in partnership with other organizations. Meetings with other 
organizations without a specific activity or action as an outcome is not considered interagency 
collaboration.  

7. Language and Communication Assistance- Actions associated with CLAS Standards 5-8 must be 
identified and implemented in the Annual CLC Plan. The State of Illinois requires access an 
accommodation for language and communication access with qualified interpreters or language 
access lines based on the client’s communication needs. This includes print materials as assistive 
communication devices. 

22



 

National Enhanced CLAS Standards for Health and Healthcare Reading Materials 
 Here is the Link to the 15 Enhanced National CLAS Standards  

Here is the link to the Blueprint on how National CLAS Standards can be implemented at every level in 
an organization. CLAS Blueprint 

Agency Cultural and Linguistic Competence (CLC) Technical 
Assistance, Monitoring, Support and Training for CCMHB/DDB  
Agency Monitoring:  

Completed the Contract Provisions for PY 26 for organizations that had needed to make 
revisions for their CLC Plan. 

CAC- Meeting with new ED Scheduled for July 15 

Family Service Center- CLC Training July 22 

 

Anti-Stigma Activities/Community Collaborations and Partnerships  
Disability Resource Expo 

Will work C-U Days- Saturday August 9th  

Met with Volunteer Coordination Committee  

ACMHAI:  

I have officially started my Role as Co-Chair for the Children’s Behavioral Committee  

 

I also serve on the Executive Committee as well.  

Human Services Council –  

 
Recommended Resources:  
Online Spaces: A Double-Edged Sword for LGBTQ Young People of Color 

There will  study session August to talk about the resources available and the gaps in services 
for people in the LGBTQ Community 

23

https://acrobat.adobe.com/id/urn:aaid:sc:VA6C2:48a848ef-f827-4485-a35f-d8f210f3b3a6
https://thinkculturalhealth.hhs.gov/clas/blueprint
https://nihcm.org/publications/online-spaces-a-double-edged-sword-for-lgbtq-young-people-of-color?utm_source=NIHCM+Foundation&utm_campaign=90c78367c1-2023_Trevor_Project_Infographic_071923&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-fd11f08098-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D


2024

4001

01 0.00

03 0.00

04 0.00

06 0.00

4001 0.00

4008

01 49,194.21

4008 49,194.21

4009

02 0.00

4009 0.00

49,194.21

5020

01 212,682.00

07 4,333.00

25 1,987,170.00

5020 2,204,185.00

2,204,185.00

6001

01 0.00

6001 0.00

0.00TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0.00 10,000.00

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL 0.00 10,000.00

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

TRANSFERS IN                  0.00 10,000.00

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,560,932.00 5,518,336.00

SERVICES TOTAL 2,560,932.00 5,518,336.00

CONTRIBUTIONS & GRANTS        2,333,549.00 5,067,901.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         223,050.00 446,102.00

INSURANCE (NON-PAYROLL)       4,333.00 4,333.00

EXPENDITURES

SERVICES

TOTAL REVENUES 2,840,177.72 5,508,336.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES TOTAL 0.00 5,000.00

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE   0.00 5,000.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

INVESTMENT EARNINGS TOTAL 0.00 44,840.00

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

INVESTMENT INTEREST           0.00 44,840.00

PROPERTY TAX TOTAL 2,840,177.72 5,458,496.00

MOBILE HOME TAX               0.00 3,000.00

PROPERTY TAXES - BACK TAX     0.00 2,000.00

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES      370.21 4,000.00

PROPERTY TAX

PROPERTY TAXES - CURRENT      2,839,807.51 5,449,496.00

REVENUES

FUND DEPT 2108-050 : DEVLPMNTL DISABILITY FUND - DEVLMNTL DISABILITY BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2025    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  06

ACTUAL 2025ACTUAL

2025 ANNUAL

JAN - JUN BUDGETJAN - JUN

Report Total 1 of 2 
Page 1 of 2 

7/11/2025 2:18:46 PM

24



2024

FUND DEPT 2108-050 : DEVLPMNTL DISABILITY FUND - DEVLMNTL DISABILITY BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2025    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  06

ACTUAL 2025ACTUAL

2025 ANNUAL

JAN - JUN BUDGETJAN - JUN

2,154,990.79NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -279,245.72 0.00

Report Total 2 of 2 
Page 2 of 2 

7/11/2025 2:18:46 PM

25



2024

4008

01 12,273.28

4008 12,273.28

12,273.28

5010

17 0.00

5010 0.00

5020

01 0.00

25 143,002.00

5020 143,002.00

143,002.00

0.00

130,728.72NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 96,680.00 233,063.00

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0.00 0.00

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 96,680.00 239,063.00

SERVICES TOTAL 96,680.00 234,000.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         0.00 1,000.00

CONTRIBUTIONS & GRANTS        96,680.00 233,000.00

SERVICES

COMMODITIES TOTAL 0.00 5,063.00

COMMODITIES

EQUIPMENT LESS THAN $5000     0.00 5,063.00

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL REVENUES 0.00 6,000.00

INVESTMENT EARNINGS TOTAL 0.00 6,000.00

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

INVESTMENT INTEREST           0.00 6,000.00

REVENUES

FUND DEPT 2101-054 : I/DD SPECIAL INITIATIVES - CILA PROJECT

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2025    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  06

ACTUAL 2025ACTUAL

2025 ANNUAL

JAN - JUN BUDGETJAN - JUN

Report Total 1 of 1 
Page 1 of 1 

7/11/2025 2:18:46 PM

26



2024

4001

01 0.00

03 0.00

04 0.00

06 0.00

4001 0.00

4004

76 212,682.00

4004 212,682.00

4008

01 48,647.53

4008 48,647.53

4009

01 575.00

02 2,650.00

4009 3,225.00

264,554.53

5001

02 55,372.46

03 185,870.08

05 0.00

08 0.00

5001 241,242.54

5003

01 17,630.28

02 6,245.51

04 882.27WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANC 1,121.33 2,101.00

SOCIAL SECURITY-EMPLOYER      16,631.92 40,189.00

IMRF - EMPLOYER COST          7,131.02 14,237.00

FRINGE BENEFITS

SALARIES AND WAGES TOTAL 250,944.67 526,844.00

TEMPORARY STAFF               0.00 1,000.00

OVERTIME                      0.00 500.00

APPOINTED OFFICIAL SALARY     58,140.94 116,282.00

REGULAR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES   192,803.73 409,062.00

EXPENDITURES

SALARIES AND WAGES

TOTAL REVENUES 3,706,955.64 7,168,742.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES TOTAL 25,499.00 24,000.00

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE   24,474.00 23,000.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

GIFTS AND DONATIONS           1,025.00 1,000.00

INVESTMENT EARNINGS TOTAL 0.00 56,270.00

INVESTMENT INTEREST           0.00 56,270.00

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 223,050.00 446,102.00

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE

OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL       223,050.00 446,102.00

PROPERTY TAX TOTAL 3,458,406.64 6,642,370.00

MOBILE HOME TAX               0.00 4,200.00

PROPERTY TAXES - BACK TAX     0.00 2,000.00

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES      450.80 2,000.00

PROPERTY TAX

PROPERTY TAXES - CURRENT      3,457,955.84 6,634,170.00

REVENUES

FUND DEPT 2090-053 : MENTAL HEALTH - MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2025    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  06

ACTUAL 2025ACTUAL

2025 ANNUAL

JAN - JUN BUDGETJAN - JUN

Report Total 1 of 3 
Page 1 of 3 

7/11/2025 2:18:46 PM

27



2024

FUND DEPT 2090-053 : MENTAL HEALTH - MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2025    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  06

ACTUAL 2025ACTUAL

2025 ANNUAL

JAN - JUN BUDGETJAN - JUN

05 1,899.88

06 26,548.08

5003 53,206.02

5010

01 567.42

02 1,428.55

03 0.00

04 319.69

05 800.04

12 0.00

13 98.05

17 2,177.25

19 0.00

21 0.00

5010 5,391.00

5020

01 102,339.70

02 3,990.95

03 2,365.00

04 0.00

05 0.00

07 5,285.00

12 0.00

13 14,751.99

14 0.00

19 15.20

21 16,069.99

22 1,987.02

24 15,100.00

25 2,826,590.00

37 0.00

45 0.00

46 995.30

47 9,920.80

48 1,431.68

5020 3,000,842.63SERVICES TOTAL 2,776,587.79 6,442,920.00

SOFTWARE LICENSE & SAAS       10,915.17 14,000.00

PHONE/INTERNET                1,180.28 3,000.00

ATTORNEY/LEGAL SERVICES       0.00 2,500.00

EQUIP LEASE/EQUIP RENT        995.30 2,500.00

CONTRIBUTIONS & GRANTS        2,616,052.00 6,080,090.00

REPAIR & MAINT - BUILDING     0.00 100.00

OPERATIONAL SERVICES          1,843.55 5,000.00

PUBLIC RELATIONS              0.00 20,000.00

ADVERTISING, LEGAL NOTICES    0.00 12,000.00

DUES, LICENSE & MEMBERSHIP    16,969.99 20,000.00

RENT                          15,166.38 37,500.00

FINANCE CHARGES AND BANK FEES 0.00 30.00

INSURANCE (non-payroll)       5,285.00 20,000.00

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE       0.00 200.00

CONFERENCES AND TRAINING      530.00 4,000.00

TRAINING PROGRAMS             0.00 10,000.00

OUTSIDE SERVICES              4,160.25 10,000.00

TRAVEL COSTS                  3,582.22 9,000.00

SERVICES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         99,907.65 193,000.00

COMMODITIES TOTAL 2,945.30 23,835.00

EMPLOYEE DEVELOP/RECOGNITION  0.00 285.00

EQUIPMENT LESS THAN $5000     0.00 7,500.00

OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES          0.00 3,000.00

UNIFORMS/CLOTHING             0.00 1,000.00

DIETARY NON-FOOD SUPPLIES     96.87 250.00

POSTAGE, UPS, FEDEX           572.15 2,000.00

FOOD NON-TRAVEL               1,059.24 1,500.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES               930.29 4,000.00

BOOKS, PERIODICALS, AND MANUAL 0.00 300.00

COMMODITIES

STATIONERY AND PRINTING       286.75 4,000.00

FRINGE BENEFITS TOTAL 48,018.90 165,143.00

EE HEALTH/LIFE                21,024.04 106,877.00

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE        2,110.59 1,739.00

Report Total 2 of 3 
Page 2 of 3 

7/11/2025 2:18:46 PM

28



2024

FUND DEPT 2090-053 : MENTAL HEALTH - MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2025    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  06

ACTUAL 2025ACTUAL

2025 ANNUAL

JAN - JUN BUDGETJAN - JUN

3,300,682.19

7001

01 0.00

7001 0.00

0.00

3,036,127.66NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -628,458.98 0.00

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0.00 -10,000.00

OTHER FINANCING USES TOTAL 0.00 -10,000.00

TRANSFERS OUT                 0.00 -10,000.00

OTHER FINANCING USES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,078,496.66 7,158,742.00

Report Total 3 of 3 
Page 3 of 3 

7/11/2025 2:18:46 PM

29



 

Champaign County  
Board for Care and Treatment of Persons with a Developmental Disability  

 
dba  CHAMPAIGN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES BOARD 

 
BY-LAWS 

 
 Adopted by the CCDDB 1/4/05.  Amended 12/5/06 and 7/23/14 and 6/23/2021 and 1/22/2025.   

  
I.   PURPOSE AND FUNCTIONS: 
 

A. The Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) is established 
under the Illinois Community Care for Persons With Developmental Disabilities 
Act (IL Compiled Statutes, Chapter 50, Sections 835/0.01 to 835/14 inclusive)  in 
order to  “provide facilities or services for the benefit of its residents who are 
persons with intellectual or developmental disabilities and who are not eligible to 
participate in any such program conducted under Article 14 of the School Code, or 
may contract therefor with any privately or publicly operated entity which provides 
facilities or services either in or out of such governmental unit.” 

 
B. In order to accomplish these purposes, the CCDDB performs the following 

functions: 
 

1. Planning for the intellectual and developmental disabilities services system 
to assure accomplishment of the CCDDB goals. 

 
2. Allocation of local funds to assure the provision of a comprehensive system 

of community based intellectual and developmental disabilities services. 
 

3. Coordination of affiliated providers of services for individuals with 
intellectual and/or developmental disabilities to assure an inter-related 
accessible system of care. 

 
4. Evaluation of the system of care to assure that services are provided as 

planned and that services are effective in meeting the needs and values of 
the community. 

 
C. The CCDDB shall perform those duties and responsibilities as specified in Sections 

835/0.01 to 835/14 inclusive of The Community Care for Persons with 
Developmental Disabilities Act.  
 

D. Nothing in these By-laws alters the authorities and obligations codified in state or 
federal law.   

 
II. MEMBERSHIP: 
 

A. The membership of the CCDDB shall include the maximum allowed by statute.  

30



 

 
B. The members of the CCDDB shall be appointed by the presiding officer of the 

Champaign County Board, with the advice and consent of the Champaign County 
Board and its Personnel Committee. The CCDDB may recommend nominees for 
membership. Candidates apply through the County’s publicly announced process. 

 
 

C. Members of the CCDDB shall be residents of Champaign County and, as nearly as 
possible, be representative of interested groups of the community concerned with 
developmental disabilities, as well as the general public. No member of the 
CCDDB may be a full-time or part-time employee of the Illinois Department of 
Human Services - Division of Developmental Disabilities (DHS/DDD) or a Board 
member or employee of any facility or service operating under contract to the 
CCDDB. The term of office for each member shall be three (3) years. All terms 
shall be measured from the first day of July within the calendar year of appointment. 
Vacancies shall be filled for an expired term in the same manner as original 
appointments. 

 
D. Any member of the CCDDB may be removed by the appointing officer.  
 

 
III. MEETINGS: 
 

A. The CCDDB shall meet, at a minimum, annually in July. The CCDDB may meet 
each month as necessary at such time and location as the CCDDB shall designate. 
Per the Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 et seq.), a change in the regular meeting 
dates is to be properly posted for the public a minimum of 10 days prior to the 
meeting. 

 
B. The CCDDB may meet in Study Session during the intervals between monthly 

meetings to receive reports, discuss issues, and develop recommendations on 
matters brought to it by the Executive Director and the President. 

 
C. Special meetings may be called by the President or upon the written request by any 

member to conduct such business that cannot be delayed until a regular meeting 
date. The purpose of the meeting may be to address matters brought by the 
Executive Director or any member of the CCDDB. 

 
D. The Executive Director shall prepare an agenda for all meetings of the CCDDB and 

shall cause the notice of the meeting and the agenda to be sent to all members at 
least five (5) days in advance of the meeting - except in the case of 
special/emergency meetings wherein forty-eight (48) hours’ notice shall suffice. 

 
E. Public notices and the conduct of all meetings shall be in conformance with the 

Illinois Open Meetings Act. Notice/agenda for each meeting shall be posted on the 
Champaign County website and in the physical location of the meeting and shall be 

31



 

continuously available for public review during the 48-hour period preceding the 
meeting. 

 
F. The presence of a majority of members shall constitute a quorum for any meeting 

of the CCDDB. For a member to attend a meeting by other means than physical 
presence (e.g. by video or audio conference), a majority of members must be 
physically present at the properly-noticed meeting, and a majority of physically 
present members must agree to allow the electronic attendance. Such attendance 
may only be due to: personal illness or disability; employment purposes or CCDDB 
business; unexpected childcare obligations; or a family or other emergency. A 
member wishing to attend a meeting by other means must notify the Board before 
the meeting unless advance notice is impractical. Provisions for a quorum of 
members to attend the meeting by other means, due to a declared disaster, are set 
forth in the Illinois Open Meetings Act. These By-laws affirm the Developmental 
Disabilities Board’s intent to exercise flexibilities as the law allows. 

 
 
IV. OFFICERS: 
 

A. The officers of the CCDDB shall be a President and a Secretary. 
 

B. Election of the officers shall take place at the July meeting of the CCDDB. 
 

C. Officers shall be elected for one year, with term beginning upon election and ending 
no later than August 1 of the following year. No member shall hold the same office 
for more than three (3) consecutive years, except that officers may remain in their 
then current positions until their successors can be chosen. 

 
D. Duties of Officers: 

 
1. President: 

 
Subject to the control and direction of the CCDDB, the President shall 
maintain a current general overview of the affairs and business of the 
CCDDB. The President shall have the privilege of voting in all actions by 
the CCDDB. 

 
2. Secretary: 

 
The Secretary shall act in place of the President in the latter’s absence.  The 
Secretary shall attest to the accuracy of the minutes of the CCDDB 
meetings. 

   
3. The President, Secretary, or a member as designated by the President shall 

have the authority to sign all legal documents approved by the CCDDB. 
 

32



 

4.  The President may make, with the advice and consent of the CCDDB, 
temporary appointments of interested citizens to assist the Board in 
fulfilling designated responsibilities or to perform certain functions or tasks. 

 
V. STAFF: 
 

The CCDDB shall engage the services of an Executive Director who, subject to the control 
and direction of the Board, shall have general charge, oversight, and directions of the affairs 
and business of the CCDDB and shall be its responsible managing head.  The Executive 
Director shall have the responsibility for the employment and discharge of staff pursuant 
to the provisions of applicable personnel policies. The Executive Director shall have the 
authority to sign on behalf of the CCDDB all necessary papers pursuant to CCDDB action 
and shall have the authority with the endorsement of the President to make contracts and 
expenditures within the approved program and budget. The Executive Director or delegate 
shall attend all meetings of CCDDB. The Executive Director shall also be liaison between 
the CCDDB, staff, and affiliated agencies and implement policies regarding 
communications between them. 

 
VI. FISCAL AND GRANT YEARS: 
 

A. The fiscal year of the CCDDB shall be the same as that of the County of 
Champaign, i.e., January 1 through December 31. 

 
B. CCDDB contracts for Intellectual and Developmental Disability programs and 

facilities shall be for the same fiscal year as the State of Illinois, i.e., July 1 through 
June 30. 

 
VII. RULES OF ORDER: 
 

“Roberts’ Rules of Order” shall be followed in deliberations of the Board unless otherwise 
precluded by these By-laws. 
 

VIII. CHANGE OF BY-LAWS: 
 

Any or all of these By-laws may be altered, amended or repealed by a majority vote of the 
Board at any regular or special meeting, provided that written notice of the proposed action 
is given in the call to the meeting and that a quorum is present. 

33



 
  

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
DATE:  July 23, 2025 
TO:  Members, Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) 
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director  
SUBJECT: Review of Strategic Plan, Funding Priorities, and Application Process 

Background 
 
The purpose of this memorandum is to set the stage for evaluating and planning Champaign 
County’s system of supports and services for its residents who have Intellectual and 
Developmental Disabilities (I/DD). Strategic plans and objectives and annual funding 
priorities are typically reviewed during the fall, as the Board establishes priorities and 
decision support criteria for Program Year 2027 (July 1, 2026 to June 30, 2027) and updates 
objectives for 2026 for the Three-Year Plan (January 1 to December 31, 2026).  
 
In 2018, we joined the Regional Vermilion-Champaign Executive Committee to complete 
community health needs assessments and health plans. For most of this Committee’s 
partners, these activities are completed every three years. As of July 1, the collaboration is 
informal, as the health clinics and hospitals opted to discontinue. We continue to engage 
with representatives of the CU Public Health District, the Champaign County Community 
Coalition, United Way, and other local funders, to improve our understanding of the needs 
of Champaign County residents 
 
The needs assessment survey, focus groups, and public hearings were completed last year, 
and their results compiled. During a large open meeting in April 2025, community members 
reviewed these findings and selected four top priorities: Healthy Behaviors and Wellness; 
Violence Prevention: Behavioral Health; and Access to Healthcare. Each priority is the topic 
of a newly formed working group, and each group meets to discuss strategies for addressing 
the priority. Our staff have attended many of these meetings, and we look forward to using 
these efforts to support the CCDDB’s planning activities.  
 
In August of 2023 and in September 2024, the CCDDB and Champaign County Mental 
Health Board (CCMHB) held joint study sessions to learn from I/DD advocates about 
resources they use and areas for improvement. Comments from these sessions are featured 
in funding priorities documents for both PY2025 and PY2026. A similar joint study session 
is planned for September 2025.   
 
The Allocation Priorities and Decision Support Criteria will be reviewed and updated in 
advance of open application process for PY2027 funding. These priorities and criteria are 
developed and considered on an annual basis, to support the Board’s mission. 

34



Technical modifications and content revisions of our application and reporting system 
and forms have been made to improve clarity and to align with what the Board is seeking 
from funded programs as well as the outcomes sought by participants. 
 

CCDDB Strategic Plan Goals, 2022-2025 
 
The full strategic plan with current year objectives is posted online. 
 
A COORDINATED AND ACCESSIBLE CONTINUUM OF SERVICES AND 
SUPPORTS 
1. Support a continuum of services to meet the needs of people with intellectual 

and/or developmental disabilities (I/DD), along with their families, residing in 
Champaign County. 
Eight objectives for 2025: 
Solicit proposals through competitive process; encourage use of models connected to input from people 
served; promote wellness and access to care; identify outcomes of value to people served; expand 
residential and employment support; fund services not otherwise covered; in other collaborations, add 
consideration of the needs of people with I/DD; support flexible service options.  
 

2. Sustain the commitment to improving outcomes for members of underrepresented 
and underserved populations.  
Five objectives for 2025: 
Culturally responsive support groups; technical assistance for CLC; training and professional 
development toward CLC; trauma-informed practice; support best health outcomes for all. 
 

3. Improve access to and engagement in services through increased coordination 
among providers, community stakeholders, people with I/DD, their families, and 
other key supporters. 
Five objectives for 2025: 
Host learning and networking opportunities; collaborate with local funders and stakeholders; in 
justice related collaborations, advocate for and with people with I/DD; use public input to advocate 
for system change; track unmet needs by PUNS and local assessments. 
 

4. Encourage high-quality person-centered planning and follow-through for people 
served by funding from the CCDDB and, through the Intergovernmental Agreement, 
from the CCMHB. 
Five objectives for 2025: 
Support PCP implementation and conflict free case management; focus on personal outcomes in 
PCPs; identify measures consistent with people’s valued outcomes; track service utilization through 
online system; assess use of PCPs to learn preferences of those not using public forums. 
 

5. Continue the collaborative working relationship with the Champaign County Mental 
Health Board (CCMHB). 
Four objectives for 2025: 
Maximize resources; with people with I/DD, improve access to integrated settings; promote 
inclusion; coauthorize use of I/DD Special Initiatives fund. 

 
CHILDREN AND FAMILY FOCUSED PROGRAMS  
6. Identify children at-risk of developmental delay or disability and support early 

intervention services and family supports. 
Two objectives for 2025: 

35

https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/mhbddb/PDFS/DDB_3YR_Plan_2022-2025_w_FY25.pdf


Support evidence-based/informed treatment for young children; promote culturally responsive 
supports and reduce disparities in care for young children. 
 

7. Support access to services and programs for youth and adults with I/DD, with a 
preference for evidence-based practices to increase positive outcomes. 
Two objectives for 2025: 
Improve transition from school to adult services; flexible support for those in transition. 

 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND ADVOCACY 
8. Promote inclusion and respect of people with I/DD, through broad based 

community education efforts. 
Seven objectives for 2025: 
AIR and Expo and student projects; promote other community awareness initiatives; self-advocate 
and family support networks; seek and share self-advocate input; support meaningful work and 
non-work community experiences; develop user-friendly resource information; promote local resources. 
 

9. Stay abreast of emerging issues affecting service and support systems and access to 
services and be proactive through concerted advocacy efforts. 
Seven objectives for 2025: 
Workforce stabilization; track class action cases/consent decrees; monitor changes in Medicaid 
waivers and managed care; help develop the system redesign; advocate for increased state funding and 
improved system; encourage highest quality personal outcomes; monitor local transition to new ISC. 
 

Program Year 2026 CCDDB Priorities 
 
The full PY26 approved funding priorities document is posted online. Board discussions and 
information shared during the joint study session (zoom recording linked here) helped shape 
these priorities. Self-advocates, family members, and their networks are critical to CCDDB 
efforts. Allocation decisions for PY26 are summarized in this publicly posted document. 
 
PRIORITY: Advocacy and Linkage 
Two PY26 programs, through two agencies, with total cost $925,042 
In the spirit of “nothing about us without us,” PY25 categories merge which should be as 
closely related as possible: “Self-Advocacy” and “Linkage and Coordination.” The former 
had pointed to family support and self-advocacy groups, but in recent years these groups 
have relied on unpaid members, making contract requirements more challenging. Meanwhile 
other self-advocacy and family support groups have been hosted by provider agencies 
through contracts aligned with the “Community Life” priority category. By merging Self-
Advocacy and Linkage and Coordination, we continue to value smaller organizations while 
encouraging professionals to include self-advocates and their supporters in all service 
planning, referral, linkage, coordination, and monitoring activities. 
 

“I like the things we do for self-advocacy. I like g iving presentations. We’re 
encouraged to share our experiences and Community Choices staff help us 
put down our words so we remember what we want to share.” – Tobie 
Advocates Sarah, Wendy, and Patty mentioned participating in the Speak Up Speak Out 
Summit, Best Buddies, and other special events. 

 
PRIORITY: Home Life 

36

https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/mhbddb/PDFS/DDB%20PY26%20Funding%20Priorities%20and%20Criteria.pdf
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/mhbddb/agendas/ddb/2024/240925_Study_Session/240925_Zoom.mp4
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/mhbddb/PDFS/CCDDB_PY26_Allocations_APPROVED.pdf


Two PY26 programs, through two agencies, with total cost $861,000 
People who have I/DD should have housing and home life matched to their needs and 
preferences. Individualized supports may include: 

- assistance for finding, securing, and maintaining a home, 
- preparing to live more independently or with different people, and 
- given the limitations of community living options through the Medicaid waiver 

programs, creative approaches for those who qualify for but have not yet been 
‘selected’ to receive these services. 

PRIORITY: Personal Life 
Four PY26 programs, through three agencies, with total cost $871,972 
People who have I/DD can choose supports which lead them to personal success in the 
least segregated environment. These might include: 

- assistive equipment, accessibility supports, and training in how to use technology, 
including electronic devices, apps, virtual meeting platforms, social media, and the 
internet, and how to ensure online privacy and security, 

- speech or occupational therapy, 
- respite or personal support in the individual’s home or setting of their choice, 
- training toward increased self-sufficiency in personal care, and 
- strategies to improve physical and mental wellness. 

“People also mentioned some practical medical things - like replacing some teeth 
for example, saving money to do that, knowing where to go, and booking the 
appointment.” - Tiffany 

 
PRIORITY: Work Life 
Three PY26 programs, through two agencies, with total cost $881,500 
People with I/DD who are interested in working or volunteering in the community may find 
opportunities through individualized support. Well-matched community employment should 
help people feel less isolated and safer, due to relationships formed at work or even on the 
way to work, and should allow them to hone and contribute their talents. Focused on 
aspirations and abilities, the most integrated settings, people may benefit from: 

- job development, matching, and coaching in the actual work setting, 
- technology to enhance work performance and reduce on-site coaching, 
- community employment internships, paid by the program rather than the employer, 

especially for people who would have used traditional day program, 
- support for a path to self-employment or business ownership, 
- transportation assistance, and 
- education of employers about the benefits of working with people who have I/DD 

which then results in work for people with I/DD. 

“Job coaches for employment and the LEAP program. I think a lot of people 
need help finding jobs they’re able to do and like.” – Ryan 
 

PRIORITY: Community Life 
Three PY26 programs, through two agencies, with total cost $1,340,000 
People with I/DD deserve the fullest social and community life they choose. Person-
centered, family-driven, and culturally responsive support might offer: 

37



- development of social or mentoring opportunities, 
- transportation assistance, 
- social and communication skill building, including through technology, 
- connection to resources which are available to community members who do not 

have I/DD, both in-person and in digital spaces, and 
- access to recreation, hobbies, leisure, or worship activities, matched to the person’s 

preferences, both in-person and in digital spaces.  

“Paying for tickets or expenses to do fun things in the community” - Ryan 
“Membership fees at community groups like Makerspace or gyms and studios.”  
- Tiffany 
Patty expressed the desire to go to a Bears game. Eric had an interest in classes to learn to speak other 
languages so he can be more helpful to Chinese, Japanese, or Spanish speakers when he’s working at 
Home Depot.  

 
PRIORITY: Strengthening the I/DD Workforce 
Two PY26 programs, through two agencies, with total cost $292,000 
Insufficient community-based service capacity remains a barrier to success and wellness for 
many people with I/DD and their supporters. Although the endangered direct support 
workforce and turnover in other roles could trap us in survival mode, advocates and 
providers hold modest goals to be innovative, culturally responsive, and focused fully on ‘the 
person.’ Agencies may propose strategies to improve staff knowledge of access to and use of 
technology for the benefit of the people they serve, attract new workers to the field, preserve 
current service capacity, and strengthen and diversify the workforce to meet the needs of all 
eligible residents of Champaign County. Solutions might include: 

- social media and traditional media campaign informing middle school and high 
school students of the I/DD professions and opportunities, 

- regular retention payments with a performance standard, 
- intermittent payments for exceptional work, 
- group and individual staff membership in trade associations which respect the I/DD 

workforce and offer networking and advocacy opportunities, 
- trainings, including on technology use/access, which add to direct staff skills and 

promote greater independence for people with I/DD, and 
- high quality trainings and certifications specific to staff roles, with recognition and 

payment at completion. 
 
PRIORITY: Collaboration with the CCMHB: Young Children and their Families  
Three PY26 programs, through three agencies, with total cost $934,945 
Following the global pandemic, providers of services to young children have seen increases 
in developmental and social-emotional needs. Early identification and treatment can lead to 
great gains later in life. Services and supports not covered by Early Intervention or under the 
School Code may be pivotal for young children and their families and might include: 

– coordinated, home-based services addressing all areas of development and taking 
into consideration the qualities and preferences of the family, 

– early identification of delays through consultation with childcare providers, pre-
school educators, medical professionals, and other service providers, 

– coaching to strengthen personal and family support networks, and 

38



– maximization of individual and family gifts and capacities, to access community 
associations, resources, and learning spaces. 
 

Other Collaboration with the CCMHB: I/DD Special Initiatives Fund 
PRIORITY: Community Life  
One PY26 program with total annual cost $232,033  
Through the Boards’ intergovernmental agreement, the Champaign County Mental Health 
Board (CCMHB) has funded programs which complement those addressing the behavioral 
health of very young children and their families, and for which service providers collaborate 
as a System of Care for children and families. Another collaboration of the Boards is the 
I/DD Special Initiatives Fund, supporting short-term special projects to improve the system 
of services. Short term projects piloting a unique solution or purchasing non-service 
supports will fit with the I/DD Special Initiatives Fund. 
 

Application Process 
 
A timeline is posted online as “Important Dates” and is included in all board packets, which 
includes meeting dates and broad topics related to setting priorities, inviting applications for 
funding, reviewing submitted applications, and considering recommendations for awards. 
This timeline has been developed to allow for adequate public notice, clarity on when 
agencies apply for funding (and when any related reports will be due), time for staff review 
and board consideration, and development of subsequent contracts for services. Each year 
adjustments are made to the application forms and instructions. 
 
For PY2025 and PY2026 applications, the system was opened earlier than usual, giving 
agencies two additional weeks to review and complete all requirements. The timeline for 
PY2027 anticipates a similar earlier opening, pending board approval of annual funding 
priorities and any adjustments to the system. To improve the review processes which follow 
submission of proposals for PY27 funding, the open application period will end a few days 
earlier than in recent years. The Board meeting schedule itself may shift for practical reasons, 
which impacts activities on the timeline. 
 
Given that the CCDDB and CCMHB will hear from self-advocates in September, receiving 
input which shapes the PY2027 funding priorities, we will concentrate on revisions as 
quickly as possible, to launch the application cycle in late December.  
 

Next Steps 
 
The September board meeting packet will include a new DRAFT Three Year Plan for 2026-
2028 with objectives for 2026. This will be distributed to providers and stakeholders for 
input, and a final draft presented in November for board consideration. No change is 
suggested to this process.  
 
A draft document of priorities for funding for Program Year 2027 is scheduled for 
presentation to the board in September or October. Feedback from self-advocates and 

39



board members in late September should be incorporated and a final draft presented in 
November or December. If additional discussion is needed, the Board may call a special 
meeting or study session. In addition, CCDDB and CCMHB members are welcome to join 
each other’s meetings and may be especially interested in discussions of priorities.  
 
Some changes to the application system require assistance from the system’s developer. 
Currently under discussion is a revised year-end Outcomes Report built into the system 
rather than a separate document to be downloaded, completed, and uploaded. Staff will 
update the application instructions document and instructions which are internal to the 
online system. Staff, Board, and public input will inform changes. Some program plan 
narrative questions were modified last year, to help the Board and staff determine best 
values. These (and other) questions might be further improved.  
 
Changes to the Board’s process for reviewing applications could include the addition of 
‘hearings’ early in the cycle, during which agencies would briefly inform the Board about 
each funding request. Board members could use early information to develop questions for 
their more formal reviews which typically take place in April. Board members might suggest 
improvements to the CCDDB staff review template and process. 
 
Agency representatives and members of the public may share input on desired changes in 
the content of applications or the process of review; opportunities to do so include through 
the evaluation capacity building team and activities, during board meetings, or to CCDDB 
staff directly.  
 

40



CCDDB and CCMHB I/DD Funding PY2026

July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 Requests Awards plus Continug Continuing Award
 Awards Plus 
Continuing

PY26 PY26 PY26 PY26

Agency Program Name all 3 funds CCDDB IDDSI CCMHB

Priority: Advocacy and Linkage

CCRPC - Community Services Decision Support PCP $425,042 $425,042

DSC Service Coordination $500,000 $500,000

The Autism Program at UIUC The Autism Program UIUC $87,186 $0

Priority: Home Life

Community Choices, Inc. Inclusive Community Support (formerly Community Li $233,000 $233,000

DSC Community Living (formerly Apartment Services) $628,000 $628,000

Priority: Personal Life

Community Choices, Inc. Transportation Support $243,000 $243,000

DSC Clinical Services $263,000 $263,000

DSC Individual & Family Support $320,000 $320,000

PACE Consumer Control in Personal Support $45,972 $45,972

Parkland College District 505 Parkland College OT at Head Start West $70,959 $0

Priority: Work Life

Community Choices, Inc. Customized Employment $256,000 $256,000

DSC Community Employment $523,000 $523,000

DSC/Community Choices Employment First $102,500 $102,500

Priority: Community Life

Community Choices, Inc. Self-Determination Support $228,000 $228,000

DSC Community First $990,000 $990,000

DSC Connections $122,000 $122,000

CCRPC Community Life Short Term Assistance $232,033 $232,033

Priority: Strengthening the I/DD Workforce

Community Choices Staff Recruitment and Retention $48,000 $48,000

DSC Workforce Development and Retention (PY25-PY26 $244,000 $244,000

Priority: Young Children and their Families (CCMHB focus)

DSC Family Development $702,000 $702,000

CC Head Start/Early Head Start Early Childhood Mental Health Svs (MH & DD) $216,800 $216,800

CU Early CU Early $16,145 $16,145

(amounts listed are for DD portion of MHB contracts)  -  -

TOTAL $6,496,637 $5,171,514 $232,033 $934,945
Total allocations to I/DD programs = $6,338,492

41



 
DECISION MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: July 23, 2025 
TO:  Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB)  
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director 
SUBJECT:  Renewal of 2-1-1 MOU with United Way 
 
Background:  
The purpose of this memorandum is to seek approval for renewal of the cost-sharing 
agreement with United Way of Champaign County (UWCC) for 2-1-1 information and 
referral services contracted between UWCC and United Way of the Midlands (UWM), 
which has provided this service since UWCC’s agreement with PATH, Inc. ended. A 
draft updated agreement is attached. The CCDDB and Champaign County Mental 
Health Board (CCMHB) have supported this service since its launch in Champaign 
County. 2-1-1 is a project of United Way Worldwide.  
 
Budget Impact: 
The cost of the Champaign County contract has been shared equally by United Way 
of Champaign County and the CCMHB/CCDDB, which in turn split the total cost as 
defined by their Intergovernmental Agreement, which is currently at 57.85% and 
42.15% respectively. $2,000 is the proposed annual amount to be contributed to 
UWCC by the CCMHB and CCDDB from 2026 through 2029. This may be paid in 
full or in quarterly installments from CCMHB Professional Services and included with 
costs the CCDDB covers by transfer to the CCMHB. If all agree, the amount paid by 
CCMHB would be $1,157 and by CCDDB, $843. 
 
Decision Section: 
Motion to approve the attached Memorandum of Understanding with United Way of 
Champaign County for 2-1-1 Services at an annual cost of $2,000, pending similar 
approval by the CCMHB, and to authorize the Executive Director and Board Officer 
to enter into the agreement. 

______ Approved 
______ Denied 
______ Modified 
______ Additional Information Needed 

42

https://www.unitedway.org/our-impact/featured-programs/2-1-1


 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

United Way of Champaign County (UWCC) 
and 

Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB) 
and 

Champaign County Board for the Care and Treatment of Persons with 
a Developmental Disability, referred to as “Champaign County 

Developmental Disabilities Board” (CCDDB) 
 

2-1-1 Information and Referral Services 
 
 
The United Way of Champaign County (UWCC) and the Champaign County Mental Health Board 
(CCMHB)/Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) are the primary 
community-based local funders of human services in Champaign County and as such have 
collaborated to assure information and referral services are available and accessible to the 
citizens of Champaign County, through various programs and then through 2-1-1 Information and 
Referral Services to improve access and efficiency and maximize community impact.  
 
The Parties hereby enter into this Memorandum of Understanding to delineate the respective 
roles, responsibilities, and financial obligations associated with operation of 2-1-1 Information and 
Referral Services, as contracted directly by the United Way of Champaign County (UWCC), 
Illinois with the United Way of the Midlands (UWM).  
 
The Parties agree to the following terms and conditions to implement this Memorandum of 
Understanding: 
 

1. UWCC will contract with UWM for the provision of 2-1-1 Information and Referral Services 
for the people of Champaign County. The CCMHB/CCDDB shall not be a party to the 
contract between UWCC and UWM. 

2. The CCMHB/CCDDB shall provide funding to UWCC for 2-1-1 Information and Referral 
Services. The annual amount to be paid shall be $2,000 (for each year, from 2026 through 
2029) and shall be paid either in full or in quarterly installments. If revenue from other 
funders becomes available to support 2-1-1 Information and Referral Services, the share 
paid by the CCMHB/CCDDB shall be equal to but shall not exceed the share paid by 
UWCC. The Parties agree that the contract maximum between UWCC and UWM will not 
exceed $4,000. If UWCC determines that the contract will exceed this amount, 
CCMHB/CCDDB will be contacted immediately and advised of the contract maximum. At 
that point, CCMHB/CCDDB has the option to terminate this Memorandum of 
Understanding immediately. 

3. All relevant documents pertaining to the contract for 2-1-1 Information and Referral 
Services between UWCC and UWM shall be provided to the CCMHB/CCDDB in a timely 
manner. If the CCMHB and/or CCDDB seek additional documents, UWCC will provide 
them upon request if such documents exist and if UWCC has access to them. 

4. UWCC shall identify the CCMHB and CCDDB as partners in the provision of 2-1-1 
Information and Referral Services in news releases, press conferences, and any written 
material made available to the public. 

43



5. UWCC hereby expressly agrees and covenants to hold harmless and indemnify the 
CCMHB/CCDDB, their Boards, employees, representatives, agents, assigns and 
successors from any and all liability, claims of liability or legal action or threat thereof by 
other parties arising out of this contract, the contract with UWM, or the provision of the 
information for or services identified, derived from or initiated as a result of the 2-1-1 
Information and Referral Services.  CCMHB and CCDDB are solely funding sources as 
outlined herein and are undertaking to provide no services and assume no liability. 

 
Either Party may terminate this Memorandum of Understanding with 90 days’ written notice to the 
other. Upon the mutual written consent of the Parties, this Memorandum of Understanding may 
be terminated sooner. UWCC may terminate this Memorandum of Understanding immediately on 
written notice to CCMHB/CCDDB if UWCC terminates its contract with UWM, for cause under 
Section 1.3 thereof.  UWCC may also terminate this Memorandum of Understanding on 60 days’ 
written notice to CCMHB/CCDDB if its contract with UWM is terminated by either party for 
convenience under Section 1.4 thereof.  
 
Nothing contained herein serves to limit, alter, or amend either Party’s duties, rights or 
responsibilities as set out in Federal and State statutes, laws, or regulations. 
 
In witness were of, the Parties have caused this Memorandum of Understanding to be executed 
by their authorized representatives on this _____day of ______, 2025. 
 
 
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 
By 
 
 
Board Chair 
 
 
Executive Director 
 
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES BOARD 
By 
 
 
Board Chair 
 
 
Executive Director 
 
 
UNITED WAY OF CHAMPAIGN COUNTY 
 
 
Board Chair 
 
 
CEO 

44



45



46



47



48



 
DECISION MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: July 23, 2025 
TO:  Members, Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) 
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director 
SUBJECT:  FY2026 Champaign County CCDDB and I/DD Special Initiatives Fund Budgets 

Overview:  
 
This memorandum presents DRAFT budgets for the Champaign County Mental Health Board 
(CCMHB), Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB), and I/DD Special 
Initiatives Funds for County Fiscal Year 2026 (January 1 - December 31, 2026). Board approval 
is requested for the CCDDB and I/DD Special Initiatives Fund budgets. The CCMHB budget is 
for information only. 
 
These drafts form the basis for staff planning and may be revised later in the year based on 
updates from the County Executive, Administrator, and Budget Director, as revenue and 
expense estimates change. Initial drafts are submitted to the County’s online systems (Munis and 
PADS) for the Champaign County Board’s August budget hearings. Final budgets will be 
presented during their appropriations process in November. Because the CCDDB and CCMHB 
each have authority over their budgets, subsequent approvals will be requested prior to 
submission of any revised budgets to the County Board. 
 
Attached are proposed 2026 CCMHB, CCDDB, and I/DD Special Initiative Fund Budgets, 
with background details including comparisons of proposed 2026, projected 2025, and actual 
revenues and expenditures for fiscal years 2014 through 2024. The Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the CCMHB and CCDDB defines cost sharing and other arrangements. 
The I/DD Special Initiatives Fund Budget is under joint authority of the Boards. 
 

Highlights of All Draft Versions:  
 

• Projected 2026 property tax revenue assumes 3.5% growth over 2025 for the CCDDB 
and CCMHB, with no adjustment for collection rate below 100%.  

• Miscellaneous Revenue includes revenue returned by agencies in a different fiscal year 
than paid (CCDDB and CCMHB budgets). 

• Miscellaneous Revenue also includes Expo revenue and any refunds or honoraria. These 
are paid to the CCMHB and then split between the Boards (CCMHB budget). 

• Contributions & Grants are the largest expense in each budget, as they include contracts 
with organizations for services to populations of focus (all three budgets). 

49



• Neither Board will transfer an amount to the I/DD Special Initiatives Fund, but both 
will be asked to approve use of fund balance to cover 2026 expenses. 

• The I/DD Special Initiatives budget is based on joint decisions by the Boards regarding 
allocations to providers for special projects. 

• Some CCMHB expenses are not shared by the CCDDB (MHB Contributions & Grants 
and MHB-specific insurance, for example). 

• Some expenditure categories have changed as the County’s Chart of Accounts is adjusted 
to conform with government accounting standards (CCMHB budget). 

• Expo consultant charges and other costs are included with other Professional Services, 
Rental, Printing, Advertising, Operational Supplies, and Uniforms. The 
CCDDB/CCMHB Financial Manager has set these up so that they can be tracked upon 
request, but they are not separated in the presented budgets (CCMHB budget).  
 

Anticipated Revisions for Later Approval:  
 

• If the Board makes later changes to allocations or another expense category, they will be 
reflected in subsequent versions of 2026 budgets. 

• County staff will provide updates on the costs of staff benefits and may offer other 
suggestions for improvement. Revenue projections may also be updated later in the year.  

• Personnel costs may be revised. Individual changes are informed by results of AAIM’s 
compensation review completed July 8, as well as on annual performance evaluations and 
affordability. Total salaries are the basis for FICA and IMRF calculations.   

• The County Board will discuss all 2026 budgets at hearings in late August. 
• With each set of revisions, projections will be updated and approval sought. 

 

Decision Section:  
 
Motion to approve the attached DRAFT 2026 CCDDB Budget, with anticipated revenues and 
expenditures of $5,689,961.  

_______   Approved 
________ Denied 
________ Modified 
________ Additional Information Needed 

 
Motion to approve the attached DRAFT 2026 I/DD Special Initiatives Fund Budget, with anticipated 
expenditures of $233,117 with equal revenues, including transfer from fund balance. Use of this fund 
is consistent with the terms of the Intergovernmental Agreement between the CCDDB and CCMHB, 
and full approval is contingent on CCMHB action. 

______ Approved 
______ Denied 
______ Modified 
______ Additional Information Needed 

50



LINE 
ITEM

BUDGETED REVENUE

400101 Property Taxes, Current $6,849,360

400103 Back Property Taxes $2,000

400106 Mobile Home Tax $4,200

400104 Payment in Lieu of Taxes $2,000

400476 CCDDB Revenue $467,376

400801 Investment Interest $50,000

400901 Gifts & Donations $1,000

400902 Misc & Expo Revenue $22,000

TOTAL REVENUE $7,397,936

LINE 
ITEM

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

500102 Appointed Official $122,096

500103 Regular FTE $429,515

500105 Temporary Salaries & Wages $500

500108 Overtime Wages $500

500301 Social Security/FICA $42,275

500302 IMRF Employer Cost $19,618

500304 Workers’ Comp Insurance $2,432

500305 Unemployment Insurance $2,170

500306 Health/Life Insurance $97,233

Personnel Total $716,339

501001 Stationery & Printing (Printing & Copier Suppl) $4,000

501002 Office Supplies $3,000

501003 Books, Periodicals, and Manuals $200

501004 Postage, UPS, Fed Ex $2,000

501005 Food, Non-Travel $2,000

501012 Uniforms (Expo T-shirts) $750

501013 Non-Food Supplies $250

501017 Equipment Less Than $5000 $8,400

501019 Operational Supplies $2,750

501021 Employee Development/Recognition $200

Commodities Total $23,550

502001 Professional Svcs (adds Expo consultants, removes legal) $220,000

502002 Outside Services (Computer and Photocopier Services) $9,000

502003 Travel Costs $7,500

502004 Conferences and Training (Employee only) $3,000

502005 Training Programs (Non-Employee) $5,000

502007 Insurance (Non-Payroll) $23,000

502012 Repairs and Maintenance (short term) $0

502013 Rent (Office, Expo Storage/Booths/Venue) $43,500

502014 Finance Charges/Bank Fees $30

502019 Advertising, Legal Notices (adds Expo Marketing & 
Promotion)

$10,000

502021 Dues, License, & Membership $20,000

502022 Operational Services (Zoom, domain names, web hosting, 
surveys)

$5,000

502024 Public Relations (Anti-Stigma) $7,000

502025 Contributions & Grants $6,273,017

502037 Repairs and Maintenance (Bldg, Alarm) $1,000

502045 Attorney/Legal Services $1,500

502046 Equipment Lease/Rental (Copier) $2,500

502047 Software License & SAAS (user license, software cloud & 
installed)

$14,000

502048 Phone/Internet $3,000

Services Total $6,648,047

700101 Interfund Transfer, CCDDB (Share of Expo and some of 
Other Misc Rev)

$10,000

Interfund Transfers TOTAL $10,000

TOTAL EXPENSES* $7,397,936

Draft 2026 CCMHB Budget

3

51



Draft 2026 CCDDB Budget

LINE ITEM BUDGETED REVENUE

400101 Property Taxes, Current $5,624,961

400103 Back Property Taxes $2,000

400106 Mobile Home Tax $3,000

400104 Payment in Lieu of Taxes $4,000

400801 Investment Interest $43,000

600101 Interfund Transfer (Expo and some Other Misc Rev) from MHB $10,000

400902 Other Miscellaneous Revenue $3,000

TOTAL REVENUE $5,689,961

LINE ITEM BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

5002001 Professional Services (42.15% of an adjusted set of CCMHB Admin 
Expenses)

$467,376

502007 Insurance $4,983

502025 Contributions & Grants $5,217,602

TOTAL EXPENSES $5,689,961

3

52



Draft 2026 I/DD Special Initiatives 
Fund Budget

LINE ITEM BUDGETED REVENUE

400801 Investment Interest $4,000

- From Fund Balance $229,117

TOTAL REVENUE $233,117

LINE ITEM BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

501017 Equipment Less than $5,000 (includes a designated gift  for the 
benefit of one individual, accessed at family request, with balance 
$5063 as of June 11, 2024)

$5,063

502001 Professional Services (legal, accounting, if needed) $0

502025 Contributions and Grants $228,054

TOTAL EXPENSES $233,117

3

53



20
26

 B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 R
EV

EN
U

E
20

25
 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

20
24

 
AC

TU
AL

20
23

 
AC

TU
AL

20
22

 
AC

TU
AL

20
21

 
AC

TU
AL

20
20

 
AC

TU
AL

20
19

 
AC

TU
AL

20
18

 
AC

TU
AL

20
17

 
AC

TU
AL

20
16

 
AC

TU
AL

20
15

 
AC

TU
AL

20
14

 
AC

TU
AL

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
, C

ur
re

nt
$6

,8
49

,3
60

$6
,6

36
,9

77
$6

,3
04

,4
78

$5
,9

37
,1

46
$5

,4
92

,3
90

$5
,2

78
,3

25
$4

,8
80

,4
91

$4
,8

13
,5

98
$4

,6
11

,5
77

$4
,4

15
,6

51
$4

,2
46

,0
55

$4
,1

61
,4

39
$4

,0
37

,7
20

Ba
ck

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
$2

,0
00

$2
,0

00
$0

$0
$8

,8
24

$0
$3

,3
82

$6
,4

89
$4

94
$2

,7
31

$2
,4

86
$2

,8
61

$1
,6

12

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

Ta
x

$4
,2

00
$4

,2
00

$3
,5

43
$3

,9
20

$3
,7

00
$0

$3
,7

36
$4

,0
62

$3
,9

09
$3

,7
66

$3
,9

03
$3

,9
95

$3
,8

61

Pa
ym

en
t i

n 
Li

eu
 o

f T
ax

es
$2

,0
00

$2
,0

00
$3

27
$2

,9
16

$1
,4

74
$3

,6
79

$1
,0

88
$2

,6
04

$3
,4

06
$3

,2
01

$2
,9

70
$2

,8
69

$2
,8

59

C
C

D
D

B 
Re

ve
nu

e
$4

67
,3

76
$4

46
,1

02
$3

89
,9

17
$3

89
,1

94
$3

58
,4

50
$3

66
,3

44
$3

46
,7

06
$4

09
,1

75
$3

10
,7

83
$2

87
,6

97
$3

77
,6

95
$3

30
,6

37
$3

37
,5

36

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nt
er

es
t

$5
0,

00
0

$5
6,

27
0

$8
8,

48
2

$9
9,

69
3

$4
7,

85
5

$1
,3

43
$7

,6
27

$4
5,

95
0

$4
1,

81
8

$1
8,

47
3

$3
,4

93
$1

,3
85

$1
,0

15

G
ift

 &
 D

on
at

io
ns

$1
,0

00
$1

,0
00

$5
75

$4
50

$0
$1

00
$2

,9
00

$4
,7

06

Ex
po

 R
ev

en
ue

 (c
om

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 O

th
er

 M
is

c 
Re

v)
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$1
00

$1
3,

80
5

$1
4,

27
5

$2
1,

61
3

$5
,2

25
$1

8,
82

2
$2

6,
22

1
$2

8,
19

2

O
th

er
 M

is
c 

Re
ve

nu
e

$2
2,

00
0

$2
3,

00
0

$1
9,

66
7

$2
2,

05
7

$5
5,

16
1

$2
,2

05
$8

0
$1

29
,0

28
$2

9,
95

5
$1

17
,1

95
$2

1,
34

0
$6

7,
59

9
$8

5,
71

9

*A
RP

A 
Fu

nd
in

g
$0

$0
$0

$7
70

,4
36

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
E

$7
,3

97
,9

36
$7

,1
71

,5
49

$6
,8

06
,9

89
$6

,4
55

,3
76

$5
,9

67
,8

54
$6

,4
22

,5
32

$5
,2

59
,8

15
$5

,4
29

,8
87

$5
,0

23
,5

55
$4

,8
53

,9
39

$4
,6

76
,7

64
$4

,5
97

,0
06

$4
,4

98
,5

14

20
26

 B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

 (S
EE

 
PA

G
E 

5 
FO

R 
DE

TA
IL

S)
20

25
 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

20
24

 
AC

TU
AL

20
23

 
AC

TU
AL

20
22

 
AC

TU
AL

20
21

 
AC

TU
AL

20
20

 
AC

TU
AL

20
19

 
AC

TU
AL

20
18

 
AC

TU
AL

20
17

 
AC

TU
AL

20
16

 
AC

TU
AL

20
15

 
AC

TU
AL

20
14

 
AC

TU
AL

Pe
rs

on
ne

l
$7

16
,3

39
$6

91
,9

87
$5

95
,4

83
$5

81
,9

16
$5

64
,4

44
$5

64
,5

42
$5

44
,0

01
$5

17
,0

53
$5

22
,0

73
$4

49
,2

20
$5

77
,5

48
$5

02
,8

90
$5

32
,9

09

C
om

m
od

iti
es

$2
3,

55
0

$2
3,

83
5

$1
8,

88
7

$1
9,

41
1

$1
0,

93
0

$8
,6

32
$1

2,
36

2
$1

1,
14

7
$1

0,
04

9
$6

,2
63

$7
,9

98
$1

1,
23

7
$9

,2
82

Se
rv

ic
es

 (n
ot

 C
on

tri
b 

& 
G

ra
nt

s)
$3

75
,0

30
$3

62
,3

30
$3

25
,8

11
$3

42
,8

29
$2

83
,0

66
$2

68
,5

12
$2

86
,9

12
$2

86
,3

76
$4

04
,0

59
$4

32
,8

28
$4

10
,1

57
$3

82
,8

70
$3

75
,7

35

*C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 &
 G

ra
nt

s
$6

,2
73

,0
17

$6
,0

83
,3

97
$5

,8
55

,3
12

$5
,2

27
,3

18
$5

,2
88

,0
28

$5
,0

63
,4

38
$4

,4
95

,8
20

$3
,9

93
,2

83
$3

,6
48

,1
88

$3
,5

93
,4

18
$3

,4
28

,0
15

$3
,3

35
,7

18
$3

,6
73

,9
66

In
te

rfu
nd

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
$1

0,
00

0
$1

0,
00

0
$5

,9
07

$1
32

,5
99

$6
,9

08
$2

8,
43

0
$5

,8
19

$4
06

,5
05

$5
6,

77
9

$5
7,

28
8

$6
0,

67
3

$0
$0

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

Ta
x 

C
as

e
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$1

,6
48

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

SE
S

$7
,3

97
,9

36
$7

,1
71

,5
49

$6
,8

01
,4

00
$6

,3
04

,0
73

$6
,1

53
,3

76
$5

,9
33

,5
54

$5
,3

46
,5

62
$5

,2
14

,3
64

$4
,6

41
,1

48
$4

,5
39

,0
17

$4
,4

84
,3

91
$4

,2
32

,7
15

$4
,5

91
,8

92

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 fo

r 2
02

6 
C

C
M

H
B 

Bu
dg

et
, w

ith
 2

02
5 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 a

nd
 E

ar
lie

r A
ct

ua
ls

*P
er

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

Bo
ar

d,
 th

e 
fu

ll 
am

ou
nt

 o
f A

RP
 re

qu
es

t w
as

 d
ep

os
ite

d 
du

rin
g 

20
21

, w
ith

 h
al

f s
pe

nt
 in

 2
02

1 
an

d 
th

e 
ot

he
r

ha
lf 

in
 2

02
2.

 T
hi

s 
re

su
lts

 in
 th

e 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f a

 s
ur

pl
us

 in
 2

02
1 

an
d 

de
fic

it 
in

 2
02

2,
 th

ou
gh

 th
e 

fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

 c
ov

er
ed

 it
.

4

54



Pe
rs

on
ne

l C
os

ts

PE
R

SO
N

N
EL

20
26

20
25

Ap
po

in
te

d 
O

ffi
ci

al
$1

22
,0

96
$1

16
,2

82

Re
gu

la
r F

TE
$4

29
,5

15
$4

09
,0

62

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 W

ag
e/

Sa
l

$5
00

$1
,0

00

O
ve

rti
m

e 
W

ag
es

$5
00

$5
00

FI
C

A
$4

2,
27

5
$4

0,
18

9

IM
RF

$1
9,

61
8

$1
4,

23
7

W
-C

om
p

$2
,4

32
$2

,1
01

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

$2
,1

70
$1

,7
39

H
ea

lth
/L

ife
 In

su
ra

nc
e

$9
7,

23
3

$1
06

,8
77

$7
16

,3
39

$6
91

,9
87

C
om

m
od

iti
es

C
O

M
M

O
D

IT
IE

S
20

26
20

25

Pr
in

tin
g

$4
,0

00
$4

,0
00

O
ffi

ce
 S

up
pl

ie
s

$3
,0

00
$4

,0
00

Bo
ok

s/
Pe

rio
di

ca
ls

$2
00

$3
00

Po
st

ag
e/

U
PS

/F
ed

 E
x

$2
,0

00
$2

,0
00

Fo
od

 N
on

-T
ra

ve
l

$2
,0

00
$2

,0
00

U
ni

fo
rm

s 
(E

xp
o 

sh
irt

s)
$7

50
$7

50

N
on

 F
oo

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
$2

50
$2

50

Eq
ui

pm
en

t U
nd

er
 $

50
00

$8
,4

00
$7

,5
00

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l S

up
 (E

xp
o)

$2
,7

50
$2

,7
50

Em
pl

oy
ee

 D
ev

/R
ec

$2
00

$2
85

$2
3,

55
0

$2
3,

83
5

Se
rv

ic
es

 (n
ot

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 G
ra

nt
s)

SE
RV

IC
ES

20
26

20
25

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s*
$2

20
,0

00
$1

93
,0

00

At
to

rn
ey

/L
eg

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s*

$1
,5

00
$2

,0
00

O
ut

si
de

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(e

.g
., 

C
om

pu
te

r)
$9

,0
00

$1
1,

00
0

Tr
av

el
 C

os
ts

$7
,5

00
$8

,0
00

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

 a
nd

 T
ra

in
in

g 
(e

m
pl

oy
ee

 o
nl

y)
**

$3
,0

00
$4

,0
00

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
(N

on
-

Em
pl

oy
ee

)
$5

,0
00

$1
0,

00
0

In
su

ra
nc

e 
(N

on
-P

ay
ro

ll)
$2

3,
00

0
$2

0,
00

0

Eq
ui

pm
en

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$0
$2

00

Re
pa

irs
 (B

ro
ok

en
s)

$1
,0

00
$1

00

Re
nt

al
 (O

ffi
ce

 a
nd

 E
xp

o)
**

*
$4

3,
50

0
$3

7,
50

0

Re
nt

al
 (E

qu
ip

m
en

t)
$2

,5
00

$2
,5

00

Fi
na

nc
e 

C
ha

rg
es

/B
an

k 
Fe

es
$3

0
$3

0

Ad
ve

rti
si

ng
, L

eg
al

 N
ot

ic
es

 (a
dd

s 
Ex

po
 m

ar
ke

tin
g)

**
*

$1
0,

00
0

$1
2,

00
0

Pu
bl

ic
 R

el
at

io
ns

**
*

$7
,0

00
$2

0,
00

0

D
ue

s/
Li

ce
ns

es
$2

0,
00

0
$2

0,
00

0

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l S

vs
 (Z

oo
m

, e
tc

)
$5

,0
00

$5
,0

00

So
ftw

ar
e 

Li
ce

ns
e

$1
4,

00
0

$1
4,

00
0

Ph
on

e/
In

te
rn

et
$3

,0
00

$3
,0

00

$3
75

,0
30

$3
62

,3
30

In
te

rfu
nd

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

IN
TE

R
FU

N
D

 T
R

AN
SF

ER
S

20
26

20
25

C
C

D
D

B 
Sh

ar
e 

of
 E

xp
o 

an
d 

so
m

e 
of

 M
H

B 
M

is
c 

Re
ve

nu
e

$1
0,

00
0

$1
0,

00
0

$1
0,

00
0

$1
0,

00
0

*P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s:
 

In
cl

ud
es

 E
xp

o 
co

or
di

na
to

rs
, A

ud
it 

an
d 

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
, w

eb
si

te
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, 

H
R,

 s
hr

ed
di

ng
, l

an
gu

ag
e 

ac
ce

ss
, a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

re
vi

ew
, 

C
PA

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n,

 2
11

, H
ea

lth
 P

la
n 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 (i
n 

20
25

 b
ut

 n
ot

 2
02

6)
, E

va
lu

at
io

n 
C

ap
ac

ity
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

C
om

pu
te

r S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
in

 O
ut

si
de

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 

an
d 

At
to

rn
ey

/L
eg

al
 is

 a
 u

ni
qu

e 
lin

e.



**
C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 a

nd
 T

ra
in

in
g:

 
Re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 fe
es

.

Fo

od
 a

nd
 tr

av
el

 a
re

 tr
ac

ke
d 

se
pa

ra
te

ly.
 N

on
-

Em
pl

oy
ee

 tr
ai

ni
ng

s 
ar

e 
al

so
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 a
nd

 m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
co

st
s 

of
 p

re
se

nt
er

s 
an

d 
su

pp
lie

s 
fo

r t
ra

in
in

gs
 

w
e 

ho
st

, s
uc

h 
as

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 F
irs

t A
id

 a
nd

 m
on

th
ly

 
pr

ov
id

er
-fo

cu
se

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

 B
oa

rd
 

m
em

be
r c

os
ts

 fo
r c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 a

nd
 tr

ai
ni

ng
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 N
on

-E
m

pl
oy

ee
 T

ra
in

in
g.



**
*P

ub
lic

 R
el

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 d

is
Ab

ili
ty

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Ex

po
: 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

el
at

io
ns

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
es

 E
be

rtf
es

t (
no

t s
ha

re
d 

w
ith

 C
C

DD
B)

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 e
du

ca
tio

n/
aw

ar
en

es
s.

 E
xp

o 
ex

pe
ns

es
 a

re
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
ac

ro
ss

 
se

ve
ra

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s.

Ad
di

tio
na

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t E

xp
en

se
s 

(P
ro

po
se

d 
20

26
 v

er
su

s 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

20
25

)

5

55



Ad
di

tio
na

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t S

er
vi

ce
s

SE
RV

IC
ES

20
26

20
25

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
Se

rv
ic

es
*

$2
20

,0
00

In
clu

de
s 

so
m

e 
co

st
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Co

un
ty,

 fo
r A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
Se

rv
ice

s,
 P

ay
ro

ll 
an

d 
IT,

 a
nd

 E
xt

er
na

l A
ud

it.
 A

lso
 in

clu
de

s 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 c
on

tra
ct

or
s:

 
co

or
di

na
tin

g 
th

e 
Ex

po
 a

nd
 s

oc
ial

 m
ed

ia,
 a

ss
ist

in
g 

w
ith

 M
HF

A 
tra

in
in

gs
, p

ro
vid

in
g 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
ag

en
cie

s 
fo

r E
va

lu
at

io
n 

Ca
pa

cit
y 

Bu
ild

in
g,

 m
ain

ta
in

in
g 

Ex
po

 a
nd

 A
IR

 
w

eb
sit

es
, m

ain
ta

in
in

g 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

on
lin

e 
ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

sy
st

em
, s

ha
rin

g 
st

at
e 

DD
 in

fo
 a

nd
 a

dv
oc

ac
y, 

lan
gu

ag
e 

ac
ce

ss
 a

cc
es

sib
ilit

y, 
sh

re
dd

in
g,

 re
vie

w
s 

of
 a

ud
its

, 
21

1 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

rv
ice

s,
 a

nd
 h

um
an

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
se

rv
ice

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
AA

IM
.

$1
93

,0
00

In
clu

de
s 

so
m

e 
co

st
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Co

un
ty,

 fo
r A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
Se

rv
ice

s,
 P

ay
ro

ll a
nd

 
IT,

 a
nd

 E
xt

er
na

l A
ud

it.
 A

lso
 in

clu
de

s 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 c
on

tra
ct

or
s:

 
co

or
di

na
tin

g 
th

e 
Ex

po
 a

nd
 s

oc
ial

 m
ed

ia,
 a

ss
ist

in
g 

w
ith

 M
HF

A 
tra

in
in

gs
, p

ro
vid

in
g 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
ag

en
cie

s 
fo

r E
va

lu
at

io
n 

Ca
pa

cit
y 

Bu
ild

in
g,

 m
ain

ta
in

in
g 

Ex
po

 a
nd

 A
IR

 
w

eb
sit

es
, m

ain
ta

in
in

g 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

on
lin

e 
ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

sy
st

em
, s

ha
rin

g 
st

at
e 

DD
 

in
fo

 a
nd

 a
dv

oc
ac

y, 
lan

gu
ag

e 
ac

ce
ss

 a
cc

es
sib

ilit
y, 

sh
re

dd
in

g,
 re

vie
w

s 
of

 a
ud

its
, 2

11
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
rv

ice
s,

 h
um

an
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

se
rv

ice
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

AA
IM

, c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
of

 
he

alt
h 

pl
an

.

Pu
bl

ic
 

Re
la

tio
ns

**
*

$7
,0

00
$5

,0
00

 e
st

im
at

ed
 fo

r c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
an

ti-
st

ig
m

a 
ar

t s
ho

w
(s

) a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

$2
,0

00
 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
ps

 o
f o

th
er

 e
ve

nt
s,

 in
 w

hi
ch

 E
xp

o,
 A

IR
, o

r t
he

 B
oa

rd
s 

ar
e 

pr
om

ot
ed

.
$2

0,
00

0
$1

5,
00

0 
Eb

er
tfe

st
 fi

lm
 s

po
ns

or
sh

ip
, o

ffs
et

 b
y 

Al
lia

nc
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. $
3,

00
0 

es
tim

at
ed

 fo
r 

ot
he

r c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
an

ti-
st

ig
m

a 
ar

t s
ho

w
(s

) a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n.

 $
2,

00
0 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
ps

 o
f 

ot
he

r e
ve

nt
s,

 in
 w

hi
ch

 E
xp

o,
 A

IR
, o

r t
he

 B
oa

rd
s 

ar
e 

pr
om

ot
ed

.

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
Re

so
ur

ce
 

Ex
po

**
*

$0
Ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vic
es

, R
en

ta
l, 

Ad
ve

rti
sin

g,
 a

nd
 P

R 
w

he
n 

Ex
po

-re
lat

ed
. S

up
po

rt 
fo

r E
xp

o 
ev

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 v

en
ue

, s
up

pl
ies

, f
oo

d,
 in

te
rp

re
te

rs
, a

dv
er

tis
in

g,
 t-

sh
irt

s,
 s

to
ra

ge
 

sp
ac

e,
 e

tc
. E

xp
o 

Co
or

di
na

to
rs

, i
nt

er
pr

et
er

s,
 a

nd
 P

As
 c

ha
rg

ed
 to

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vic
es

. 
Co

st
s 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
ex

hi
bi

to
r f

ee
s 

an
d 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
ps

.

$0
No

w
 c

ha
rg

ed
 to

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vic
es

, R
en

ta
l, 

Ad
ve

rti
sin

g,
 a

nd
 P

R 
w

ith
 E

xp
o-

re
lat

ed
. 

Su
pp

or
t f

or
 E

xp
o 

ev
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 v
en

ue
, s

up
pl

ies
, f

oo
d,

 in
te

rp
re

te
rs

, a
dv

er
tis

in
g,

 t-
sh

irt
s,

 
st

or
ag

e 
sp

ac
e,

 e
tc

. E
xp

o 
Co

or
di

na
to

rs
, i

nt
er

pr
et

er
s,

 a
nd

 P
As

 c
ha

rg
ed

 to
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l 

Se
rv

ice
s.

 C
os

ts
 o

ffs
et

 b
y 

ex
hi

bi
to

r f
ee

s 
an

d 
sp

on
so

rs
hi

ps
.

C
C

M
H

B 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n
s 

& 
G

ra
nt

s

$6
,2

73
,0

17
Es

tim
at

ed
 C

CM
HB

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

 fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
 to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

6,
 a

s 
au

th
or

ize
d 

in
 

M
ay

 2
02

5,
 p

lu
s 

1/
2 

of
 e

st
im

at
ed

 P
Y2

7 
an

nu
al 

all
oc

at
io

n 
am

ou
nt

, w
ith

 a
ge

nc
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
m

ax
im

um
s 

to
 b

e 
au

th
or

ize
d 

by
 J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
6.

$6
,0

83
,3

97
CC

M
HB

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

 fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
 to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

5,
 a

s 
au

th
or

ize
d 

in
 M

ay
 2

02
4,

 
pl

us
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 in

 M
ay

 2
02

5 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
fro

m
 J

ul
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

De
ce

m
be

r 2
02

5.

C
C

D
D

B 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n
s 

& 
G

ra
nt

s

$5
,2

17
,6

02
Es

tim
at

ed
 C

CD
DB

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

 fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
 to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

6,
 a

s 
au

th
or

ize
d 

in
 

M
ay

 2
02

5,
 p

lu
s 

1/
2 

of
 e

st
im

at
ed

 P
Y2

7 
an

nu
al 

all
oc

at
io

n 
am

ou
nt

, w
ith

 a
ge

nc
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
m

ax
im

um
s 

to
 b

e 
au

th
or

ize
d 

by
 J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
6.

$5
,0

68
,9

49
Ac

tu
al 

CC
DD

B 
pa

ym
en

ts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

 fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
 to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

5,
 a

s 
au

th
or

ize
d 

in
 M

ay
 

20
24

, p
lu

s 
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 in
 M

ay
 2

02
5,

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

fro
m

 J
ul

y 
20

25
 th

ro
ug

h 
De

ce
m

be
r 

20
25

.

D
ue

s/
Li

ce
ns

es
$2

0,
00

0
$1

,0
00

 n
at

io
na

l t
ra

de
 a

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
(N

AC
BH

DD
), 

$1
6,

00
0 

st
at

e 
tra

de
 a

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
(A

CM
HA

I),
 

an
d 

sm
all

er
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

Hu
m

an
 S

er
vic

es
 C

ou
nc

il, 
Ar

c 
of

 Ill
in

oi
s,

 a
ny

 n
ew

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p,

 e
.g

., 
CB

HA
, N

CB
H,

 N
AD

D,
 p

os
sib

le 
NA

DS
P 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p.

$2
0,

00
0

$1
00

0 
na

tio
na

l t
ra

de
 a

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
(N

AC
BH

DD
), 

$3
,0

00
 A

AI
M

 (p
aid

 e
ve

ry
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s)
, $

16
,0

00
 

st
at

e 
tra

de
 a

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
(A

CM
HA

I),
 s

m
all

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
Hu

m
an

 S
er

vic
es

 C
ou

nc
il, 

Ar
c 

of
 Ill

in
oi

s,
 

po
ss

ib
le 

NA
DS

P 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p.

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

/T
ra

in
in

g
$3

,0
00

$1
00

0 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
fo

r N
AC

o 
an

d 
NA

CB
HD

D 
Le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

an
d 

Po
lic

y 
Co

nf
er

en
ce

s 
(lik

ely
 o

ffs
et

 
by

 A
CM

HA
I).

 $
40

0 
fo

r N
AC

o 
An

nu
al 

M
ee

tin
g.

 R
eg

ist
ra

tio
n 

fe
es

 fo
r o

th
er

 c
on

fe
re

nc
e/

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

m
em

be
rs

 m
ig

ht
 in

clu
de

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 A
m

er
ica

, F
ed

er
at

io
n 

of
 F

am
ilie

s,
 A

rc
 o

f I
L,

 
NA

DD
, o

r s
im

ila
r. 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 F
irs

t A
id

 tr
ain

in
g 

an
d 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
n.

 C
os

ts
 o

f t
ra

ve
l a

nd
 m

ea
l 

pe
r d

iem
s 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

fo
r a

ny
 o

f t
he

se
 c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 a

re
 in

clu
de

d 
in

 d
iffe

re
nt

 lin
es

.

$4
,0

00
$5

00
 re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
fo

r N
AC

o 
an

d 
NA

CB
HD

D 
Le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

an
d 

Po
lic

y 
Co

nf
er

en
ce

s 
(o

ffs
et

 b
y 

AC
M

HA
I).

 R
eg

ist
ra

tio
n 

fe
es

 fo
r o

th
er

 c
on

fe
re

nc
e/

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

m
em

be
rs

 m
ig

ht
 in

clu
de

 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 A

m
er

ica
, F

ed
er

at
io

n 
of

 F
am

ilie
s,

 A
rc

 o
f I

L,
 N

AD
D,

 o
r s

im
ila

r. 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 F

irs
t 

Ai
d 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
n.

 C
os

ts
 o

f t
ra

ve
l a

nd
 m

ea
l p

er
 d

iem
s 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

fo
r a

ny
 o

f t
he

se
 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s 

ar
e 

in
clu

de
d 

in
 d

iffe
re

nt
 lin

es
.

N
on

-
Em

pl
oy

ee
 

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

/ T
ra

in
in

gs
**

$5
,0

00
Re

gi
st

ra
tio

n,
 c

os
ts

 o
f t

ra
ve

l, 
lo

dg
in

g,
 a

nd
 fo

od
 fo

r b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
 to

 a
tte

nd
 N

at
io

na
l o

r S
ta

te
 

As
so

cia
tio

n 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
on

fe
re

nc
es

 o
r t

ra
in

in
gs

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t. 

Al
so

 c
ha

rg
ed

 h
er

e 
ar

e 
th

e 
co

st
s 

as
so

cia
te

d 
w

ith
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 F

irs
t A

id
 tr

ain
in

gs
 a

nd
 m

on
th

ly 
lea

rn
in

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s/
tra

in
in

gs
 fo

r n
on

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

(e
.g

., 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

er
s,

 o
th

er
 s

er
vic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s,

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
), 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 in

clu
de

 p
re

se
nt

er
s,

 re
nt

al,
 re

fre
sh

m
en

ts
, m

at
er

ial
s,

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n.

 
So

m
e 

vir
tu

al 
tra

in
in

gs
.

$1
0,

00
0

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n,

 c
os

ts
 o

f t
ra

ve
l, 

lo
dg

in
g,

 a
nd

 fo
od

 fo
r b

oa
rd

 m
em

be
rs

 to
 a

tte
nd

 N
at

io
na

l o
r S

ta
te

 
As

so
cia

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 o

r t
ra

in
in

gs
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
Al

so
 c

ha
rg

ed
 h

er
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

co
st

s 
as

so
cia

te
d 

w
ith

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 F
irs

t A
id

 tr
ain

in
gs

 a
nd

 m
on

th
ly 

lea
rn

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s/

tra
in

in
gs

 fo
r n

on
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
(e

.g
., 

ca
se

 m
an

ag
er

s,
 o

th
er

 s
er

vic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s,
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s)

, 
w

hi
ch

 c
an

 in
clu

de
 p

re
se

nt
er

s,
 re

nt
al,

 re
fre

sh
m

en
ts

, m
at

er
ial

s,
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n.
 S

om
e 

vir
tu

al 
tra

in
in

gs
.

U
ne

xp
ec

te
d

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l f

ee
s 

fo
r s

up
po

rt 
to

 a
ge

nc
ies

, n
on

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 tr

ain
in

gs
, P

ub
lic

 
Re

lat
io

ns
, o

r E
xp

o 
co

st
s.

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
ne

ed
 fo

r l
eg

al 
co

un
se

l. 
Bu

dg
et

 a
m

en
dm

en
t t

o 
co

ve
r 

be
ne

fit
s 

pa
yo

ut
 u

po
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 re
sig

na
tio

n 
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 s

ta
ffin

g.
 P

os
sib

le 
ta

x 
lia

bi
liti

es
, 

in
te

re
st

. F
un

d 
ba

lan
ce

s 
ar

e 
lo

w
es

t i
n 

M
ay

, a
t w

hi
ch

 p
oi

nt
 th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
en

ou
gh

 fo
r 6

 
m

on
th

s 
op

er
at

in
g 

+ 
an

y 
ta

x 
lia

bi
lity

 +
 s

ha
re

 (5
7.

85
%

/4
2.

15
%

) o
f a

cc
ru

ed
 s

ta
ff 

be
ne

fit
s.

 If
 fi

rs
t 

ta
x 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 o
cc

ur
 b

y 
m

id
-J

un
e,

 fu
nd

 b
ala

nc
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

.

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 s

up
po

rts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

, n
on

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 tr

ain
in

gs
, P

ub
lic

 R
ela

tio
ns

, E
xp

o 
co

st
s.

 
Pu

bl
ic 

he
alt

h 
ba

rri
er

 to
 la

rg
e 

ga
th

er
in

gs
. C

os
t o

f m
ov

in
g 

of
fic

es
 to

 a
 d

iffe
re

nt
 lo

ca
tio

n,
 g

re
at

er
 

ne
ed

 fo
r l

eg
al 

co
un

se
l. 

Bu
dg

et
 a

m
en

dm
en

t i
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

 re
sig

na
tio

n 
(w

ith
 b

en
efi

ts
 p

ay
ou

t) 
or

 
ch

an
ge

 in
 s

ta
ffin

g.
 F

un
d 

ba
lan

ce
s 

ar
e 

lo
w

es
t i

n 
M

ay
, a

t w
hi

ch
 p

oi
nt

 th
er

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

en
ou

gh
 

fo
r 6

 m
on

th
s 

op
er

at
in

g 
+ 

an
y 

ta
x 

lia
bi

lity
 +

 s
ha

re
 (5

7.
85

%
/4

2.
15

%
) o

f a
cc

ru
ed

 s
ta

ff 
be

ne
fit

s.
 If

 
fir

st
 ta

x 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 o

cc
ur

 b
y 

m
id

-J
un

e,
 fu

nd
 b

ala
nc

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
us

ed
.

6

56



20
26

20
25

*
C

C
DD

B 
Sh

ar
e

C
C

DD
B 

Sh
ar

e
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

le
ss

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

$1
,1

08
,8

41
$1

,0
57

,8
67

Ad
ju

st
ed

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
x 

42
.1

5%
$4

67
,3

76
$4

45
,8

91
M

on
th

ly 
To

ta
l f

or
 C

C
DD

B 
Ad

m
in

$3
8,

94
8

$3
7,

15
8

C
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

C
D

D
B 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Sh
ar

e 
(“

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s”
)

20
26

 B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 R
EV

EN
U

ES
20

25
 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

20
24

 
AC

TU
AL

20
23

 
AC

TU
AL

20
22

 
AC

TU
AL

20
21

 
AC

TU
AL

20
20

 
AC

TU
AL

20
19

 
AC

TU
AL

20
18

 
AC

TU
AL

20
17

 
AC

TU
AL

20
16

 
AC

TU
AL

20
15

 
AC

TU
AL

20
14

 
AC

TU
AL

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
, C

ur
re

nt
$5

,6
24

,9
61

$5
,4

50
,5

44
$5

,1
78

,6
83

$4
,8

79
,2

51
$4

,5
11

,2
49

$4
,3

34
,1

87
$4

,0
01

,8
72

$3
,9

82
,6

68
$3

,8
46

,4
13

$3
,6

84
,0

09
$3

,5
95

,1
74

$3
,5

45
,4

46
$3

,5
01

,3
62

Ba
ck

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
$2

,0
00

$2
,0

00
$0

$0
$7

,2
46

$0
$2

,7
73

$5
,3

69
$4

12
$2

,2
78

$2
,1

05
$2

,4
37

$1
,3

98

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

Ta
x

$3
,0

00
$3

,0
00

$2
,9

11
$3

,2
22

$3
,0

39
$0

$3
,0

66
$3

,3
61

$3
,2

61
$3

,1
42

$3
,3

05
$3

,4
04

$3
,3

48

Pa
ym

en
t i

n 
Li

eu
 o

f T
ax

es
$4

,0
00

$4
,0

00
$2

69
$2

,3
96

$1
,2

10
$3

,0
21

$0
$2

,1
54

$2
,8

41
$2

,6
71

$2
,5

15
$2

,4
45

$2
,4

79

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nt
er

es
t

$4
3,

00
0

$4
4,

84
0

$9
2,

36
4

$8
4,

07
2

$3
5,

28
5

$7
91

$4
,0

54
$2

3,
50

8
$2

4,
06

2
$1

0,
88

3
$2

,3
18

$1
,4

88
$8

12

G
ift

s 
& 

D
on

at
io

ns
 (M

HB
 

tra
ns

fe
r)

$1
0,

00
0

$1
0,

00
0

$5
,9

07
$5

,0
64

$6
,9

08
$0

$5
,8

19
$1

06
,5

05
$6

,7
79

$7
,2

88
$1

0,
67

3
$0

$0

O
th

er
 M

is
c 

Re
ve

nu
e

$3
,0

00
$5

,0
00

$0
$5

0,
55

0
$0

$9
71

$9
,5

24
$8

,9
55

$6
,4

08
$1

4,
43

2
$0

$0
$1

1,
82

5

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
E

$5
,6

89
,9

61
$5

,5
19

,3
84

$5
,2

80
,1

34
$5

,0
24

,5
55

$4
,5

64
,9

37
$4

,3
38

,9
70

$4
,0

27
,1

08
$4

,1
32

,5
20

$3
,8

90
,1

76
$3

,7
24

,7
03

$3
,6

16
,0

91
$3

,5
55

,2
20

$3
,5

21
,2

24

20
26

 B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

20
25

 
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
20

24
 

AC
TU

AL
20

23
 

AC
TU

AL
20

22
 

AC
TU

AL
20

21
 

AC
TU

AL
20

20
 

AC
TU

AL
20

19
 

AC
TU

AL
20

18
 

AC
TU

AL
20

17
 

AC
TU

AL
20

16
 

AC
TU

AL
20

15
 

AC
TU

AL
20

14
 

AC
TU

AL

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(4

2.
15

%
 o

f s
om

e 
M

H
B 

co
st

s)
$4

67
,3

76
$4

46
,1

02
$3

87
,7

36
$3

89
,1

94
$3

58
,4

50
$3

66
,3

44
$3

30
,4

45
$3

09
,1

75
$3

10
,7

83
$2

87
,6

97
$3

79
,4

05
$3

30
,6

37
$3

37
,5

36

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 &
 G

ra
nt

s
$5

,2
17

,6
02

$5
,0

68
,9

49
$4

,5
57

,2
61

$4
,0

90
,9

01
$3

,7
77

,2
07

$3
,5

14
,1

53
$3

,6
59

,6
91

$3
,4

35
,7

48
$3

,2
50

,7
68

$3
,2

62
,9

38
$3

,2
06

,3
89

$3
,0

69
,1

22
$3

,2
24

,1
72

In
su

ra
nc

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
to

 D
D

B
$4

,9
83

$4
,3

33
$4

,3
33

In
te

rfu
nd

 T
ra

ns
fe

r, 
C

IL
A 

Fu
nd

$0
$0

$0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$0

In
te

rfu
nd

 T
ra

ns
fe

r t
o 

M
H

 
(lo

an
 re

pa
y)

$0
$1

00
,0

00

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

Ta
x 

C
as

e
$0

$0
$0

$0
$1

,3
63

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

SE
S

$5
,6

89
,9

61
$5

,5
19

,3
84

$4
,9

49
,3

30
$4

,5
30

,0
95

$4
,1

85
,6

57
$3

,9
30

,4
97

$4
,0

41
,4

99
$3

,8
94

,9
23

$3
,6

11
,5

51
$3

,6
00

,6
35

$3
,6

35
,7

94
$3

,4
49

,7
59

$3
,5

61
,7

08

   
Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
:

20
26

20
25

   
C

C
M

H
B 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 &
 G

ra
nt

s
$6

,2
73

,0
17

$6
,0

83
,3

97
   

Eb
er

tfe
st

 A
IR

 a
nt

i-s
tig

m
a 

fil
m

$0
$1

50
00

   
M

H
B-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

st
$6

07
8

52
85

   
C

C
DD

B 
Sh

ar
e 

of
 D

on
at

io
ns

 &
 M

isc
 R

ev
$1

0,
00

0
$1

0,
00

0
- 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 T
ot

al
:

$6
,2

89
,0

95
$6

,1
13

,6
82

   
C

C
M

H
B 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s:
$7

,3
97

,9
36

$7
,1

71
,5

49
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

le
ss

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

:
$1

,1
08

,8
41

$1
,0

57
,8

67

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 fo

r 2
02

6 
C

C
D

D
B 

Bu
dg

et
, w

ith
 2

02
5 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 a

nd
 E

ar
lie

r A
ct

ua
ls

*A
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
r, 

ac
tu

al
 e

xp
en

se
s 

ar
e 

up
da

te
d,

 s
om

e 
re

ve
nu

es
 (e

.g
., 

Ex
po

) a
re

 s
ha

re
d,

 a
nd

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

C
C

DD
B 

cu
rre

nt
 y

ea
r s

ha
re

.

7

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



 

 
 
DECISION MEMORANDUM  
 
DATE: July 23, 2025  
TO:  Members, Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board 
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director, Kim Bowdry, Associate Director 
SUBJECT:   CU Autism Network PY2024 Report Summary 
 
 
Purpose: 
 
This memorandum summarizes CU Autism Network (CUAN)’s reporting on PY24 
contracts with the CCDDB for “Community Outreach Program” and “CCDDB 
CUAN Planning Seed Grant.” Because reports were not submitted during the 
program year or by the year-end deadline, CCDDB staff had notified CUAN that all 
payments should be returned. An agency representative requested the opportunity to 
demonstrate that funds had been used appropriately and need not be returned. 
 
 
Statutory Authority: 
 
The CCDDB is established by, and sets its own rules according to, (50 ILCS 835/) 
The Community Care for Persons with Developmental Disabilities Act. Among 
responsibilities identified for Boards established under this Act are compliance with 
the Local Government Prompt Payment Act, Civil Practice Law, Illinois Department 
of Human Services (rules), and the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act.  The latter 
allows regulatory flexibility appropriate to small businesses and non-profit agencies. 
 
Consistent with these statutes and rules, the CCDDB sets Funding Requirements and 
Guidelines for Allocation of Funds, which include their authority to exercise 
flexibility and authorize exceptions to standards. The Board’s strategic plan and 
annual funding priorities document each emphasize the importance of peer and 
family support networks, as these organizations can make unique and important 
contributions to the community. When volunteer- or parent-led, such groups may 
struggle to meet the standards set for larger accredited, certified, or licensed service 
provider organizations. The Board “reserves the right to vary the provisions… prior 
to the execution of a contract where the CCDDB deems such variances to be in the 
best interest of the CCDDB and residents of Champaign County” (page 13 of 
PY2024 Allocation Priorities and Decision Support Criteria.)  

65

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=3834&ChapterID=11
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=3834&ChapterID=11
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=83
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCDDB%20Funding%20Requirements%20and%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCDDB%20Funding%20Requirements%20and%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCDDB%20Funding%20Priorities%20for%20PY2024.pdf


 

Background: 
 
At their November 20, 2024 meeting, the CCDDB considered a request from Steve 
Beckett on behalf of the CU Autism Network, regarding requirements of the PY2024 
contracts. The Board approved this request, setting a deadline for first and second 
quarter program and financial reports to be completed on or before January 8, 2025. 
At this time the Board also agreed to amend both contracts so that obligations would 
end on December 31, 2023 rather than the original end date of June 30, 2024. Only 
the CCDDB Executive Director was to answer CUAN’s representatives’ questions 
about the reports, process, and previously approved budget changes. 
 
Activities were completed and reports submitted on time, and a summary report was 
provided at the Board’s January meeting. While we could not conclude whether the 
funds had been used according to contracts, this report incorporated details from the 
submitted reports, expertise of other CCDDB staff, and information provided 
through meetings with Steve Beckett, his assistant Kristina Forrest, and the CPA 
performing the agency’s financial review. During the Board meeting, Mr. Beckett and 
Mrs. Julie Duvall, CUAN’s Executive Director, answered questions. 
 
The Board then agreed to receive third and fourth quarter program and financial 
reports, as Mr. Beckett had suggested these would clarify how the six months of 
payments received during 2023 were used during the full PY2024 (July 1, 2023 
through June 30, 2024.) The following updates are based on the full year reports. 
 
 
Update and Staff Notes:  
 
Cultural and Linguistic Competence (CLC)  
 
The year end CLC progress report indicates that while planned actions for Training, 
Assessment, and Outreach to underserved groups did not take place, there were 
related activities. During their meetings, the agency board discussed ways to improve 
knowledge in this area. Their online and social media information can be translated 
from English into many different languages, and their printed event flyers are in both 
English and Spanish. Communication devices are available for participants to use. 
The agency found that more helpful feedback occurred at the end of events. This 
included concerns about misdiagnosis/delayed diagnosis commonly experienced by 
Black children. While CUAN is a parent-led organization that supports families living 
with disabilities, it is important to have action steps in their CLC Plan that will 
expand the support to families who have not heard about the services that are 
available in Champaign County. This will address the gaps in services for families 
who are marginalized in our community.  
 

66

https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2024/241120_Meeting/241120_Full_Board_Packet.pdf
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2025/250122_Meeting/250122_Full_Board_Packet.pdf


 

 
 
Performance Outcome Reports (PORs) 
 
The POR for the Community Outreach Program indicates that participants were 
accepted to the program upon initial contact, that participant engagement was as 
needed per person, and that the program did not collect demographic data. 

- The first outcome, to promote inclusion and acceptance of the ASD 
Community, was supported by social media to advertise events, online 
registration forms later used to track number of attendees, and events 
inclusive of neurotypical and neurodivergent people. 

- For the second outcome, to increase awareness of the ASD Community in 
neurotypical populations, CUAN used word of mouth, social media, and 
online advertising to promote its activities. 

- The third outcome was to improve acceptance and understanding of the ASD 
Community in the general public with Autism sensory friendly adoption in 
public events and non-discriminatory environments. Toward this end, CUAN 
sought feedback about events through emailed surveys to participants but 
received a low response. Better results came from in-person conversations at 
events and participants’ comments on social media posts. 

- 654 of 1011 participants offered outcome information. One finding was that 
more support is needed through funding, training, education support, 
community understanding, and accessibility. Although 65% is not a bad 
response rate for surveys, this report suggests the 654 respondents were 
primarily giving feedback at events (not through surveys). Questions about 
residency and demographics are relatively easy to include in surveys. 

 
The POR for the Planning Seed Grant emphasizes good faith efforts by the 
Director and Board, though without examples. It names two others who were to be 
responsible for deliverables: the previous director, who authored both applications 
and promised to continue as a volunteer but did not; and a staff person who was 
hired to complete these reporting requirements but became unable for health reasons. 
There is a statement that when payments stopped, they did not pursue the goals of 
this program. This is not consistent with the submitted financial reports, which show 
funds being expended for this program. In addition, if there had been efforts toward 
the goals of this program prior to the payments stopping, the program activity reports 
for the first two quarters would report on related efforts, but they do not.  
 
 
Residency and Demographic Data 
 
Each Community Outreach Program zip code and demographic report indicates 
that not all data were collected. 

67



 

- No data on gender or race, though some reports note that 7 participants are 
known to be of Middle Eastern origin. 

- Age data are in broad categories. 311 children and 256 adults are reported in 
the first two quarters. Although the forms indicate 214 total participants in the 
second two quarters, age data are not included. 

- Language use was NOT a required category in PY2024, but the agency 
provides some information on language preferences of participants: the 
majority use English, two use American Sign Language, and approximately 
twenty use Spanish. 

- Although zip code information was not collected, the agency believes most 
attendees were Champaign residents, with the rest from Urbana, Mahomet, 
Rantoul, and Savoy. 

Each Planning Seed Grant zip code report and demographic report contains the 
statement “not applicable for this grant.” 

- The program plan was to engage broadly to assess community needs, 
especially as related to a regional center, model centers, and plan development, 
and to engage with the community later to present findings, plans, and costs 
prior to developing the final action plan. 

- Residency and demographic data would be helpful to understand where 
participants lived and any other personal data which might be relevant to their 
access to resources. These data would reflect the intended focus on rural and 
culturally diverse community members’ input, helpful in determining the ideal 
location for an Autism Center. 

The Board did not waive the requirements for these reports for either contract. 
 
 
Service Activity Reports 
 
For the Community Outreach Program: 

- Utilization targets were for 16 Community Service Events and 300 Non-
Treatment Plan Clients in attendance. 

- Reports show that 14 CSEs were held and 997 NTPCs attended. 
- CSE count is not duplicated, but the NTPC count is likely duplicated, typical 

for the focused activity (events) and suggested by the way demographic and 
zip code data were reported. 

- Although we were aware of social media posts about events, no details are 
included in comment sections. 

For the Planning Seed Grant: 
- The only utilization target was 2 “Other” - one building plan and one report 

to the DDB (which were not completed.) 
- All quarterly service reports show zeroes in each category. 

68



 

- Although there were no targets for events or people, the plan detailed working 
with 100 individuals and the occasions and means (surveys, interviews, etc.) 
through which their input was sought, both of which could have been tracked.  

 
 
Financial Reports 
 
For the Community Outreach Program: 

1. For the first two quarters, CCDDB revenue is reported incorrectly in all 
columns, and expenses were significantly underbudget. 

2. In Q1, there were no personnel expenses, and in Q2, Professional Fees, 
General Operating, and Lease/Rental costs were especially low. Variance 
comments indicate that expenses are split between the two programs, which is 
not consistent with contract requirements. 

3. For Q3, CCDDB revenue of $39,564 is correct, no In-Kind Contributions are 
reported, Professional Fees are underbudget, Consumables are overbudget, 
and many expenses are reported at the same amounts as the other grant, 
suggesting they are split between the two grants equally, which is disallowed.  

4. For Q4, CCDDB revenue of $39,564 is correct, no In-Kind Contributions are 
reported, Consumables are significantly overbudget, and there is a deficit in 
the Total Program and CCDDB columns. Variance comments suggest that 
expenses were either split evenly between the two grants or lumped together 
and charged to one grant. Neither approach is consistent with requirements.  

For the Planning Seed Grant: 
5. For the first two quarters, CCDDB revenue is reported incorrectly in all 

columns, and expenses were significantly underbudget. 
6. In Q1, there were no personnel expenses, and in Q2, Professional Fees were 

especially low. Variance comments indicate that expenses are split between the 
two programs, which is not consistent with contract requirements. 

7. For Q3, CCDDB revenue of $32,604 is correct, no In-Kind Contributions are 
reported, Professional Fees are underbudget, and many expenses are reported 
at the same amounts as the other grant, suggesting they are split between the 
two grants equally, which is disallowed.  

8. For Q4, CCDDB revenue of $32,604 is correct, no In-Kind Contributions are 
reported, and there is a deficit in the Total Program and CCDDB columns. 
Variance comments suggest that expenses were either split evenly between the 
two grants or lumped together and charged to one grant. Neither approach is 
consistent with requirements.  

The reports show departure from the contract requirements for financial 
record keeping and reporting . 
 

69



 

An independent financial review is being prepared by Tyler Kutz, partner at MH, 
for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, for which the original deadline per 
contracts would have been December 31, 2024. Because we had requested all 
payments be returned, voiding this requirement, we did not ask the CCDDB to 
approve an extended deadline, but the agency has signaled the work is in progress. At 
the time of this writing, we have not received a revenue confirmation letter. This 
letter would signal that the review is nearly finished. 
 
CCDDB staff and consultant will look over the independent CPA financial review 
after CUAN’s board has approved it. As with any agency audit or review, we will 
follow up on findings of concern or regarding funds owed back to the Board. If the 
financial review is also inconclusive, we will find ourselves in this position once again. 
An important caution is that independent CPA reports focus on financial statements 
but do not verify programmatic activities. Information reported to our staff and 
summarized here should serve as the basis for conclusions regarding programs. 
 
 

Staff Opinions: 
 
As with other CCDDB contracts, we rely on audited financial statements when 
making determinations about how funds were spent. An audit would allow 
meaningful analysis of CUAN's finances. We acknowledge the efforts of the person 
who prepared and submitted all reports, as she relied on available documentation 
several months after the fact. The agency's financial records were not maintained in 
an ‘audit-ready’ condition and could not be reported as required in the contracts, 
making it difficult to know what the agency did with each grant. 
 
The Community Outreach Program appears to have been implemented as described 
in the contract, but this is not the case for the Planning Seed Grant. Perhaps the CU 
Autism Network should return the $32,604 paid on the Planning Seed Grant. 
 
In the event the Board chooses to approve the agency’s general request not to 
repay any funds, a number of actions are suggested below. 
 
For the long-term, related concerns emerge. 
 

1. For peer and family support organizations, CCDDB staff request guidance 
for managing future similar situations. Prior to contracting and during the 
contract year, we asked CUAN representatives if they were able to perform 
the deliverables described in the application, and they assured us they could. 
Based on our understanding of challenges particular to these networks and based on the 
questions they had for us, we were concerned but lacked options. 
 

70



 

2.  While the Executive Director can initiate cancellation of contracts at the 
first instance of non-compliance, our practice has been to work with agencies 
toward solutions and offer as much technical support as possible. We have 
not recently exercised the option of simply terminating a contract. CCDDB 
staff request guidance on whether we should assert contract cancellation authority, 
acknowledging that agencies may appeal such decisions directly to the Board. 

 
3. Issues specific to autistic people and the ‘autism community’ remain 

difficult to impact, which may call for cross-system collaboration or new tools 
for the CCDDB and staff. Persistent issues include: some I/DD supports do 
not align with the needs of autistic people; diagnosis-based supports depend 
on the state’s eligibility criteria; and children of racial/ethnic minority groups 
tend to be misdiagnosed or diagnosed later than white, non-Hispanic peers, 
missing the benefits of early intervention and treatment. The CCDDB might 
address this when developing the annual funding allocation priorities or through revisions to 
the funding requirements and guidelines, which do not need to be reviewed annually. 

 
As noted in the Statutory Authority section above, the CCDDB has the authority to 
offer some flexibility. Although exceptions should be clarified prior to contracting 
and described in contract special provisions, there are opportunities to amend 
provisions during the contract year, as conditions may emerge which could not have 
been planned for, and when the best interest of the County would be served by 
amending a provision in response to these changes. 
 
While CUAN did not make special requests during the contracting process in Spring 
2023 or the term of the contract (July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024), and while there are 
very few prior examples of retroactive requests and responses, the present situation 
includes contract items not completed which the Board might retroactively waive, 
consistent with capacity more typical of support networks. This would be a short-
term solution and take into account the following. 
 

1. While the Board approved late reporting for all quarters, it has not approved 
exceptions to the requirements associated with these reports. 
 

2. While the Board approved early termination of both contracts, it has not 
authorized changes to scope of services or budget plans for either contract. 

 
3. The Board has not waived other contract requirements which were not met: 

sharing agency board minutes quarterly; reporting personnel changes within 30 
days; maintaining records in audit-ready condition; and attending Mental 
Health and Developmental Disabilities Agency Council meetings. 

 
4. The Board has not waived the independent financial review requirement or set 

a new deadline for its completion; the original deadline would have been 

71



 

December 31, 2024. This report might help determine whether CUAN 
expended CCDDB funds properly. 
 
 

Suggested Actions: 
 
Motion to waive demographic and zip code data reporting requirements associated 
with the CU Autism Network PY2024 “CCDDB CUAN Planning Seed Grant” and 
the CU Autism Network PY2024 “Community Outreach Program” contracts.  

______ Approved  
______ Denied  
______ Modified  
______ Additional Information Needed 
 

Motion to waive requirements for maintaining records in audit-ready condition, for 
collaboration in Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Agency Council 
meetings, for quarterly submission of agency board meeting minutes, and for timely 
notification of personnel changes, as described in the CU Autism Network PY2024 
“CCDDB CUAN Planning Seed Grant” and the CU Autism Network PY2024 
“Community Outreach Program” contracts.  

______ Approved  
______ Denied  
______ Modified  
______ Additional Information Needed 
 

Motion to waive the requirements associated with quarterly financial reporting on 
both CU Autism Network PY2024 contracts, so that the submitted reports are not 
the only basis for determining how CCDDB revenue was spent.  

______ Approved  
______ Denied  
______ Modified  
______ Additional Information Needed 
 

 
Pending completion of and follow up to the independent CPA financial review report, and presuming 
that the report confirms that all payments were expended within the Program Year and according to 
other CCDDB requirements which have not been waived, and presuming that the agency agrees with 
the staff assessment above and would request the related adjustments below: 
 
Motion to approve the use of all payments issued for the CU Autism Network 
PY2024 “CCDDB CUAN Planning Seed Grant” contract, for which planned 
activities did not occur, to support the CU Autism Network PY2024 “Community 

72



 

Outreach Program” contract, for which planned activities took place and related 
expenses were incurred.  

______ Approved  
______ Denied  
______ Modified  
______ Additional Information Needed 

Motion to accept the CU Autism Network PY2024 independent financial review as 
sufficient evidence that all amounts paid by the CCDDB were expended on activities 
described in the Community Outreach Program plan.  

______ Approved  
______ Denied  
______ Modified  
______ Additional Information Needed 

73



74



75



 

 
 

 
 

 

ENGAGEIL.ORG  
 

 

THURSDAY, JULY 24 
6:30 – 8:30 PM  
 
Awesome Life Academy  
Bear Cave Lake  
1126 Simons Road  
Oswego, IL  60543 

 
 
Across Illinois, parents and organizations are working to build progressive support for our  
young adults so they can create a life in their community of choice. Most of us are using  
Home-Based funding to pay for programs and support, and we know first-hand this stipend  
is not enough to support a person-centered life.  

Join us and be a part of the discussion for change. 
Come to learn about:  

• Advocacy work being done by Engage IL 
(www.engageil.org) to create a new program 
that will support a person-centered life in the 
community or reform the Home-Based program 
to be based on need rather than a stipend.  

• The exciting work being done by the Association 
for Individual Development (AID) to unbundle 
supports, services and housing.  

• Preparing a financial plan to support the life  
of your loved one living with a disability.  

• A creative housing solution in Naperville. 

Date: Thursday July 24  
Time: 6:30 – 8:30 PM  
Location: Awesome Life Academy 
Bear Cave Lake  
1126 Simons Road  
Oswego, IL  60543

 

 

Thank you to all the organizations involved: 

            

 

76

https://lp.constantcontactpages.com/sl/CjU197R
https://engageil.org/


U
ni

tin
g 

fo
r p

ro
gr

es
si

ve
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
up

po
rt

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
Ju

ne
 5

, 2
02

4

En
ga

ge
 IL

: N
or

th
 S

ta
r P

la
n 

‘2
4

77



D
re

am
 T

ea
m

O
n 

M
ay

 16
, 2

02
4,

 a
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 g
ro

up
 o

f 
se

lf-
ad

vo
ca

te
s,

 fa
m

ili
es

, a
lli

es
, 

ed
uc

at
or

s,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

, s
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
id

er
s,

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t o

ffi
ci

al
s 

an
d 

di
re

ct
or

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 o
ne

 p
ur

po
se

:

To
 re

sh
ap

e 
ho

w
 Il

lin
oi

s 
su

pp
or

ts
 it

s 
ci

tiz
en

s 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
liv

in
g 

a 
fu

ll 
lif

e 
in

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.

2

”N
ev

er
 d

ou
bt

 th
at

 a
 s

m
al

l g
ro

up
 o

f 
th

ou
gh

tf
ul

, c
om

m
itt

ed
, c

iti
ze

ns
 c

an
 

ch
an

ge
 th

e 
w

or
ld

.  
In

de
ed

, i
t i

s 
th

e 
on

ly
 

th
in

g 
th

at
 e

ve
r h

as
.”

   
   

   
   

   
 ~

 M
ar

ga
re

t M
ea

d

78



Th
e 

St
or

ie
s 

M
at

te
r

Ea
ch

 o
f o

ur
 lo

ve
d 

on
e’

s 
w

ith
 a

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 is

 o
n 

a 
lif

e 
jo

ur
ne

y.
 S

om
e 

ar
e 

ve
ry

 d
iff

ic
ul

t, 
so

m
e 

le
ss

 s
o.

 A
ll 

ar
e 

va
lu

ab
le

. U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 th

e 
lif

e 
pa

th
 o

f a
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 a

 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

st
ar

ts
 w

ith
 li

st
en

in
g 

to
 th

ei
r s

to
ry

.

Th
e 

fir
st

 p
rio

rit
y 

of
 E

ng
ag

e 
IL

 w
as

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
an

 in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

la
nn

in
g.

 
W

el
co

m
in

g 
ou

r p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

, ‘
en

ga
gi

ng
’ i

n 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
th

em
se

lv
es

, a
nd

 s
ha

rin
g 

th
ei

r s
to

rie
s 

&
 d

re
am

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t o
f t

he
ir 

fa
m

ili
es

 m
ar

ke
d 

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
in

 
th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 v

er
su

s 
ho

w
 th

e 
Ill

in
oi

s 
sy

st
em

 w
as

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 

de
si

gn
ed

 a
s 

a 
‘m

ed
ic

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 m

od
el

.’

O
ur

 fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 s
el

f-
ad

vo
ca

te
s 

sh
ar

e 
fir

st
 h

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 a

bo
ut

 th
ei

r s
to

ry
, n

ee
ds

, d
re

am
s 

an
d 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 th

e 
Ill

in
oi

s 
w

ai
ve

rs
 th

at
 s

up
po

rt
 th

ei
r f

ul
l l

ife
 in

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.

   
    

A
sh

le
y 

M
cL

eo
d'

s 
St

or
y 

3

Ta
m

ek
ia

 L
ew

is
 &

 
S

hi
rle

y 
P

er
ez

' S
to

ry

D
ay

vi
n 

Fi
sh

er
 &

 A
bb

i 
M

ar
s'

 S
to

ry

 A
sh

er
 &

 S
an

dr
a 

H
ei

dt
's

 
S

to
ry

B
ar

b 
P

rit
ch

ar
d'

s 
S

to
ry

“Y
ou

r l
ife

 h
as

 p
ur

po
se

. Y
ou

r s
to

ry
 is

 
im

po
rt

an
t. 

Yo
ur

 d
re

am
s 

co
un

t. 
Yo

ur
 

vo
ic

e 
m

at
te

rs
. Y

ou
 w

er
e 

bo
rn

 to
 

m
ak

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
.”

~
 U

nk
no

w
n

N
ot

hi
ng

 a
bo

ut
 u

s 
w

ith
ou

t u
s

79

https://youtu.be/oXCECMmYnvM?si=_M-fSr-GEuWitW1H
https://youtu.be/kPhk7YjRbf0?si=Fjq6BhmAIaXy90hT
https://youtu.be/kPhk7YjRbf0?si=Fjq6BhmAIaXy90hT
https://youtu.be/6NVyyLjQazM?si=_rFvmZsJ1uF39ti5
https://youtu.be/6NVyyLjQazM?si=_rFvmZsJ1uF39ti5
https://youtu.be/3CDVYmAkaw0?si=nmv9z1b8emsBJvjG
https://youtu.be/3CDVYmAkaw0?si=nmv9z1b8emsBJvjG
https://youtu.be/TYYgrlubHv0?si=95g5nJXswxFxTz4M


C
el

eb
ra

tio
ns

W
e 

to
ok

 ti
m

e 
to

 h
on

or
 th

e 
ef

fic
ac

y 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

w
or

k 
th

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

do
ne

. B
rin

gi
ng

 th
e 

be
st

 fo
rw

ar
d.

4

“C
ha

ng
e 

ne
ve

r h
ap

pe
ns

 a
t t

he
 

pa
ce

 w
e 

th
in

k 
it 

sh
ou

ld
. I

t 
ha

pp
en

s 
ov

er
 y

ea
rs

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
jo

in
in

g 
to

ge
th

er
, s

tr
at

eg
iz

in
g,

 
sh

ar
in

g,
 a

nd
 p

ul
lin

g 
al

l t
he

 le
ve

rs
 

th
ey

 p
os

si
bl

y 
ca

n…
..

…
…

G
ra

du
al

ly
, e

xc
ru

ci
at

in
gl

y 
sl

ow
ly

, 
th

in
gs

 s
ta

rt
 to

 h
ap

pe
n,

 a
nd

 th
en

 
su

dd
en

ly
, s

ee
m

in
gl

y 
ou

t o
f t

he
 b

lu
e,

 
so

m
et

hi
ng

 w
ill

 ti
p.

   
   

   
   

  ~
 J

ud
y 

H
eu

m
an

n

Re
m

em
be

rin
g 

le
ve

rs
 p

ul
le

d 
ov

er
th

e 
ye

ar
s:

Le
st

er
 P

rit
ch

ar
d 

fo
r t

he
 s

tr
id

es
 h

e 
an

d 
Ba

rb
 

m
ad

e 
fo

r I
lli

no
is

 in
 2

00
5 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
Fo

r R
ea

l 
C

ho
ic

e

Ju
dy

 H
eu

m
an

n,
 fo

r t
he

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 re

vo
lu

tio
n 

do
cu

m
en

ta
ry

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
by

 P
re

si
de

nt
 B

ar
ac

k 
O

ba
m

a 
an

d 
M

ic
he

lle
 O

ba
m

a 
ai

rin
g 

on
 N

et
fli

x.
   

  
C

rip
 C

am
p:

 A
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
ev

ol
ut

io
n

M
os

t r
ec

en
tly

, t
he

 C
BS

 N
ew

s 
D

oc
um

en
ta

ry
 

In
te

rv
ie

w
 b

y 
D

an
a 

Ko
sl

ov
, N

o 
Pl

ac
e 

Li
ke

 H
om

e:
 

Pe
op

le
 w

ith
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s'
 F

ig
ht

 to
 S

ta
y 

O
ut

 o
f 

In
st

itu
tio

ns
 | 

C
BS

 R
ep

or
ts

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
by

 T
ay

lo
r 

M
oo

ne
y.

 

80

http://campaignforrealchoice.org
http://campaignforrealchoice.org
https://youtu.be/XRrIs22plz0?feature=shared
https://youtu.be/N3sQ4-Bkdac?feature=shared
https://youtu.be/N3sQ4-Bkdac?feature=shared
https://youtu.be/N3sQ4-Bkdac?feature=shared


C
el

eb
ra

tio
ns

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

●
U

np
re

ce
de

nt
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 

w
ith

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 fr
om

 $
2 

bi
lli

on
 in

 2
01

9 
to

 $
3 

bi
lli

on
 fo

r F
Y 

‘2
5.

 $
1 

B
ill

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 5

 y
ea

rs
. 

●
Re

ce
pt

iv
e 

to
 c

ur
re

nt
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

an
d 

lis
te

ni
ng

 to
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t s
er

vi
ce

s
●

G
ov

er
no

r’s
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

w
or

k 
on

 d
ei

ns
tit

ut
io

na
liz

at
io

n 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s

●
C

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

w
or

k 
to

ge
th

er
 fo

r s
ys

te
m

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t b

y 
D

ep
ut

y 
G

ov
er

no
r G

ra
ce

 H
ou

 a
nd

 A
ss

t t
o 

D
ep

ut
y 

G
ov

. 
R

ya
n 

C
ro

ke

LE
G

IS
LA

TI
O

N
 &

 L
O

C
A

L 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
T

●
Pu

bl
ic

 p
ol

ic
y 

re
fo

rm
s 

●
Re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t f

or
 D

ire
ct

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
ro

vi
de

rs
 (D

SP
s)

 h
as

 
go

ne
 u

p 
– 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
w

ag
es

 
●

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 h

ea
rin

gs
  -

 p
ro

vi
ng

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l f

or
 

lo
ca

l c
ha

ng
e

●
Le

gi
sl

at
or

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
an

d 
se

ek
in

g 
in

pu
t o

n 
I/

D
D

 is
su

es
  

●
Su

pp
or

te
d 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

fo
r s

el
f-

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
Su

pp
or

te
d 

D
ec

is
io

n 
M

ak
in

g 
Ill

in
oi

s

IL
LI

N
O

IS
 D

EP
T.

 O
F 

H
U

M
A

N
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

 

●
Su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n 

of
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

l D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

(D
D

D
), 

an
d 

w
ill

in
gn

es
s 

to
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

te
 

●
D

D
D

 c
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
lis

te
ni

ng
 a

nd
 v

is
io

n 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 n
ew

 
in

iti
at

iv
es

●
D

ep
ar

t o
f R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 (D
RS

) c
ro

ss
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s

●
LI

G
A

S 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
um

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 

●
H

ou
si

ng
 n

av
ig

at
or

 p
ilo

t c
on

ve
rt

ed
 to

 a
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
  I

D
H

S 
H

ou
si

ng
 N

av
ig

at
or

●
C

an
ce

r s
ur

vi
vo

rs
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
th

e 
su

pp
or

t o
f H

B
S 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
th

at
 w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 fa

m
ili

es
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

a 
m

ed
ic

al
 c

ris
is

  
●

A
tt

itu
de

s 
sh

ift
in

g 
on

 s
ta

te
 o

pe
ra

te
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ta

l 
ce

nt
er

s 
be

in
g 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y

5

81

https://gac.illinois.gov/content/dam/soi/en/web/gac/documents/supported-decision-making/igac-supported-decision-making-bro-5-4-22.pdf
https://gac.illinois.gov/content/dam/soi/en/web/gac/documents/supported-decision-making/igac-supported-decision-making-bro-5-4-22.pdf
https://www.dhs.state.il.us/page.aspx?item=152041


C
el

eb
ra

tio
ns

A
D

V
O

C
A

C
Y

●
‘N

ot
hi

ng
 a

bo
ut

 u
s 

w
ith

ou
t 

us
’ -

 c
rit

ic
al

 re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 
ne

ed
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
pl

ac
e 

at
 th

e 
ta

bl
e

●
Sy

st
em

s 
ch

an
ge

 is
 h

ap
pe

ni
ng

 –
 p

ee
r e

m
po

w
er

m
en

t
●

Se
ns

e 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 is

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
am

on
g 

fa
m

ili
es

  
●

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

ad
vo

ca
tin

g 
fo

r t
he

m
se

lv
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s 

●
Fa

m
ily

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n,

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

, 
in

cl
us

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

ec
t 

●
Le

ar
ni

ng
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 c
iv

ic
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t
●

Se
lf-

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
w

an
tin

g 
to

 m
ee

t w
ith

 le
gi

sl
at

or
s

●
G

oi
ng

 H
om

e 
C

oa
lit

io
n 

– 
ed

uc
at

in
g,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 
re

du
ce

 S
O

D
C

 c
ap

ac
ity

, a
nd

 R
ev

up
 - 

vo
tin

g 
pu

sh
 fo

r I
/D

D
●

Th
e 

A
rc

 - 
Fa

m
ily

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

- e
du

ca
tin

g 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
(s

el
f-

ad
vo

ca
te

s)
  w

hi
le

 th
ey

 a
re

 re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

SO
D

C
s 

– 
vo

tin
g 

se
ss

io
ns

 –
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

ev
en

ts
 

●
G

re
at

er
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
dv

oc
ac

y 
&

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

Th
e 

A
rc

 o
f 

IL
, G

oi
ng

 H
om

e 
C

oa
lit

io
n,

 F
am

ily
 M

at
te

rs
, I

PA
D

D
U

, E
tc

A
D

V
O

C
A

C
Y 

(c
on

t)

●
58

,0
00

 p
lu

s 
ST

RO
N

G
 - 

Si
g

ni
fic

an
t 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 p
ar

en
t 

an
d 

se
lf-

ad
vo

ca
te

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
ad

vo
ca

cy
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 o

ut
re

ac
h,

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
ab

ili
ty

 
to

 p
us

h 
fo

r s
ys

te
m

s 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

ith
 fa

m
ili

es
. 

o
IP

A
D

D
U

ni
te

 (7
,0

00
), 

o
G

oi
ng

 H
om

e 
C

oa
lit

io
n/

RE
Vu

p 
(2

35
 O

rg
s-

20
,0

00
 

re
ac

h)
,

o
Fa

m
ily

 M
at

te
rs

 (5
24

5)
, 

o
Th

e 
A

rc
 o

f I
l (

22
,2

35
),

o
Th

e 
Ill

in
oi

s 
Se

lf-
A

dv
oc

ac
y 

A
lli

an
ce

 (1
50

), 
o

M
cM

an
us

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 (3

00
0)

 
o

C
C

H
I (

70
0)

SE
RV

IC
E 

PR
O

V
ID

ER
S

●
Re

ce
pt

iv
e 

to
 a

nd
 ta

ki
ng

 in
iti

at
iv

e 
on

 s
ys

te
m

s 
ch

an
ge

 in
 Il

lin
oi

s 
●

Pr
ov

id
er

s 
le

ar
ni

ng
 a

bo
ut

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
fo

r s
up

po
rt

ed
 li

vi
ng

 
●

Su
pp

or
te

d 
ho

us
in

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
●

C
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 fa

m
ili

es
 in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

m
or

e 
cr

ea
tiv

e 
so

lu
tio

ns
●

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 a

dv
oc

at
in

g 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 w
ag

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
Th

ey
 

D
es

er
ve

 M
or

e

6

82

https://www.ipaddunite.org/ipadd-facebook-presence
https://www.goinghomeillinois.org
https://fmptic.org/self-advocacy/bridget-brown-self-advocacy-rocks-video-blog.html
https://www.thearcofil.org/
https://selfadvocacyalliance.org
https://www.sedol.us/cms/lib/IL01904150/Centricity/Domain/547/McManus%20Consulting%20DDD%20System%20in%20Illinois.pdf
https://thecchi.org


D
re

am
s

D
re

am
in

g 
fo

r I
lli

no
is

 c
iti

ze
ns

 w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s…

.

“P
re

te
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 m

ag
ic

 w
an

d 
an

d 
an

yt
hi

ng
 c

an
 h

ap
pe

n!
”

7

“I
t’s

 n
ot

 b
ec

au
se

 th
in

gs
 a

re
 d

iffi
cu

lt 

th
at

 w
e 

do
 n

ot
 d

ar
e,

 it
 is

 b
ec

au
se

 w
e 

do
 n

ot
 d

ar
e 

th
at

 th
in

gs
 a

re
 d

iffi
cu

lt.
”

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  ~
Se

ne
ca

83



D
re

am
s

●
Eq

ui
ty

 in
 fu

nd
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

H
om

e 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

-B
as

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(H
C

B
S)

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 
Li

vi
ng

 A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 (C

IL
A

) 
●

Pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
liv

in
g 

w
he

re
 

th
ey

 w
an

t a
nd

 h
av

in
g 

th
e 

su
pp

or
ts

 th
ey

 
ne

ed
 

●
B

ui
ld

 C
om

m
un

ity
 c

ap
ac

ity
●

Sm
oo

th
er

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
fro

m
 s

ch
oo

l t
o 

co
m

m
un

ity
 li

fe
  

●
D

at
a-

in
fo

rm
ed

 tr
au

m
a 

th
er

ap
y 

- 
de

es
ca

la
tin

g 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

●
H

om
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 –

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

&
 n

at
ur

al
 s

up
po

rt
s 

8

●
Fu

nd
in

g 
th

at
 fo

llo
w

s 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

 li
fe

lo
ng

 
M

on
ey

 F
ol

lo
w

s 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

●
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
fu

ll 
lif

e
●

Ro
om

m
at

e 
m

at
ch

in
g

●
M

or
e 

pe
op

le
 p

ul
le

d 
fro

m
 P

U
N

S 
●

N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

lis
t f

or
 s

up
po

rt
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

  
N

O
 M

O
RE

 P
U

N
S 

LI
ST

S
●

C
om

m
un

ity
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

●
M

ob
ile

 n
ur

si
ng

 
●

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
on

 d
em

an
d 

an
d 

on
 ti

m
e 

●
Pe

op
le

 m
ov

e 
fro

m
 S

ta
te

 O
pe

ra
te

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

l C
en

te
rs

 (S
O

D
C

s)
 to

 
liv

in
g 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 w

an
t a

nd
 m

on
ey

 
fo

llo
w

s 
th

em
 in

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

  

84



D
re

am
s

●
C

lo
se

 2
 S

O
D

C
s!

●
Re

pl
ac

e 
‘D

is
co

ve
ry

 p
ro

ce
ss

’ w
ith

 a
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
, p

la
in

 la
ng

ua
ge

, v
is

ua
l p

ro
ce

ss
 

th
at

 is
 s

im
pl

ifi
ed

●
10

 b
ill

io
n 

$$
$ 

in
ve

st
ed

 in
to

 
co

m
m

un
ity

-b
as

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

●
A

de
qu

at
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 
●

C
iv

ic
 k

in
dn

es
s 

●
B

et
te

r e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t p
oo

l 
●

St
af

f r
et

en
tio

n 
an

d 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
●

C
IL

A
 s

ys
te

m
 th

at
 is

 p
er

so
n 

dr
iv

en
 

●
Fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fo
r m

ed
ic

al
ly

 a
nd

 
be

ha
vi

or
al

ly
 c

om
pl

ex
 in

di
vi

du
al

s
●

A
 m

en
u 

of
 c

ho
ic

es
 –

 ro
bu

st
 a

nd
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 I/
D

D
 

9

●
A

 s
ys

te
m

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
Li

fe
lo

ng
 p

er
so

n-
 c

en
te

re
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 
th

at
 a

re
 c

ul
tu

ra
lly

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
so

 
ev

er
yo

ne
 c

an
 re

ce
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

●
U

nb
un

dl
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
●

Ill
in

oi
s 

ra
nk

s 
in

 th
e 

to
p 

ha
lf 

of
 th

e 
na

tio
n 

in
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 li

vi
ng

, 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 
●

B
et

te
r c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

st
at

e 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

●
N

o 
m

ar
ria

ge
 p

en
al

ty
 

●
D

ec
re

as
ed

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 a

ll 
co

ng
re

ga
te

 
se

tt
in

gs
 

85



Th
e 

N
ow

W
he

re
 is

 Il
lin

oi
s 

to
da

y?
 

W
e 

as
ke

d 
al

l p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 a
he

ad
 o

f t
im

e 
to

 s
ub

m
it 

th
ei

r t
op

 
2 

co
nc

er
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t r

es
id

en
tia

l &
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

in
 th

e 
st

at
e 

of
 

Ill
in

oi
s.

It 
w

as
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 to

uc
h 

on
 a

s 
m

an
y 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 w
ith

ou
t p

er
se

ve
ra

tin
g 

on
 w

ha
t c

an
 s

om
et

im
es

 
ca

us
e 

co
nf

lic
t. 

C
om

m
en

ts
 w

er
e 

th
en

 o
rg

an
iz

ed
 a

ro
un

d 
co

m
m

on
 to

pi
cs

 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 a

 c
le

ar
 c

ha
rt

 fo
r 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
&

 q
ue

st
io

ns
.

10

“W
ith

 c
ou

ra
ge

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 y
ou

r 
fe

ar
, j

um
p 

in
to

 th
e 

un
kn

ow
n 

an
d 

yo
u 

w
ill

 fl
y!

”
~

 u
nk

no
w

n

86



Th
e 

N
ow

 

11

N
o 

p
er

so
n-

ce
nt

er
ed

 fo
cu

s 
&

 
p

rin
ci

p
le

s 
●

O
ve

rs
er

ve
d 

an
d 

un
de

rs
er

ve
d 

co
ns

um
er

s
●

M
ed

ic
al

 m
od

el
 v

s 
So

ci
al

 M
od

el
 

●
I/

D
D

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 n

ot
 fo

cu
se

d 
on

 P
C

P 
●

N
on

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

st
at

e 
‘d

is
co

ve
ry

 
pr

oc
es

s’
 

●
N

o 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
l c

ho
ic

e 
●

W
ai

ve
r c

ho
ic

es
 d

on
’t 

m
ee

t p
er

so
n 

ce
nt

er
ed

 g
oa

ls
 

●
N

o 
al

ig
nm

en
t b

et
w

ee
n 

w
ha

t I
lli

no
is

 
po

lic
y 

sa
ys

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l a

pp
lic

at
io

n

C
ur

re
nt

 w
ai

ve
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

●
N

o 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

●
N

o 
in

no
va

tio
n 

●
N

o 
cr

ea
tiv

ity
 

●
EV

V 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s
●

H
B

S 
1:

1 
se

rv
ic

e 
on

ly
 v

s 
C

IL
A

 
4:

1
●

Re
gu

la
tio

n 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 

●
In

eq
ua

lit
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

H
B

S/
C

IL
A

/S
O

D
C

 

Vi
si

on
 &

 P
er

so
n 

C
en

te
re

d 
Fo

cu
s

87



Th
e 

N
ow

 

12

Su
p

p
or

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

●
N

ot
 a

de
qu

at
e 

N
at

ur
al

 s
up

po
rt

s 
●

St
af

f s
ho

rt
ag

es
●

Li
m

ite
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 

●
La

ck
 o

f F
am

ily
 a

nd
 I/

D
D

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 
●

N
ot

 e
no

ug
h 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 (I
SC

) o
r P

ar
en

t E
du

ca
tio

n 
on

 c
ho

ic
e 

●
N

o 
Su

p
p

or
te

d
 L

iv
in

g
 

●
N

o 
in

te
rim

 B
rid

g
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
hi

le
 

w
ai

tin
g

 fo
r 

ch
an

g
e

●
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

re
 n

ot
 

se
pa

ra
te

d 
●

N
o 

sp
ec

tr
um

 o
f o

pt
io

ns
 o

r c
ho

ic
e

●
Sl

ow
 o

r l
ac

k 
of

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

ris
is

 

C
om

pl
ex

 N
ee

ds
 

●
N

o 
C

IL
A

 o
r c

om
m

un
ity

 li
vi

ng
 o

pt
io

ns
 

●
N

o 
Pr

ov
id

er
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

 to
 s

er
ve

 th
is

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

●
N

o 
Sp

ec
ia

liz
ed

 c
ar

e 
st

af
f 

●
N

o 
Ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 re
je

ct
io

n 
●

Re
lia

nc
e 

on
 e

xt
en

si
ve

 fa
m

ily
 s

up
po

rt
 

●
N

o 
ho

pe
 

La
ck

 o
f c

ap
ac

ity
 in

 t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

●
Lo

ng
 w

ai
tin

g 
lis

t t
o 

be
 p

ul
le

d 
fro

m
 P

U
N

S 
lis

t 
60

 m
on

th
s 

av
er

ag
e

●
Se

co
nd

 la
ye

r o
f w

ai
tin

g 
fo

r f
or

 a
 h

om
e 

af
te

r 
be

in
g 

pu
lle

d 
fro

m
 P

U
N

S 
ca

n 
st

ill
 b

e 
ye

ar
s 

m
or

e 
&

 is
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

LI
G

A
S 

da
ta

●
A

 re
su

lt 
of

 in
ac

tio
n 

●
La

ck
 o

f s
ta

bl
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

●
La

ck
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t o

ve
r t

im
e 

Su
pp

or
te

d 
Li

vi
ng

 W
ai

ve
r

88



Th
e 

N
ow

 

13

Fu
nd

in
g

 
●

In
eq

ua
lit

y 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
: H

B
S,

 C
IL

A
, S

O
D

C
 (S

ta
te

 
O

pe
ra

te
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l C

en
te

rs
) 

●
O

ve
rly

 c
om

pl
ex

 fu
nd

in
g 

be
ne

fit
s:

 n
av

ig
at

io
n 

&
 

pr
ov

id
er

 re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t r
at

es
●

St
ag

na
nt

 fo
r t

oo
 lo

ng
 le

av
in

g 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

to
 b

ui
ld

 c
ap

ac
ity

●
N

ee
d 

m
or

e 
m

on
ey

 fo
r c

as
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

no
t 

en
ou

gh
 fo

r H
om

e 
B

as
ed

 S
up

po
rt

 c
as

e 
lo

ad
s 

 
●

N
ot

 u
si

ng
 m

on
ey

 fo
llo

w
s 

th
e 

pe
rs

on
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 in

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
●

N
on

-In
te

gr
at

ed
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

ac
ro

ss
 D

D
 s

ys
te

m
s 

●
N

ot
 e

as
y 

to
 fi

nd
 a

ns
w

er
s 

on
 D

D
 w

eb
,  

an
tiq

ua
te

d 
w

eb
 in

te
rf

ac
e 

●
N

on
-a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
&

 c
om

pl
ic

at
ed

 n
av

ig
at

io
n 

●
D

is
tr

es
se

d 
sy

st
em

 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g

 
●

N
ot

 ta
ki

ng
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
f n

at
io

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l g
ra

nt
s 

●
N

ot
 u

til
iz

in
g 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 s
ta

te
s 

●
U

nu
se

d 
IL

 re
se

ar
ch

 s
tu

di
es

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 in
ve

st
ed

 in
 

Ill
in

oi
s 

N
on

 –
 S

lo
w

 C
om

p
lia

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 
la

w ●
H

om
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 B

as
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(H

C
B

S)
 

Se
tt

in
gs

 R
ul

e 
N

on
-C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
●

Li
ga

s 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
●

W
eb

si
te

 I/
D

D
 N

o 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

●
O

lm
st

ea
d 

vi
ol

at
io

ns
 

●
La

w
su

its
 

Vi
si

on
, E

du
ca

tio
n 

&
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 

89



Th
e 

Fe
ar

“W
ha

t w
ill

 h
ap

pe
n 

to
 m

y 
ad

ul
t c

hi
ld

 w
ith

 a
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
af

te
r I

’m
 g

on
e?

”

~
 E

ve
ry

 s
in

gl
e 

pa
re

nt
 o

f a
 c

hi
ld

 w
ith

 a
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

   
w

ith
ou

t e
xc

ep
tio

n

14

90



Fu
tu

re
 S

ea
rc

h
W

e 
st

ep
pe

d 
in

to
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

, M
ay

 2
02

5.
 “T

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
be

st
 y

ea
r f

or
 Il

lin
oi

s 
ci

tiz
en

s 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s.
”

W
ith

 a
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
Po

si
tiv

e 
&

 P
os

si
bl

e,
 w

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

5 
cl

ea
r 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 ju

m
ps

ta
rt

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 Il

lin
oi

s.
 T

he
se

 5
 a

re
as

 
w

ou
ld

 ta
ke

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f F

O
C

US
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
ES

. E
ng

ag
e 

IL
 

at
te

nd
ee

s 
si

gn
ed

 o
n 

fo
r p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 th

es
e 

co
m

m
itt

ee
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
ei

r e
xp

er
tis

e 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
. 

1  
SU

ST
A

IN
A

BL
E 

ST
RU

C
TU

RE
 -

 A
n 

A
dv

oc
ac

y 
C

oa
lit

io
n 

is
 c

re
at

ed
 a

s 
a 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ov
er

ar
ch

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
w

ith
 ‘a

rm
s’

 to
 a

dv
oc

at
e 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

N
O

W
. 

By
 c

om
bi

ni
ng

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 re

la
te

d 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
 w

ith
 3

7,
80

0 
pl

us
 s

tr
on

g 
w

e 
ha

ve
 c

rit
ic

al
 m

as
s 

to
 p

us
h 

fo
r c

ha
ng

es
 a

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

2 
 V

IS
IO

N
 -

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 v
is

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 I/
D

D
 s

ys
te

m
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

am
on

gs
t s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

fr
om

 a
ll 

ar
ea

s:
 S

el
f a

dv
oc

at
es

, f
am

ili
es

, a
lli

es
, t

he
 Il

lin
oi

s 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t o
f h

um
an

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

or
’s

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n.

 

3 
 W

A
IV

ER
 A

M
EN

D
M

EN
T 

 -
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

an
d 

dr
af

t a
 p

ro
po

sa
l f

or
 a

 ‘S
up

po
rt

ed
 L

iv
in

g’
 

w
ai

ve
r a

m
en

dm
en

t w
ith

 a
 m

en
u 

of
 o

pt
io

ns
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
ns

um
er

 n
ee

d.
 A

llo
w

 fo
r 

fle
xi

bl
e 

cr
ea

tiv
e 

so
lu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 a
 p

er
so

n 
ce

nt
er

ed
 fo

cu
s 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
m

ed
ic

al
, m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
, a

nd
 b

eh
av

io
ra

l n
ee

ds
 a

dd
ed

 to
 th

e 
w

ai
ve

r a
m

en
dm

en
t. 

 

4 
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 &

 IN
FR

A
ST

RU
C

TU
RE

 -
  D

ev
el

op
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 e
as

ily
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
av

en
ue

s 
fo

r e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
st

at
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

lif
es

pa
n 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ily

 s
up

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

k 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

as
 

a 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 a
ca

de
m

ic
 y

ea
rs

.

5 
 E

N
G

A
G

E 
IL

 -
 N

or
th

 S
ta

r P
la

n 
‘2

4 
ha

s 
re

gu
la

r o
ng

oi
ng

 in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 

te
am

 
an

d 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

of
 fo

cu
s 

co
m

m
itt

ee
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d.

 
15

“W
e 

ca
n’

t s
ol

ve
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

by
 

us
in

g 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ki
nd

 o
f t

hi
nk

in
g 

w
e 

us
ed

 w
he

n 
w

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
th

em
.”

 
   

   
  ~

 A
lb

er
t E

in
st

ei
n

91



SU
ST

AI
N

AB
LE

 S
TR

UC
TU

RE
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E

16

Fu
tu

re
 S

ea
rc

h 
M

ay
 2

02
5

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

W
ho

W
he

n

SU
ST

A
IN

A
B

LE
 S

TR
U

C
TU

R
E 

 
A

d
vo

ca
cy

 C
oa

lit
io

n 
G

oa
ls

Le
ad

K
im

 M
er

ce
r-S

ch
le

id
er

Ju
ne

 2
02

4

A
n 

A
dv

oc
ac

y 
C

oa
lit

io
n 

is
 

cr
ea

te
d 

as
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
ov

er
ar

ch
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
ith

 
‘a

rm
s’

 to
 a

dv
oc

at
e 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
s 

id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
N

O
W

. B
y 

co
m

bi
ni

ng
 

m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 

re
la

te
d 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 w
ith

 
37

,8
00

 p
lu

s 
st

ro
ng

 w
e 

ha
ve

 
cr

iti
ca

l m
as

s 
to

 p
us

h 
fo

r 
ch

an
ge

s 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
.

●
M

ap
 o

ut
 a

dv
oc

ac
y 

gr
ou

ps
 in

 Il
lin

oi
s 

●
Sc

he
du

le
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 o
r 

TB
A

 m
ee

tin
gs

●
Fo

rm
 s

ub
co

m
m

itt
ee

s 
ar

ou
nd

 in
te

re
st

/n
ee

d
●

Re
se

ar
ch

 F
un

di
ng

 
gr

ou
p

●
Id

en
tif

y 
fu

nc
tio

n
●

Lo
ok

 a
t A

C
L/

H
SR

I 
G

ra
ss

ro
ot

s 
G

ra
nt

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n

1.
D

ia
ne

 C
om

pt
on

2.
Sh

ar
on

 C
os

ta
bi

le
3.

Sh
irl

ey
 P

er
ez

4.
C

ar
ol

e 
Ro

se
n

5.
M

eg
 C

oo
ch

6.
B

ar
b 

Pr
itc

ha
rd

7.
G

re
g 

W
al

ki
ng

to
n

8.
Ju

lie
 E

va
ns

9.
D

D
 A

dv
is

or
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

M
em

be
r

10
.

D
es

ig
na

te
 S

el
f 

A
dv

oc
at

e 
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

t

Sc
he

du
le

 fi
rs

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 

m
ee

tin
g 

in
 J

un
e:

 V
er

ify
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 fo

cu
s,

 le
ad

er
,  

sc
he

du
le

 a
nd

 fi
rs

t g
oa

l.

U
pd

at
es

 Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 o

r T
B

A

Ju
ne

 2
6,

 2
02

4 
En

ga
ge

 IL
 N

SP
: 

Sy
nc

 P
ro

gr
es

s

92

mailto:Digrcomp@aol.com
mailto:Meg.Cooch@illinois.gov


VI
SI

O
N

 C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E

17

Fu
tu

re
 S

ea
rc

h
M

ay
 2

02
5

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

W
ho

St
ar

tin
g

 P
oi

nt

V
IS

IO
N

 
U

ni
ve

rs
al

ly
 d

ev
el

op
ed

G
oa

ls
Le

ad
K

at
hy

 C
ar

m
od

y
Ju

ne
 2

02
4

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 v
is

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 I/
D

D
 s

ys
te

m
 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
m

on
gs

t 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 fr

om
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s:

 S
el

f a
dv

oc
at

es
, 

fa
m

ili
es

, a
lli

es
, t

he
 Il

lin
oi

s 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t o
f h

um
an

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

or
s 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n.

 

●
V

is
io

n 
Te

m
pl

at
e 

cr
ea

tio
n

●
V

is
io

n 
bu

ild
in

g 
w

ith
in

 a
ll

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
gr

ou
ps

●
Re

vi
ew

 th
e 

B
lu

ep
rin

t
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l s

ca
n

Sy
st

em
 R

ed
es

ig
n 

fo
r 

st
ra

te
gy

 &
 p

os
si

bl
e 

up
da

tin
g 

- G
re

g 
Pe

te
rs

on
 

●
H

os
t w

eb
in

ar
 o

n
B

lu
ep

rin
t -

 G
r e

g

1.
M

ar
k 

M
cH

ug
h

2.
K

im
 Z

oe
lle

r
3.

Sh
ar

on
 C

os
ta

bi
le

4.
G

re
g 

Pe
te

rs
on

5.
A

nn
a 

K
is

se
l

6.
G

ra
ce

 H
ou

 &
 R

ya
n 

C
ro

ke
7.

To
ny

a 
Pi

ep
ho

f f 
&

M
eg

 C
oo

ch
8.

D
ou

g 
M

cD
on

al
d

9.
Sa

m
an

th
a 

A
llo

w
ay

 (A
rc

)
10

.
D

es
ig

na
te

 S
el

f A
dv

oc
at

e
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

t

Sc
he

du
le

 fi
rs

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 

m
ee

tin
g 

in
 J

un
e:

 V
er

ify
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 fo

cu
s,

 le
ad

er
,  

sc
he

du
le

 a
nd

 fi
rs

t g
oa

l.

U
pd

at
es

 Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 o

r T
B

A

Ju
ne

 2
6,

 2
02

4 
En

ga
ge

 IL
 N

SP
: 

Sy
nc

 P
ro

gr
es

s

93

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1EgVCCaSc92MxC5EorGRsyCnyWYUcOulP/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1EgVCCaSc92MxC5EorGRsyCnyWYUcOulP/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1EgVCCaSc92MxC5EorGRsyCnyWYUcOulP/view?usp=share_link


W
AI

VE
R 

AM
EN

D
M

EN
T 

C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E

18

Fu
tu

re
 S

ea
rc

h 
- M

ay
 2

02
5

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

W
ho

St
ar

tin
g 

Po
in

t

W
A

IV
ER

 A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T
Su

pp
or

te
d 

Li
vi

ng
 

G
oa

ls
Le

ad
Su

sa
n 

M
ac

k 
- t

en
ta

tiv
e

Ju
ne

 2
02

4

Re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 d
ra

ft
 a

 p
ro

po
sa

l 
fo

r a
 S

up
po

rt
ed

 L
iv

in
g 

w
ai

ve
r 

am
en

dm
en

t w
ith

 a
 m

en
u 

of
 

op
tio

ns
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
ns

um
er

 
ne

ed
. A

llo
w

 fo
r fl

ex
ib

le
 

cr
ea

tiv
e 

so
lu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 a
 

pe
rs

on
 c

en
te

re
d 

fo
cu

s 
w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

es
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r m
ed

ic
al

, 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
, a

nd
 b

eh
av

io
ra

l 
ne

ed
s 

ad
de

d 
to

 th
e 

w
ai

ve
r 

am
en

dm
en

t. 
 

●
C

re
at

e 
a 

su
pp

or
te

d 
liv

in
g 

w
ai

ve
r a

m
en

dm
en

t 
●

Pi
lo

t a
nd

 o
r a

 c
om

m
itm

en
t f

or
 

w
ai

ve
r a

m
en

dm
en

t J
U

LY
 1

st
 

Pr
op

os
al

 to
 D

H
S

●
A

dd
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

N
O

W
 

fo
r c

om
pl

ex
 n

ee
ds

, c
re

at
iv

ity
 

an
d 

cr
ea

te
 a

 w
ai

ve
r t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
cu

rr
en

t c
ris

is
 n

ee
ds

 
●

G
at

he
r I

L 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
re

po
rt

s 
so

 
w

e 
do

n'
t d

up
lic

at
e 

ef
fo

rt
s

●
Re

se
ar

ch
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 li
vi

ng
 

w
ai

ve
rs

 in
 o

th
er

 s
ta

te
s 

1.
Ja

ni
ce

 W
ei

ns
te

in
2.

Sh
irl

ey
 S

ai
ns

3.
A

ng
el

a 
Is

it 
4.

Jo
sh

 E
va

ns
 

5.
B

et
h 

O
w

en
s

6.
Pa

ul
 B

la
ub

am
 

7.
Sh

ar
on

 C
os

ta
bi

le
8.

D
en

ni
s 

A
zu

m
a 

9.
R

ya
n 

C
ro

ke
 &

 G
ra

ce
  H

ou
10

.
To

ny
a 

Pi
ep

ho
ff 

&
 M

eg
 C

oo
ch

 
11

.
A

m
ie

 L
ul

in
sk

i
12

.
G

re
g 

W
al

ki
ng

to
n

13
.

Ju
lie

 E
va

ns
14

.
C

ai
tli

n 
C

ra
bb

15
.

D
es

ig
na

te
 S

el
f A

dv
oc

at
e 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
t

16
.

Su
pp

or
te

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
vi

de
rs

 
A

ss
oc

.(S
H

PA
) p

ar
tic

ip
an

t

Sc
he

du
le

 fi
rs

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 

m
ee

tin
g 

in
 J

un
e:

 V
er

ify
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 fo

cu
s,

 le
ad

er
,  

sc
he

du
le

 a
nd

 fi
rs

t g
oa

l.

U
pd

at
es

 Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 o

r T
B

A

Ju
ne

 2
6,

 2
02

4 
En

ga
ge

 IL
 N

SP
: 

Sy
nc

 P
ro

gr
es

s

94



ED
UC

AT
IO

N
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E

19

Fu
tu

re
 S

ea
rc

h 
M

ay
 2

02
5

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

W
ho

W
he

n

ED
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 &

 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

G
oa

ls
Le

ad
 

La
ur

a 
Fi

ne
Ju

ne
 2

02
4

D
ev

el
op

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

ea
si

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
av

en
ue

s 
fo

r e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
st

at
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

lif
es

pa
n 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ily

 s
up

po
rt

 
ne

tw
or

k 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

as
 a

 p
ar

t 
of

 th
e 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

rs
.

●
D

is
tr

ib
ut

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 to
 W

or
k 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
G

ui
de

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
at

 
IL

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e
●

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
N

o 
W

ro
ng

 D
oo

r 
sy

st
em

 fo
r p

ar
en

t/
 I/

D
D

 e
du

c.
●

Lo
ok

 a
t M

N
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 H
ub

 fo
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

●
St

at
e 

B
ud

ge
t w

eb
in

ar
 - 

R
ya

n 
C

ro
ke

●
Pa

re
nt

 s
up

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

k 
I/

D
D

 
ne

tw
or

k 
-r

oo
m

m
at

es
●

Ea
rli

er
 p

ar
en

t e
du

ca
tio

n
●

En
tr

ep
re

ne
ur

sh
ip

 
●

SE
P/

C
us

t E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t

1.
Th

e 
A

rc
, G

H
 C

oa
lit

io
n,

 
Fa

m
ily

 M
at

te
rs

2.
R

ya
n 

C
ro

ke
 - 

A
dm

in
 

Ed
 b

ud
ge

t
3.

Vi
ck

i N
is

w
an

de
r

4.
B

ria
n 

St
re

tc
h

5.
A

bb
i M

ar
s

6.
D

ia
ne

 C
om

pt
on

7.
D

es
ig

na
te

 S
el

f 
A

dv
oc

at
e 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
t

8.
Yo

un
ge

r p
ar

en
t 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
t

Sc
he

du
le

 fi
rs

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 

m
ee

tin
g 

in
 J

un
e:

 V
er

ify
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 fo

cu
s,

 le
ad

er
,  

sc
he

du
le

 a
nd

 fi
rs

t g
oa

l.

U
pd

at
es

 Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 o

r T
B

A

Ju
ne

 2
6,

 2
02

4 
En

ga
ge

 IL
 N

SP
: 

Sy
nc

 P
ro

gr
es

s

95

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1B82WibENTtcgj4ggcgbEh7Schc0-LVCi/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1B82WibENTtcgj4ggcgbEh7Schc0-LVCi/view?usp=sharing
https://nwd.acl.gov/building-a-nwd-system.html
https://nwd.acl.gov/building-a-nwd-system.html
https://disabilityhubmn.org
mailto:vniswander@gmail.com
mailto:Digrcomp@aol.com


EN
G

AG
E 

IL:
 N

S 
PL

AN
 ‘2

4 
C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E

20

Fu
tu

re
 S

ea
rc

h 
M

ay
 2

02
5

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

W
ho

W
he

n

EN
G

A
G

E 
IL

: N
or

th
 S

ta
r 

Pl
an

 ‘2
4 

C
om

m
itt

ee
G

oa
ls

Le
ad

Sh
ar

on
 C

os
ta

bi
le

Se
lf 

A
dv

oc
at

es
Ju

ne
 5

, 2
02

4

N
or

th
 S

ta
r P

la
n 

‘2
4 

ha
s 

re
gu

la
r o

ng
oi

ng
 

in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 

te
am

 
an

d 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

of
 

fo
cu

s 
co

m
m

itt
ee

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d.
 

●
Se

nd
 S

um
m

ar
y 

&
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 li
st

 “
Yo

ur
 S

to
ry

 m
at

te
rs

” 
 v

id
eo

s
●

Zo
om

 w
ith

 v
irt

ua
l a

tt
en

de
es

  i
np

ut
 &

in
te

re
st

●
Zo

om
 6

/5
 fi

na
l E

ng
ag

e 
IL

 N
or

th
 S

ta
r

Pl
an

 ‘2
4.

●
Zo

om
 6

/1
2 

O
PE

N
 e

nr
ol

lm
en

t
m

ee
tin

g 
fo

r F
oc

us
 C

om
m

itt
ee

s
●

Zo
om

 6
/2

6 
w

ith
 F

oc
us

C
om

m
itt

ee
/L

ea
ds

 to
 r e

vi
ew

 G
ro

up
M

ee
tin

g
s 

re
p

or
ts

 o
n 

fo
cu

s,
le

ad
er

sh
ip

, s
ch

ed
ul

es
 a

nd
 g

oa
ls

●
EN

G
A

G
E 

IL
 Q

tr
 z

oo
m

 m
ee

tin
gs

 fo
r

al
l  

(q
ua

rt
er

ly
 s

ta
rt

in
g 

Ju
ly

)
●

EN
G

A
G

E 
IL

 A
nn

ua
l S

pr
in

gfi
el

d
m

ee
tin

g 
in

 p
er

so
n 

(T
B

A
- K

im
)

●
N

an
cy

 B
ro

w
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r  
m

in
i

pl
an

ni
ng

 m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 c
om

m
itt

ee
s.

1.
N

an
cy

 B
ro

w
n

2.
K

im
M

er
ce

r-S
ch

le
id

er

3.
M

eg
 C

oo
ch

4.
R

ya
n 

C
ro

ke

5.
A

nn
a 

K
is

se
l

6.
C

hr
is

 M
or

ris

7.
W

en
dy

 P
lig

ge

B
rid

ge
t B

ro
w

n

A
sh

le
y 

M
cl

eo
d

Ra
ch

el
 

C
os

ta
bi

le

Ru
th

 P
lig

ge

H
al

ey
 M

or
ris

Er
ik

a 
K

is
se

l

5/
29

/2
4 

Zo
om

 1
0:

00
 a

m
 V

irt
ua

l E
ng

ag
e 

m
em

be
rs

6/
5/

24
 Z

oo
m

 1
0:

00
 a

m
  A

ll 
En

ga
ge

 IL

6/
12

/2
4 

Zo
om

 1
0:

00
 a

m
 O

pe
n 

En
ro

ll 
Fo

cu
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
s

6/
26

/2
4 

Zo
om

 1
0:

00
 a

m
 F

oc
us

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

Le
ad

er
 S

yn
c

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 - 

A
ll 

En
ga

ge
 IL

 

   
 7

/9
/2

4 
Zo

om
 1

0:
00

 a
m

   
 1

1/
12

/2
4 

Zo
om

 1
0:

00
 a

m

   
 2

/1
1/

25
 Z

oo
m

 1
0:

00
 a

m

A
nn

ua
l -

 A
ll 

En
g

ag
e 

IL
 In

 P
er

so
n 

   
  5

/1
3/

25
  9

:3
0 

am
 -

 3
:3

0 
p

m

96

mailto:Meg.Cooch@illinois.gov
mailto:annakissel@aol.com
mailto:morrischristine99@gmail.com
mailto:heyitsash1989@gmail.com
mailto:RLCdance15@aol.com
mailto:RLCdance15@aol.com
mailto:bugvolley@comcast.net


W
ha

t o
pe

ne
d 

yo
ur

 h
ea

rt
 to

 
jo

in
in

g 
us

…
●

Sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

gr
ea

te
r c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 
●

So
n 

w
ith

 a
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 h
is

 fu
tu

re
 

●
H

op
es

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
to

 g
et

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 w

an
ts

 m
et

 
●

Fu
tu

re
 fo

r m
y 

ch
ild

re
n 

is
 d

au
nt

in
g

●
Li

st
en

 a
nd

 le
ar

n 
●

Sc
ho

ol
 a

ge
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 
●

B
ro

th
er

 w
ith

 a
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

. P
eo

pl
e 

to
da

y 
ha

ve
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

fe
ar

s 
hi

s 
pa

re
nt

s 
di

d.
 S

up
po

rt
 n

ee
de

d 
fo

r p
ar

en
ts

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

●
La

ck
 o

f o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

ee
ds

 
●

N
o 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r d
au

gh
te

r w
ith

 c
om

pl
ex

 n
ee

ds
 o

nc
e 

pa
re

nt
s 

ar
e 

go
ne

 
●

Se
e 

th
e 

D
D

 s
ys

te
m

 s
ta

bi
liz

ed
 a

nd
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 
●

A
lig

nm
en

t a
nd

 g
at

he
rin

g 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

he
re

 to
da

y 
●

Sp
ea

k 
up

 &
 s

pe
ak

 o
ut

 fo
r t

hi
ng

s 
I n

ee
d 

●
Em

po
w

er
 s

el
f-

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
to

 li
ve

 th
ei

r b
es

t l
ife

 
●

H
om

eb
as

ed
 s

o 
im

po
rt

an
t a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 s
el

f-
di

re
ct

ed
 

●
To

 c
re

at
e 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
●

I h
av

e 
se

en
 to

o 
m

an
y 

do
or

s 
sl

am
m

ed
 in

 th
ei

r f
ac

es
 a

nd
 w

an
t t

o 
se

e 
do

or
s 

op
en

 
●

M
ak

e 
dr

ea
m

s 
ha

pp
en

 fo
r o

th
er

s 
●

Pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
to

 ta
ke

 th
e 

le
ad

 
●

Su
pp

or
t e

ffo
rt

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

op
tio

ns
●

Pe
op

le
’s 

dr
ea

m
s 

to
 c

om
e 

tr
ue

 
●

En
ha

nc
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

ee
ds

 
●

So
n 

w
an

ts
 to

 s
ta

y 
in

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

●
Si

st
er

 w
ith

 a
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 
21

W
e 

fo
un

d 
an

d 
sh

ar
ed

 o
ur

 C
om

m
on

 G
ro

un
d

97



C
on

ce
rn

s 
st

ill
 in

 
th

e 
w

ai
tin

g 
ro

om
…

●
St

at
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 in
ce

nt
iv

es
●

H
ea

lth
ca

re
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r D
D

 S
ta

ff
●

IS
C

 ‘s
 m

or
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

  
●

Se
lf-

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
w

ai
ve

r n
ot

 o
n 

a 
fla

t r
at

e 
ca

p 
●

Ev
er

yo
ne

 w
ho

 w
an

ts
 to

 li
ve

 in
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

er
ve

d 
w

ith
 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r f
am

ili
es

 a
nd

 I/
D

D
 in

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
●

Ev
er

yo
ne

 in
 S

O
D

C
 in

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

w
ith

 c
ho

ic
e 

am
on

g 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

if 
w

an
te

d 
●

PU
N

S-
 A

bl
e 

la
w

s 
in

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
●

Le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

w
ith

 h
el

p 
fro

m
 A

RC
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 a
du

lt 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
fa

m
ily

 K
-1

2 
Ph

il 
M

ilk
es

 –
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
sp

on
so

r 
●

A
rc

 re
ac

h 
ou

t t
o 

B
ra

dl
ey

 
●

Ze
ro

 d
at

a 
fo

r t
he

 s
ta

te
 to

 b
ac

ku
p 

w
ha

t I
/D

D
 n

ee
d

●
Tr

ue
 a

lig
nm

en
t t

o 
ne

ed
s 

●
1 

ye
ar

 –
 2

 S
O

D
C

’s 
cl

os
e 

●
Pu

ns
 d

at
a 

ou
tc

om
es

  -
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
w

ha
t i

s 
be

in
g 

tr
ac

ke
d 

●
O

ut
so

ur
ce

 w
eb

si
te

 d
at

a 
up

da
te

 
fu

nc
tio

ns
.

●
‘L

iv
e’

 h
el

p 
fo

r I
/D

D
 w

eb
si

te
 u

se
rs

22

Kn
ow

in
g 

w
e 

ca
n’

t d
o 

ev
er

yt
hi

ng
 a

t o
nc

e

“I
m

ag
in

e 
th

e 
‘C

el
eb

ra
tio

ns
’ w

e 
w

ill
 s

ha
re

 n
ex

t y
ea

r a
t o

ur
 a

nn
ua

l 
En

ga
ge

 IL
 in

 M
ay

, 2
02

5 
in

 
Sp

rin
gfi

el
d!

!”
 

   
   

  ~
 S

ha
ro

n 
C

os
ta

bi
le

●
A

dd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t t

o 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

gi
ve

n 
to

 fa
m

ili
es

●
Po

st
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 c
ol

le
ge

 o
pt

io
ns

 
id

en
tifi

ed
 to

 fa
m

ili
es

 
●

En
tr

ep
re

ne
ur

ia
l o

pt
io

ns
●

Sc
ho

ol
 a

ge
 p

ar
en

t g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

pa
re

nt
 n

et
w

or
k

●
IS

B
E 

95
K

 in
 IE

P 
se

rv
ic

es
 

●
W

ai
ve

r a
m

en
dm

en
t f

or
 D

RS
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
●

C
ar

eg
iv

er
 p

or
ta

l 
●

B
ui

ld
 o

ff 
th

in
gs

 w
e 

ha
ve

 
●

D
D

 a
dv

is
or

y 
co

un
ci

l: 
in

cl
ud

e 
fa

m
ili

es
 &

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 to

pi
cs

, n
ot

 ju
st

 g
et

 
a 

re
po

rt
 &

 s
ta

ff 
of

fic
e 

ho
ur

s 
●

W
ai

ve
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

m
or

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 
●

G
ra

ss
ro

ot
s 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 

th
ro

ug
h 

A
C

L 
●

En
ga

ge
m

en
t o

f p
eo

pl
e 

in
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
s 

ca
ut

io
us

ly
 

op
tim

is
tic

 
●

V
is

io
n 

st
at

em
en

t I
lli

no
is

●
Tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 w
ith

 
st

at
e 

bu
dg

et
 

●
D

at
a 

sy
st

em
 R

eb
al

an
ce

d

98



Ka
le

id
os

co
pe

●
En

co
ur

ag
ed

 
●

O
pt

im
is

tic
 

●
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e 

●
En

co
ur

ag
ed

●
Fo

cu
s 

●
O

pt
im

is
tic

 
●

C
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

e 
●

B
ra

vo
 

●
Po

te
nt

ia
l 

●
H

op
ef

ul
 

23

O
ne

 w
or

d 
th

at
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s

●
C

el
eb

ra
te

 
●

Im
po

rt
an

t
●

Pr
ou

d 
●

En
er

gi
ze

d 
●

C
au

tio
us

ly
 o

pt
im

is
tic

 
●

C
on

fid
en

t 
●

Ra
di

ca
lly

 o
pt

im
is

tic
●

Po
te

nt
ia

l 
●

H
op

ef
ul

 
●

M
ea

su
re

d

99



24

RE
SO

UR
C

ES

En
ga

ge
 IL

: U
ni

tin
g 

fo
r p

ro
gr

es
si

ve
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
up

po
rt

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 

~
 In

cl
ud

es
 S

um
m

ar
y 

in
 p

la
in

 la
ng

ua
ge

 a
nd

 P
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

EN
G

A
G

E 
IL

: K
ey

 Il
lin

oi
s 

Fa
ct

s 
H

an
do

ut
 fo

r u
ni

fie
d 

po
in

t o
f r

ef
er

en
ce

Ju
st

 a
 D

ol
lo

p 
M

ic
ro

bu
si

ne
ss

   
B

ut
te

rfl
ie

s 
fo

r C
ha

ng
e 

M
ic

ro
bu

si
ne

ss

D
ev

el
op

ed
 in

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
Th

e 
C

re
at

iv
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
et

w
or

k,
 N

ap
er

vi
lle

, I
L 

63
0-

41
7-

66
48

   
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
02

4 

100

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1GbYo0MAkmyId4SOffjorsluYtIk555Jy/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=104666019906787338803&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://docs.google.com/document/u/0/d/1IpIUiXHparacO8RlmjYcSElr9Hdcz7KVYtnycsLOKmU/edit
http://www.justadollop.org
http://www.butterfliesforchange.org


Saturday, October 18, 2025 11 am – 4 pm
Market Place Mall

2000 N Neil St, Champaign, IL 61820

A project of the Champaign County Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Boards

www.disabilityresourceexpo.org

Actively
engage in an

event that
empowers

everyone to
thrive!

Accessibility
assistance and

interpreters
available!

Resources
available for all
ages...we want

you at the Expo!

A special
thanks to our

2025 Featured
Sponsor
Thrivent

Financial!

Features the 16th Annual...

2000 N Neil St
Champaign, IL

101



Sábado 18 de octubre de 2025 11 a. m. a 4 p. m.
Market Place Mall

2000 N Neil St, Champaign, IL 61820

Un proyecto de las Juntas de Salud Mental y Discapacidades del Desarrollo del Condado de Champaign

www.disabilityresourceexpo.org

¡Participa
activamente
en un evento
que permita a

todos
prosperar!

¡Un
agradecimiento

especial a
nuestro

patrocinador
destacado de

2025: Thrivent
Financial!

Presenta la 16ª edición anual...

2000 N Neil St.
Champaign, Illinois

¡Recursos
disponibles para

todas las
edades...¡te

queremos a la
Expo!

¡Asistencia de
accesibilidad y

intérpretes
disponibles!

Sábado 18 de Octubre de 2025
11 a.m.- 4 p.m. Centro Comercial

 Market Place 

102



Sp
o

n
so

rs
h

ip
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
A

 D
IS

A
B

IL
IT

Y 
Re

so
ur

ce
 E

xp
o 

fo
r

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 &
 E

as
t 

Ce
nt

ra
l

Ill
in

oi
s

Th
e 

Ex
po

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 a

t
 M

ar
ke

t P
la

ce
 M

al
l

20
00

 N
 N

ei
l S

t, 
Ch

am
pa

ig
n,

 IL
 6

18
20

on
O

ct
ob

er
 1

8t
h 

20
25

Di
am

on
d 

Le
ve

l
Pl

at
in

um
 L

ev
el

G
ol

d 
Le

ve
l

 S
ilv

er
 L

ev
el

Br
on

ze
 L

ev
el

 

6.
5″

 
w

 
x 

9″
 

h
6.

5″
 

w
 

x 
9″

 
h

6.
5″

 w
 x

 4
.2

5″
 h

3″
 w

 x
 4

.2
5″

 h
 3

″ w
 x

 2
″ h

Th
e 

Re
so

ur
ce

 G
ui

de
 w

ill
 b

e 
ba

ck
 in

 2
02

5!
 P

rin
te

d
co

pi
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

ha
nd

ed
 o

ut
 to

 E
xp

o 
at

te
nd

ee
s 

an
d

sh
ar

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

ve
r t

he
 n

ex
t y

ea
r. 

Yo
u

ca
n 

al
so

 a
cc

es
s 

an
 o

nl
in

e 
ve

rs
io

n,
 fe

at
ur

in
g 

a
se

ar
ch

ab
le

 a
nd

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 d

ire
ct

or
y,

 a
t

di
sa

bi
lit

yr
es

ou
rc

ee
xp

o.
or

g.
 S

po
ns

or
s 

at
 th

e 
Br

on
ze

Le
ve

l o
r h

ig
he

r a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r a

 c
om

pl
im

en
ta

ry
ad

ve
rt

is
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
Re

so
ur

ce
 G

ui
de

.

Th
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 a
nd

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e:

   
   

  C
om

pl
et

e 
Ex

hi
bi

to
r I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
N

am
e

Se
rv

ic
es

 O
ffe

re
d

Co
nt

ac
t D

et
ai

ls
 

Ad
ve

rt
is

em
en

ts
 fr

om
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
th

at
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
Ex

po

A 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 o
nl

in
e 

di
re

ct
or

y 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

s
fro

m
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

G
ui

de
s 

of
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

Ex
po

s 
ca

n 
be

ac
ce

ss
ed

 a
t w

w
w

.d
is

ab
ili

ty
re

so
ur

ce
ex

po
.o

rg

Fo
r m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 p
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t

Dy
la

n 
Bo

ot
 a

t (
21

7)
 7

22
-5

28
1 

or
w

he
el

zo
th

un
de

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
w

w
w

.fa
ce

bo
ok

.c
om

/r
es

ou
rc

ee
xp

o
w

w
w

.d
is

ab
ili

ty
re

so
ur

ce
ex

po
.o

rg

Th
e 

DI
SA

BI
LI

TY
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Ex
po

 is
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

pr
oj

ec
t o

f t
he

 C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

Co
un

ty
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
Bo

ar
d 

an
d 

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l

Di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

Bo
ar

d,
 w

ith
 s

up
po

rt
 fr

om
 m

an
y

ge
ne

ro
us

 c
om

m
un

ity
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 w
hi

ch
 s

ho
ul

d
in

cl
ud

e 
yo

u!

Jo
in

 U
s 

by
 L

en
di

ng
 Y

ou
r

Su
pp

or
t!

Re
ce

iv
e 

a 
fr

ee
 a

d
in

 th
e 

20
25

 E
xp

o
Re

so
ur

ce
 G

ui
de

Ex
po

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
G

ui
de

 A
d 

Si
ze

s:

Pr
ou

dl
y 

In
tr

od
uc

in
g

20
25

 F
ea

tu
re

d 
Sp

on
so

r

Th
riv

en
t F

in
an

ci
al

 

Re
so

ur
ce

 G
ui

de
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 E
xp

o 
vi

si
to

rs
an

d 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 to

 c
om

m
un

ity
 m

em
be

rs
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 fo
r c

on
tin

ue
d 

us
e,

 s
er

vi
ng

 a
s 

a
va

lu
ab

le
 re

so
ur

ce
 fo

r f
am

ili
es

Gu
id
e

Re
so
ur
ce

103



A
n 

Im
po

rt
an

t 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
Re

so
ur

ce
 

H
ow

 Y
ou

 C
an

 M
ak

e 
A 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 

O
ur

 M
is

si
on

: T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

fu
ll 

ac
ce

ss
 to

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
fro

m
 a

 w
id

e
va

rie
ty

 o
f a

ge
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 to
pr

om
ot

e 
a 

be
tt

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

 C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

Co
un

ty
 a

nd
Ea

st
 C

en
tr

al
 Il

lin
oi

s.

Li
ke

 a
nd

 fo
llo

w
 u

s 
on

 In
st

ag
ra

m
an

d 
Fa

ce
bo

ok
. W

e’
ll 

br
ag

 a
bo

ut
ou

r s
po

ns
or

s 
on

 s
oc

ia
l m

ed
ia

.

Th
is

 e
xc

iti
ng

, a
nn

ua
l, 

co
m

m
un

ity
-w

id
e 

ev
en

t w
ill

be
 re

tu
rn

in
g 

to
 M

ar
ke

t P
la

ce
 M

al
l i

n 
Ch

am
pa

ig
n,

IL
 in

 O
ct

ob
er

 1
8t

h 
20

25
.  

A 
da

te
 w

ill
 b

e
an

no
un

ce
d 

in
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
m

on
th

s.
 

•A
ll 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 G

ol
d 

Le
ve

l, 
pl

us
...

•L
og

o 
on

 fr
on

t c
ov

er
 o

r b
ac

k 
co

ve
r o

f E
xp

o
Re

so
ur

ce
 G

ui
de

•F
ul

l p
ag

e 
ad

 (p
re

m
iu

m
 p

la
ce

m
en

t) 
in

 th
e

Ex
po

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
G

ui
de

•L
og

o 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 o
n 

Di
am

on
d 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
p

si
gn

s 
at

 c
en

tr
al

 lo
ca

tio
n 

at
 E

xp
o

•C
om

pa
ny

/o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
na

m
e 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
in

pu
bl

ic
ity

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

w
he

ne
ve

r p
os

si
bl

e

Th
e 

Ex
po

 is
 a

 fa
m

ily
-f

rie
nd

ly
 e

ve
nt

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

un
ite

 s
oc

ia
l 

se
rv

ic
e 

ag
en

ci
es

, 
m

ed
ic

al
 s

er
vi

ce
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

pr
ov

id
er

s,
 a

dv
oc

ac
y 

gr
ou

ps
,

an
d 

cu
tt

in
g-

ed
ge

 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
. 

It
 

ai
m

s 
to

ad
dr

es
s 

qu
es

tio
ns

 
fro

m
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 a
nd

 E
as

t 
Ce

nt
ra

l 
Ill

in
oi

s
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

su
pp

or
ts

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

By
 s

po
ns

or
in

g 
th

is
 e

ve
nt

, y
ou

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g
th

e 
m

os
t r

en
ow

ne
d 

re
so

ur
ce

 e
xp

o 
in

 E
as

t
Ce

nt
ra

l  
Ill

in
oi

s.
 T

og
et

he
r, 

w
e 

ar
e 

m
ak

in
g 

a
m

ea
ni

ng
fu

l i
m

pa
ct

! 
Th

an
k 

YO
U 

fo
r y

ou
r s

up
po

rt
!

Si
x 

di
ffe

re
nt

 s
po

ns
or

sh
ip

 le
ve

ls
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e,

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 c

on
si

st
 o

f e
ith

er
 m

on
et

ar
y

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 o
r i

n-
ki

nd
 s

up
po

rt
. T

o 
en

su
re

 fu
ll

re
co

gn
iti

on
, s

up
po

rt
er

s 
m

us
t p

le
dg

e 
th

ei
r

sp
on

so
rs

hi
p 

by
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

st
, 2

02
5.

•A
ck

no
w

le
dg

em
en

t l
et

te
r

•A
 1

/4
 p

ag
e 

ad
 in

 th
e 

Ex
po

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
G

ui
de

Th
an

k 
yo

u 
to

 a
ll 

of
 o

ur
 s

po
ns

or
s 

fo
r

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
 a

 m
or

e 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
!

•B
us

in
es

s 
Ca

rd
 s

iz
ed

 a
d 

in
 th

e 
Ex

po
 R

es
ou

rc
e

G
ui

de
.

•A
ll 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 G

ol
d 

Le
ve

l, 
pl

us
...

•Y
ou

r l
og

o 
pl

ac
ed

 o
n 

m
ai

n 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

em
en

t
si

gn
 a

t c
en

tr
al

 lo
ca

tio
n 

at
 th

e 
Ex

po
•F

ul
l p

ag
e 

ad
 in

 th
e 

Re
so

ur
ce

 G
ui

de

•L
is

te
d 

as
 s

po
ns

or
 o

n 
m

ai
n 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
t

si
gn

 a
t c

en
tr

al
 lo

ca
tio

n 
at

 E
xp

o
•A

 1
/2

 p
ag

e 
ad

 in
 th

e 
Ex

po
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

G
ui

de
•O

ne
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 b

oo
th

 s
pa

ce
 if

 d
es

ire
d.

 R
et

ai
l

sa
le

s 
ar

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
. I

nc
lu

de
s 

a 
6’

 T
ab

le
 —

ad
jo

in
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

is
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l $

20
0.

Ev
en

t D
et

ai
ls

 

D
ia

m
on

d 
Le

ve
l (

$1
00

0+
)

G
ol

d 
Le

ve
l (

$3
00

-$
49

9)

Si
lv

er
 L

ev
el

 ($
15

0-
$2

99
)

Br
on

ze
 L

ev
el

 ($
10

0-
$1

49
)

Fr
ie

nd
s 

Le
ve

l (
un

de
r 

$1
00

)

Pl
at

in
um

 L
ev

el
 ($

50
0-

$9
99

)

Bo
ot

h 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

-
re

la
te

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
r

Th
e 

Ex
po

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
Ch

am
pa

ig
n 

Co
un

ty
 a

nd
 E

as
t C

en
tr

al
Ill

in
oi

s 
w

ith
 a

 c
ha

nc
e 

to
 d

is
co

ve
r

av
ai

la
bl

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

It
 c

on
ne

ct
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s

an
d 

th
ei

r f
am

ili
es

 to
 th

e 
to

ol
s 

th
ey

 n
ee

d
fo

r g
re

at
er

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

.
Th

e 
Ex

po
 a

im
s 

to
 e

du
ca

te
 a

ll
co

m
m

un
ity

 m
em

be
rs

 a
bo

ut
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s
an

d 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

ho
w

 w
e 

ca
n

co
lle

ct
iv

el
y 

m
ak

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
.

M
at

er
ia

ls
 a

t t
he

 E
xp

o 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 in
va

rio
us

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

el
ec

tr
on

ic
 a

nd
 la

rg
e 

pr
in

t.
Th

e 
Ex

po
 h

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
its

el
f a

s 
an

es
se

nt
ia

l r
es

ou
rc

e 
ev

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
.

104


	1 DDB agenda 07-23-25
	Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) Meeting Agenda
	Wednesday, July 23, 2025, 9:00 AM

	2 DDBminutes 052125
	_____________________________________________________________________________
	CHAMPAIGN COUNTY BOARD FOR CARE AND TREATMENT OF PERSONS WITH A DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY (CCDDB) MEETING
	Minutes May 21, 2025
	This meeting was held at the Brookens Administrative Center
	1776 E. Washington St., Urbana, IL  61802
	and with remote access via Zoom.
	9:00 a.m.
	Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present.

	3 Vendor Invoice Lists MAY JUNE
	DDB VIL May
	DDB VIL June
	IDDSI VIL June

	4 Staff Report KIM
	5 Staff Report LEON
	6 Staff Report STEPHANIE
	7 Staff Report SHANDRA
	CCMHB/DDB Cultural Competence Requirements for Annual CLC Plans connected to National CLAS (Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services) Standards
	National Enhanced CLAS Standards for Health and Healthcare Reading Materials

	Agency Cultural and Linguistic Competence (CLC) Technical Assistance, Monitoring, Support and Training for CCMHB/DDB
	Anti-Stigma Activities/Community Collaborations and Partnerships

	8 Staff Report CHRIS
	DDB SoA
	IDDSI SoA
	MHB SoA

	9 DDB Bylaws Rev 2025
	Adopted by the CCDDB 1/4/05.  Amended 12/5/06 and 7/23/14 and 6/23/2021 and 1/22/2025.

	10 DDB BMemo Setting the Stage for PY27
	BRIEFING MEMORANDUM
	Background
	CCDDB Strategic Plan Goals, 2022-2025
	Program Year 2026 CCDDB Priorities
	Application Process
	Next Steps

	11 IDD PY26 Awards
	PY2026 I-DD Awards

	12 DDB DMemo MOU for 211
	Background:
	Budget Impact:
	Decision Section:

	13 2026-2029 MOU with UW
	14 UW Midlands Agreement 2024
	15 DDB DMemo 2026 Budget
	Overview:
	Highlights of All Draft Versions:
	Anticipated Revisions for Later Approval:
	Decision Section:

	16 2026 budgets 062725
	17 Intergovernmental Agreement 2020
	18 CUAN Reports Memo
	Purpose:
	Statutory Authority:
	Background:
	Update and Staff Notes:
	Staff Opinions:
	Suggested Actions:

	19 Engage IL_FactSheet_Parents
	20 Engage IL Summit
	21 Engage IL North Star Plan
	22 2025 Expo Save the Date Revamped English Final
	23 2025 Expo Save the Date Revamped Spanish Final
	24 2025 Sponsorship Brochure (Print)



